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free to email your comments and questions to Tyndall Traversa (TTraversa@cns.gov) or Jason Smith
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Additional copies may be ordered by contacting Tyndall Traversa (TTraversa@cns.gov) or Jason Smith
(JSmith@cns.gov).

More Information About the Corporation
To learn more about the Corporation or any of its programs, visit www.nationalservice.org or call 202-606-
5000 or TTY 202-565-2799.
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1201 New York Avenue, NW

Washington, DC 20525

Phone: 202-606-5000

TTY: 202-565-2799

webmaster@cns.gov
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Our Mission

The mission of the Corporation for National
and Community Service is to provide opportu-
nities for Americans of all ages and back-
grounds to engage in service that addresses
the nation’s educational, public safety, environ-
mental, and other human needs to acheive
direct and demonstrable results and to encour-
age all Americans to engage in such service. In
doing so, the Corporation will foster civic
responsibility, strengthen the ties that bind us
together as a nation, and provide educational
opportunity for those who make a substantial
commitment to service.




Preface

Purpose of the Report

The Corporation for National and Community Service’s FY 2004
Performance and Accountability Report provides performance
and financial information that enables the Congress, President,
and public to assess the performance of the Corporation relative
to its mission and stewardship of the resources entrusted to it.
This document meets reporting requirements under a number of
acts, including the Government Performance and Results Act, the
Federal Financial Management Improvement Act, and the
Federal Managers’ Financial Integrity Act, the Government
Corporation Control Act, the Improper Payments Act and the
Federal Information Security Management Act. In addition, this
document is structured to meet the recommendations of the
Association of Government Accountants’ Certificate of Excellence
in Accountability Reporting program, as well as all applicable
Office of Management and Budget guidance.

How the Report is Organized

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an
overview of the entire Performance and Accountability Report. It
includes:

» A message from the Chief Executive Officer (CEO);
» An organizational overview;

» A summary of the most important mission performance results
and challenges for FY 2004;

m A discussion of the demographic, social and economic trends
affecting the Corporation;

= A summary of the most important management performance
results and challenges for FY 2004, including information on
the agency’s progress in implementing the President’s
Management Agenda;

m A brief analysis of financial performance;

m A brief description of systems, controls, and legal compliance;
and

m A discussion of audit results.

Corporation for National and Community Service




The CEO’s message includes an assessment of whether perform-
ance and financial data in the Report is reliable and complete,
and a statement of assurance as required by the Federal
Managers’ Financial Integrity Act (FMFIA) and the Federal
Financial Management Improvement Act, indicating whether
management controls are in place and financial systems conform
with government-wide standards.

The MD&A is supported and supplemented by detailed informa-
tion contained in the Performance Section, Financial Section and
Appendices.

Program Performance

This section contains the annual program performance informa-
tion required by the Government Performance and Results Act of
1993 (GPRA) and includes all of the required elements of an
annual program performance report as specified in OMB Circular
A-11, Preparing, Submitting and Executing the Budget. The
results are presented in two sections: the first focuses on the
Corporation’s five core programs, while the second highlights
other Corporation activities. Each chapter is organized around
the Corporation’s goals and strategies.

Financial Management

This section contains the Corporation’s financial statements,
related Independent Auditor’s Report, and assessment of manage-
ment challenges, as well as the agency’s response to the auditor’s
findings and recommendations.

Appendices

This section contains supplementary information on the
Corporation’s performance results including information on the
sources and reliability of the Corporation’s performance data,
other agency-specific statutorily required reports on the National
Service Trust, and donations and contributions.
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President George W. Bush talks with AmeriCorps*NCCC
members after working with them to remove invasive

plants at a Florida reserve. White House photo by Eric Draper.
April 23, 2004



Message from the Chief Executive Officer

November 2004

FY 2004 was a “turnaround year” for the
Corporation for National and
Community Service. The agency made
great progress on the programmatic,
strategic, and administrative/manage-
ment fronts, as detailed herein. We also
made significant progress in addressing
the three organizational goals I articulat-
ed when I took over as Chief Executive
Officer in December of 2003— rebuilding trust, managing to
accountability, and focusing on our various “customers.”

Change is never easy, especially for a complex organization.
However, because of the extraordinary progress made by the
agency, it gives me great pleasure to present to Congress the
Corporation’s FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report.
This report describes the accomplishments, challenges, plans, and
financial condition of the Corporation and its three main pro-
grams— AmeriCorps, Learn and Serve America, and Senior
Corps— as we go about achieving our mission of helping people,
building communities, and increasing volunteerism and civic
responsibility in America.
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As I have detailed in testimony before Congress and elsewhere,
the Corporation has moved steadily and surely over the past 12
months to establish financially and managerially sound systems
and processes. For example, in FY 2004 we:

Message From the CEO

» Put in place new procedures that fix the problems that we had
experienced in the past with the National Service Trust;

= Strengthened our grants management, oversight, and monitor-
ing functions including reforming the grant-making process,
improving the quality of peer reviewers, and implementing
improvements to eGrants, our online grant application system;

= Instituted a new budget development approach in which each
department uses a logic model that ties budgeting to goals and
performance;

m Upgraded technological systems to ensure more accurate and
timely reporting of data;

m Developed new administrative standards for our state service
commissions, and implemented improved compliance monitor-
ing protocols;

Corporation for National and Community Service A-11



» Developed a comprehensive strategic human capital plan; and

» Ended the predominant use of term appointments, expanded
employee training, and implemented a performance-based
appraisal system.

All of these changes were instituted to allow the Corporation and
its programs to operate more efficiently, effectively, and account-
ably—which, I am pleased to report, has been confirmed by a
number of independent assessments. The review of our financial
systems, as required by the Federal Financial Management
Improvement Act, found that the Corporation’s systems fully
conform to governmental financial system requirements. The
evaluation of our management controls, as required by the
Federal Managers’ Financial Integrity Act, found the agency’s
overall control system to be in compliance with the Act, except
for a single deficiency noted by our Office of the Inspector
General regarding the documentation and follow-up conducted of
systems security testing and evaluation. We will complete new
Certification and Accreditation reports for all our major systems
by January 31, 2005 that will fully address this documentation
deficiency. In separate reports, the Government Accountability
Office and the Inspector General each found that the Corporation
had implemented sound business practices, including strict con-
trol over AmeriCorps member enrollment certification proce-
dures that will ensure the Corporation’s obligations remain with-
in its appropriated limits. And, for the fifth straight year, the
Corporation received an unqualified audit of our financial state-
ments. These accomplishments demonstrate our continued com-
mitment to sound financial practices and reliable financial infor-
mation to support decision-making.
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On the programmatic side, thanks to Congressional funding at
record levels and great support from the President, the
Corporation was able to reach significant milestones. For exam-
ple, in FY 2004 we awarded grants to support some 540,000 vol-
unteers through the Senior Corps program, 1.1 million Learn and
Serve America students, and a record 75,000 AmeriCorps posi-
tions—the largest class ever. Together the Corporation’s pro-
grams helped to provide over 200 million hours of service and
achieved demonstrable results in meeting critical community
needs in education, the environment, public safety, care for eld-
erly, homeland security, and other areas—including a massive
response by participants in all three national service programs to
the hurricanes that devastated areas of Florida and the South this
past September. And, AmeriCorps*State and National program
members recruited and trained more than 525,000 community
volunteers throughout the country—an important aspect to our
goal of building a stronger culture of service and civic engage-
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ment in America.

The performance and financial data presented in this report are
reliable and represent the strongest accountability measures that
the Corporation has ever generated. Still, we recognize that we
have more work to do in order to provide the full range of per-
formance outcome reporting necessary to support more effective
decision-making. The Corporation is continuing to accelerate
improvements in the scope of its performance data, particularly
with regard to the cost effectiveness of our programs in meeting
human needs.

And we continue to press for other changes and improvements
through a variety of strategic initiatives designed to support and
further advance the efficiency, effectiveness, and accountability
of the agency’s operations. For example:

m The Board of Directors in FY 2004 began to outline a draft five-
year strategic plan, much of which conforms to an Executive
Order on National and Community Service that President Bush
issued in February 2004. This plan will be issued in FY 2005
and will be designed to guide the Corporation’s activities for
years to come;
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m The Corporation has engaged the accounting firm Deloitte to
perform a business process review of the agency’s core opera-
tions. Results will be used to further enhance the reforms now
under way;

m The National Academy of Public Administration is conducting
a thorough review of the agency’s organization and manage-
ment and their recommendations will be incorporated into the
agency’s plans in FY 2005;

m The Corporation developed and is implementing a strategic
human capital plan that promotes alignment of staff with the
Corporation’s mission and goals;

Message From the CEO

m At the behest of our Board of Directors, the Corporation is cre-
ating a set of management metrics designed to measure whether
Corporation operations are performing to target;

» In FY 2004, we embarked on a six-month rulemaking process
for the AmeriCorps program in which we sought to strengthen
the program by finding ways to better leverage Federal
resources, while making our programs more predictable and
reliable for our grantees. The final rule is expected to be
released in FY 2005; and

m The Corporation is upgrading its technological systems, includ-
ing developing new designs for the Corporation’s core online
operational systems, eGrants and WBRS (Web-Based Reporting
System), through which grants are administered and grantees

Corporation for National and Community Service A-13



report required information to the Corporation.

In short, the Corporation has made tremendous progress over the
past year. The achievements of our extraordinarily talented and
dedicated staff are all the more remarkable because our opera-
tional resources have been shrinking, while the demands and
pressure on staff to do more, and to have their work held to high-
er standards, have been increasing. In FY 2005 and beyond, we
look forward to fully implementing our management reforms,
improving our financial systems, and making our programs even
more effective and accountable. In so doing, we will meet the
challenges of the future and become the kind of well-managed,
effective agency that the nation deserves.

David Eisner
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National Service
Responds to Florida
Hurricanes

After Florida suffered one of the worst
hurricane seasons in its history this sum-
mer, national and community service pro-
grams were quick on the scene to give
Floridians needed assistance.

More than 700 AmeriCorps, Senior Corps
and Learn and Serve America volunteers
were deployed to provide both direct
services and to leverage the support of
thousands of additional volunteers.
Floridians were grateful for the help. As
one recipient of assistance from
AmeriCorps members commented, “This is
like a prayer answered. I'm tickled pink.
It’s a godsend.”

Volunteer Florida, the state commission
on service and volunteering, was the lead
agency designated by Governor Jeb Bush
to coordinate the activities of volunteers
and donations during the hurricane
response. On September 9, Corporation
CEO David Eisner met with Governor Bush
at the emergency operations center in
Tallahassee and announced two Special
Volunteer Grants totaling $1.5 million to
help the state mobilize volunteers in
response to future emergencies and dis-
asters.

Teams of AmeriCorps*NCCC members
from all five campuses (Denver,
Washington D.C., Sacramento, Perry Point,
Md., and Charleston, S.C.) were deployed
to Florida to serve with the Christian
Contractors Association and the Army
Corps of Engineers. The members covered
about 1,500 roofs with plastic sheeting to
protect the interior of homes from the
weather until permanent repairs could be
made. Other AmeriCorps programs,
including the St. Louis Safety Corps and
the Washington Conservation Corps, also
participated in the project. With financial
assistance from the General Mills
Foundation, 15 AmeriCorps*VISTA mem-
bers from Minnesota also traveled to
Florida to help cover roofs. Most recently,
three teams from the AmeriCorps*Tribal

Civilian Community Corps based in Alaska,
California, and Arizona traveled to Florida
to help remove debris and secure roofs.

RSVP volunteers staffed the Emergency
Information Hotline in Orlando and
worked at the city’s Emergency
Operations Center and with the Red Cross
to set up a volunteer reception center.
The volunteers staffing the Emergency
Operations Center in Sanford stayed
throughout the day and night to handle
citizen calls and to help special needs resi-
dents who did not evacuate during the
storms.

ManaTEENS, a service-learning program
based in Manatee County, fielded 3,322
members who devoted more than 50,000
hours to disaster relief efforts. The
ManaTEENS covered the roofs of 1,444
homes; delivered 1,415 emergency meal
and flashlight kits to “at risk” residents
prior to hurricane season; ran the state’s
only pet-friendly shelter; and, managed
the Volunteer Reception Center for unaf-
filiated volunteers in DeSoto County
where they registered, deployed, and
tracked the efforts of more than 8,000
volunteers.

The Corporation’s efforts were supported
by The Home Depot, which provided a
$500,000 donation to the Corporation to
assist with revitalization efforts. The
Corporation’s response in Florida contin-
ues a long history of engaging volunteers
in public safety, public health, and disas-
ter relief. For the past decade, AmeriCorps
members and Senior Corps volunteers
have worked closely with the FEMA and
the American Red Cross to respond to
nearly every federally-declared disaster.
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Corporation for National
community Service

overview

The Corporation for National and Community Service
(Corporation) is a key part of the effort to create in America a
new culture of citizenship, service, and responsibility. Especially
since the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, Americans have
been looking for meaningful and effective ways to give back to
the nation. Through its AmeriCorps, Learn and Serve America,
Senior Corps programs, the Corporation provides opportunities
for Americans of all ages and backgrounds to express their patri-
otism while addressing critical community needs.

The members and volunteers who serve in Corporation programs
provide valuable assistance to local charities, schools, government
agencies, and faith-based organizations. In addition to offering
direct services, such as tutoring at-risk youth, building homes for
low-income people, responding to natural disasters, and caring
for homebound seniors, Corporation members and volunteers
promote outreach programs to attract more volunteers and help
build capacities of local organizations.

Service through Corporation programs strengthens communities
by increasing civic engagement, breaking down barriers, and cre-
ating new social ties. And, it gives added purpose and meaning to
the lives of those who serve while also helping to open the doors
of educational and career opportunity.

Corporation Programs

The Corporation for National and Community Service each year
engages more than 1.6 million Americans of all ages and back-
grounds in improving communities through a wide array of serv-
ice opportunities in education, the environment, public safety,
homeland security, and other human needs. The Corporation’s
main programs are:

» AmeriCorps, whose members perform intensive community-
based service and earn education awards to help finance col-
lege. AmeriCorps consists of three programs—
AmeriCorps*State and National, AmeriCorps*VISTA, and
AmeriCorps*National Civilian Community Corps (NCCC);

m Learn and Serve America, which supports programs in schools,
colleges, and community-based organizations that link commu-
nity service to educational objectives. About 1.1 million stu-

Corporation for National and Community Service
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dents participate in programs supported by Learn and Serve
America each year; and

= Senior Corps, through which more than 500,000 Americans age
55 and older use their skills and experience to address vital
community needs. Senior Corps comprises the Retired and
Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP), the Foster Grandparent
Program and the Senior Companion Program.

Board of Directors

Stephen Goldsmith, Chairman Henry C. Lozano
Indiana California

Cynthia Burleson William Schambra
California Virginia

Dorothy A. Johnson Donna N. Williams
Michigan Texas

Carol W. Kinsley

Massachusetts
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Officers of the Corporation
David Eisner, Chief Executive Officer

J. Russell George, Inspector General

Andrew Kleine, Chief Financial Officer (acting)
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Corporation Goals and Strategies
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Mission Performance Highlights

overview

In FY 2004, the Corporation conducted a comprehensive assess-
ment of its strategic goals and strategies. This assessment helped
clarify the agency’s goals and strategies, including identifying the
primary beneficiaries of the Corporation’s programs—people in
need of assistance, volunteers who devote their time to helping
others, and the communities in which they live. This assessment
also focused on the key strategies the Corporation uses to achieve
its mission and established a strategic framework to help guide
the Corporation’s programs.

The agency’s revised strategic framework is helping to: align the
agency’s programs more closely to the Corporation’s overall goals
and strategies; unify and coordinate the agency’s programs;
respond to emerging demographic, social and economic trends;
and strengthen the organization’s management. The strategic
framework reflects the complex world in which the Corporation
operates and the important role that volunteers fill in American
society. It also recognizes the key role that the Corporation can
play in building character, sustaining health, and creating career
and educational opportunities through the volunteer experience.

'®
=
«©
=
<
(]
=
oS
=
9
()]
(7))
-
(O
e
o
»
=
=
(7]
£
()
o))
(]
c
(™)
=

Within this framework, the Corporation views its role as a cat-
alyzing one—providing strategic critical support to volunteer
organizations that, in turn, deliver much-needed services to com-
munities throughout the country. The agency helps to ensure a
healthy, vibrant, non-profit volunteer organization sector that
delivers these services effectively and efficiently, thus leveraging
the Federal contribution to better meet the needs of the nation’s
communities. Moreover, the Corporation promotes the growth
of a civic culture in which contributing to your community and
helping to meet the needs of the country’s most vulnerable indi-
viduals and groups becomes commonplace. To do so, the
Corporation provides grants, training, and technical support to
developing and expanding non-profit volunteer organizations,
and explores, advocates and models effective approaches for using
volunteers to meet the nation’s human needs.

Mission Performance Highlights

In FY 2004, through its five major programs, the Corporation
provided:

» Over 200 million hours of community service nationwide;

» High quality service experiences to its volunteers, including
about 540,000 Senior Corps volunteers, 1.1 million Learn and

Corporation for National and Community Service A-21



Serve America students, and almost 75,000 AmeriCorps mem-
bers, about 90 percent of whom would recommend AmeriCorps
service to a friend or family member; and

» Education awards totaling $112 million to former AmeriCorps
members.

The Corporation’s primary focus, however, is on the agency’s
“end beneficiaries”—the people and communities that benefit
from the services provided through its grants and projects.
Therefore, the bulk of the Corporation’s resources are directed
toward Goal 1—meet human needs through high-quality service
programs. However, the Corporation also places great emphasis
on improving the lives of those who volunteer through its pro-
grams (Goal 2), promoting civic responsibility by all Americans

(Goal 3), and managing for accountability (Goal 4).1

Estimated FY 2004 Funding by Goal
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THIS NOTE IS LEGAL TENDER
FOR ALL DEBTS, PUBLIC AND PRIVATE
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Goal 1 Goal 2 Goal 3 Goal 4
S553 5249 S56 582
million million million million

The Corporation’s programs support these goals in various ways,
focusing on different populations of organizations and volunteers.
The diagram below depicts the primary objectives of each of our
programs.
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Corporation Logic Model
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The discussion below explains the strategic direction of the
Corporation along the lines of the four goals and accompanying
strategies. Because the FY 2004 budget did not identify any
Corporation-level performance indicators, this section presents
performance measures that reflect the Corporation’s recently
defined strategic goals and objectives. For some of these meas-
ures, however, FY 2004 data is not yet available; the agency plans
to continue developing data to support these measures and to
report against them in the FY 2005 Performance and
Accountability Report. These measures are included here to pro-
vide greater perspective on the overall Corporation’s goals and
strategies and the way in which the Corporation will measure its
performance against these goals. This discussion also includes
highlights of the agency’s accomplishments in FY 2004 in support
of each goal. More detailed information on the agency’s pro-
grams and performance against the FY 2004 program perform-
ance measures, as well as the agency’s newly established program
performance measures, is provided in the Program Performance
section of this report.

Mission Performance Highlights

Goal 1: Meet Human Needs through Diverse, High-
Quality Service Programs ($553 million)

Goal 1 concerns the ultimate impact of the Corporation’s grants,
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members, participants, and volunteers in meeting human needs,
such as assisting older Americans so they can remain in their
homes, helping victims of natural disasters, and mentoring chil-
dren of prisoners so they can grow up to be productive citizens.
However, measuring progress toward this goal is difficult, partic-
ularly since the ultimate beneficiaries represent people and com-
munities throughout the country with problems of all sorts—
poor reading skills, lack of shelter, little understanding of person-
al financial management. These beneficiaries and the ways in
which they are helped through the Corporation’s programs are
extraordinarily diverse. Moreover, since most of the agency’s
programs are administered by a wide range of grantees which are
responsible for recruiting, enrolling and managing volunteers, the
collection of data on the agency’s ultimate outcomes presents sig-
nificant challenges. Nonetheless, the Corporation is putting in
place a system to better assess the impact of its programs on these
end beneficiaries. Improved grantee reporting, expanded infor-
mation technology systems and programmatically-focused
research are helping to provide better information on the
Corporation’s impact.
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FY 2004 Accomplishments:

m The AmeriCorps program funded almost 75,000 members:

0 AmeriCorps*NCCC engaged 1,187 members on 575
projects in all 50 states, tutoring and mentoring 25,000
children and youth, constructing or repairing 500 low-
income homes, and building or restoring 550 miles of
trails in our national parks

o AmeriCorps State and National supported approximate-
ly 71,000 members in non-profit volunteer organiza-
tions through-out the country to help build their capac-
ity and deliver services to communities

0 AmeriCorps*VISTA supported approximately 7,000
members in about 1,400 anti-poverty projects

m Learn and Serve supported about 40 million hours in service-
learning programs in their schools and communities.

SIUBIUBIH 82UBWIOHSd UOISSIA

m Senior Corps provided about 120 million hours of service,
which helped improve health and nutrition, enable the frail
and elderly to continue living in their own homes, improve dis-
aster preparedness and response, and meet many other human
needs

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other
human needs.

The concept of leveraging is fundamental to this goal and is
embodied in the ability of a well-managed volunteer-based pro-
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gram to tap the commitment of Americans to serve their neigh-
bors and communities. Effective leveraging results in more vol-
unteers and more people served. It also targets resources to meet
high-priority needs, such as homeland security and support for
children of prisoners.

Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 1.1

AmeriCorps NCCC
AmeriCorps*VISTA

Senior Companion

Learn and Serve

Number of hours of service provided by Corporation program participants.
Sources: National Service Trust, Senior Corps Program, PPVA (1/04)

AmeriCorps*State and National 30.0 million hours

Foster Grandparent

Retired Senior Volunteer

2.1 million hours

11.8 million hours

27.9 million hours

13.9 million hours

78.1 million hours

40 million hours
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Total all programs 203.8 million hours
Percent of Corporation grant funds serving highly disadvantaged communities N/A w
(bottom 25% of counties on socioeconomic scale).3 E
Corporation’s cost per member service year for stipended AmeriCorps*State and N/A 2
National programs.4 <
{)
Number of children of prisoners served in mentoring and other volunteer pro- 12,281 children T+
grams.> Source: Corporation program data 8
Percent of Senior Companion Program clients who say that without their Senior N/A %
Companion, they could not remain living at home.® &
| -

Number of counties and local jurisdictions with voluntary organizations active in 1,432 counties (@)
disaster preparedness and response under the Citizen Corps Program. Source: ra
Citizen Corps, Department of Homeland Security’ S_J
Percent of client organizations and individuals who believe their community is 78% c
considerably better prepared to respond to emergencies due to training provided o)
by AmeriCorps members.8 Source: Corporation National Performance ‘B
Benchmarking, 2004 §°2
Percent of parents reporting that since participating in a Corporation-supported N/A =
youth development program, their child’s behavior has improved considerably.?

Strategy 1.2: Improve Program Quality, Reach, and

Sustainability.

To meet the needs of their communities, the Corporation’s

grantees must operate high-quality, far-reaching, and sustainable

programs. The Corporation works with small, developing organi-

zations to establish viable programs in their communities and to

promote the use of best practices in volunteer recruitment and
management. The Corporation also works with more-established
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grantees to increase their ability to meet community needs
through more effective, efficient or expanded programs.
Moreover, the Corporation seeks to enable its grantees to contin-
ue their operations beyond the grant period to become a long-
term force to meet human needs.

In recent years, the Corporation has begun requiring its grantees
to identify and report on their performance against goals and
measures established by the grantee. Although data from
grantees is only now beginning to be analyzed, these perform-
ance measures form the basis for both the Corporation and the
grantee to assess progress and work toward improvement. Other
measures of program quality, reach and sustainability address the
impact of the Corporation’s members and participants on project
sponsors, members and participants satisfaction with their service
experience and the amount of matching funds contributed by the
grantees to support their projects.

Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 1.2

!ercen! O! !orporallon-!un!e! programs mee!mg SE !-nomlna!e! pe!!ormance !!!

goals.10
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Percent of organizations reporting that assistance by service participants enabled N/A
them to provide important new services.1"

Percent of current AmeriCorps members who would recommend participation in 90%
AmeriCorps to a friend or family member. Source: Corporation National
Performance Benchmarking, 2004

Amount and percent of matching funds provided by grantees (S in millions) N/A

Percent of leveraged community volunteers who believe the experience has been N/A
a worthwhile use of their time.13

Strategy 1.3: Diversify the National and Community Service
Infrastructure

Diversity in the non-profit sector helps to ensure that the full
range of human needs across the United States can be met. In
particular, as changes occur in the types and locations of services
needed, a diverse infrastructure is better positioned to be able to
meet those needs. Moreover, a diverse infrastructure is better
able to test new methods of service delivery that may be more
effective and efficient than prior practices.

SIUBIUBIH duew.0Juad UOISSIA

Although the Corporation is continuing to develop improved
analyses of the volunteer sector infrastructure, initial efforts to
define the characteristics of a diverse sector include:

» The range and distribution of grantees geographically, across
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service types and in approaches to providing service. For exam-
ple, if new types of potential grantees, distinguished by their
approach to engaging volunteers, are forming and show prom-
ise, the Corporation can provide critical and timely support and
capitalize on their innovations. Similarly, the Corporation can
help to ensure that critical services are available throughout the
country—urban and rural.

» Organizations poised to address emerging community needs.
For example, Corporation programs can be particularly helpful
in supporting society’s response to needs such as disaster
response and helping children of prisoners.

m The span of the organization—national, regional, state or local.
Different types of needs can be met most effectively and effi-
ciently by organizations that span different breadths of service.
For example, meeting the needs of students in particular set-
tings may be most effectively met through organizations
focused specifically on that small group. Conversely, national
and regional organizations can provide comprehensive service
to meet similar needs across broad areas of the country.
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Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 1.3

Number of applicants for Corporation Funding. 2,574 applicants

Percent of grantees with no prior funding from the Corporation. N/A

Goal 2: Improve the Lives of National Service
Participants ($249 million)

Corporation programs have, historically, been committed to the
principle that service can and should benefit both the volunteer
and the end beneficiary. While all the Corrporation’s programs
seek to provide a high-quality and satisfying experience to their

Performance Highlights

members, AmeriCorps programs also provide members with edu- S
cation support when their service has ended. In the Senior ‘B
Companion and Foster Grandparent programs, volunteer service é

is rewarded with a modest stipend, which can make the differ-
ence for seniors dependent on modest fixed incomes. The RSVP
program helps to improve the lives of volunteers who enroll,
even though it provides no financial incentive to the volunteer.
However, meaningful volunteer service that enables the program
participant to effectively contribute time and skills to needy indi-
viduals improves the social and psychological well-being of the
volunteer.
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FY 2004 Accomplishments:

m The AmeriCorps program improved the job skills, educational
abilities, and interest in community service of about 93% of its
members.

m The Senior Corps program improved the knowlede, health, or
social connectedness of about 19 out of 20 volunteers.

m The Corporation’s programs continue to promote future volun-
teering through its members.

» Around three quarters of former AmeriCorps members have
used their education awards.

= Compared to the national average, former AmeriCorps mem-
bers are almost three times more likely to volunteer.

» In FY 2004, 48 percent of Learn and Serve-funded organiza-
tions reported that Learn and Serve activities had a substantial
positive impact on participants’ civic engagement.

Strategy 2.1: Increase the diversity of participants within and
among service programs.

Under this strategy, the Corporation is working to have our
member, participant, and volunteer populations better represent
the communities in which they serve, in terms of sex, race, eth-
nicity and other characteristics. For NCCC, the team-based
approach continues to be a unique opportunity for collaborative
effort among ethnically diverse individuals. Outreach to under-
served groups is being strengthened, and the Corporation plans to
monitor results of these efforts in the years ahead.

S
0
S
Y,
Q
@
3
@
=
=
L))
=
2]
o
<
2]
8,
o
=
0
=
o
=
S
)
<
&,
L))

Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 2.1
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Percent of service participants from minority groups.'4 Source: CNCS National 37%
Performance Benchmarking, 2004

Percent of funded programs that are diverse (minority members exceed 20%).15 N/A
Percent of service participants who are "Baby Boomers" (those born from 1946 to N/A
1964).16 Source: PPVA

Number of national service applicants.1” N/A
Ratio of women to men in Senior Corps and AmeriCorps programs. Source: 3t01
PPVA, 2004

Strategy 2.2: Expand education, economic, and other opportuni-
ties for service participants.

The Corporation is constantly looking for new ways to add value
to the education awards that are provided through the
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AmeriCorps programs. For example, a growing number of col-
leges recognize AmeriCorps service for college credit. Some offer
supplemental scholarships for AmeriCorps graduates. The
Corporation also is looking to strengthen direct support to mem-
bers, particularly those in NCCC, in identifying career and educa-
tional opportunities as their AmeriCorps service draws to a close.

Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 2.2

!ercent Or rormer !men!orps mem!ers W‘ O say J €lr Service experience !!!o

increased their life skills.18 Source: Corporation National Performance
Benchmarking, 2004

Percent of former AmeriCorps members who say the skills they learned during 93%
their service have helped them greatly in their current job, educational pursuits,

or community service activities.1® Source: Corporation National Performance

Benchmarking, 2004

Percent of Senior Corps volunteers who report that their service has greatly 94%
improved their knowledge, health, or social connectedness.20 Source: 2004
Survey of Senior Corps Volunteers.

Percent of AmeriCorps members who use their education award.2? Source: 76%
National Trust Database.
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Percent of colleges and universities offering academic credit or matching scholar- 50%
ship money for AmeriCorps members.22 Source: NCCC Program Office

%)
=

Strategy 2.3: Encourage life-long civic engagement. 2
Corporation programs are designed to reinforce the nation as a g
democracy by strengthening the civic commitment of those who T
participate in its programs. Individual projects often serve as Q
models for how citizens can be engaged in their communities. c
The Corporation is piloting a longitudinal study to collect data on g
civic engagement of AmeriCorps members a year or more after o
. . T . @)
their service has ended. This will increase understanding of the Y=
causal linkage between the experience of service and continuing ‘g_-’
civic engagement. c
@)

Corporation-wide Indicators for Strategy 2.3 g
=

Percent O! participants in service-learning programs t”at Lst at least a semester 31.6%

and that serve a minimum of 20 hours. Source: 2004 LSA Program and
Performance Measurement Report.

Percent of former AmeriCorps members who have done volunteer work since 82%
completing their service. Source: Corporation National Performance
Benchmarking, 2004
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2003-2004 Program Performance
Former members who have volunteered in the year since completing their AmeriCorps service.

State/National

AmeriCorps Program

NCCC

National Average*

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

*From 2003 Current Population Survey, Volunteer Supplement.
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Goal 3: Strengthen the Infrastructure, Capacity, and
Social Capital of Communities Across America ($56 mil-
lion)

The Corporation’s third goal concerns the less tangible, but more-
generally felt effects of the Corporation’s programs on the social
fabric of the nation. Social scientists have increasingly focused
on the concept of social capital as a measure of the quality and
resilience of the nation’s democracy, and the ability of communi-
ties to solve their own problems. Social capital refers to the
extent to which citizens are informed about community issues
and concerns, meet their civic responsibilities and help to sustain
the quality of their communities. Corporation programs present
models of civic engagement and enable citizens to experience
volunteering as a means to address individual needs and to
empower communities. In the case of younger Americans, social
capital is enlarged as patterns of civic engagement are established
early in life through the Learn and Serve Program.

SIUBIUBIH duew.0Juad UOISSIA

FY 2004 Accomplishments

m The overall number of people who volunteer through any
organization, including the Corporation, rose to about 64 mil-
lion people.

m The Corporation also contributed to the overall number of
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schools with service-learning programs. However, the available
data suggests that the number of schools with service-learning
programs has hit a plateau at around 30 percent of schools.

m The Corporation provided grants to 96 local non-profit organi-
zations in 38 states and the District of Columbia to help mobi-
lize volunteers on Martin Luther King, Jr. Day on January 18,
2004. These volunteers helped build homes, paint schools, plant
trees, clean parks, visit seniors, collect items for homeless shel-
ters, and install smoke detectors.

Strategy 3.1: Renew the ethic of civic responsibility, in part by
stimulating education institutions to focus on their civic missions.
The Corporation encourages schools and colleges to enhance
their role in creating a socially engaged citizenry. At the primary
and secondary levels, many schools have transcended an earlier
view of public education where civic education consisted of
understanding how government worked, to one where direct
involvement in community affairs and service are being
embraced. The Corporation has an important catalytic role in
supporting this trend, particularly in school districts where funds
are constrained, but where the community needs are often great-
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Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 3.1 4‘3
K
T ————— | o
Percent of schools with service-learning programs. Source: Study by Westat, 30% c
2004 )
Percent of Federal Work-Study funding devoted to community service activities N/A I
(]
Percent of high school seniors scoring at or above "proficient" on the National N/A 8
Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP) civics assessment. ©
Percent of organizations that report that Learn & Serve-funded activities had a 47% g
highly positive impact on their efforts to make service-learning a permanent part )
of their institution. Source: CNCS National Performance Benchmarking, 2004 =
Percent of Learn and Serve organizations that frequently or always have at least 75% &’
six of nine characteristics of a high-quality service-learning program.23 Source: —
2004 LSA Program and Performance Measurement Report. o
‘»
§°2
=

Strategy 3.2: Strengthen the sprit of community, as demonstrated
by greater interaction and collaboration among individuals and
institutions.

Under this strategy, the Corporation seeks to identify, refine, and
promote new and innovative modes of community empowerment
through voluntary service. A number of small grants (e.g. Martin
Luther King, Next Generation grants) are intended to demon-
strate new ways to manage and recruit volunteers, new organiza-
tional structures for community engagement, and innovative
approaches to service delivery, particularly in high priority areas,
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such as working with children of prisoners. The agency’s pro-
grams also help to connect organizations and promote their part-
nerships to meet their community’s needs..

Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 3.2

Social Capital Index.!5 N!A

Percent of grantees reporting that service participant activities fostered greater 61%
community involvement26 Source: CNCS National Performance Benchmarking,

2004

Number of Unified State Plans with acceptable score. N/A

Strategy 3.3: Increase volunteering in America and grow com-
munity capacity to engage volunteers effectively.

Corporation programs are designed to stimulate volunteer service
both directly through its members and participants and also
through a long-term influence to create a culture of service in
America. To do so, the Corporation’s programs demonstrate
models through which volunteer service can make a real differ-
ence in people’s lives. The members and participants, in some
cases provide services directly, but in others they help to increase
the sponsoring and partner organizations’ capacity to plan and
manage volunteer-based programs. The Corporation’s Learn and
Serve program also teaches the Nation’s youth that service is a
lifelong commitment. Moreover, the Corporation serves to pub-
licize and recognize the work of volunteer-based programs.
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Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 3.3
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Number of Americans who volunteer. Source: U.S. Census 3.8 million
Number of Americans who say they have devoted more than 100 hours of volun- 21.5 million
teer work in the past year. Source: U.S. Census

Average percent of time Americans spend volunteering.28 N/A
Number of community volunteers leveraged by AmeriCorps members.29 525,000
Percent of charities and congregations that report significant difficulties recruiting 25%
volunteers during the workday. Source: Study by the Urban institute, 2003

Number of non-profit organizations reporting that their volunteer leveraging N/A
efforts are stronger because of Corporation assistance (e.g., members)

Percent of nonprofit organizations that regularly train, and recognize their volun- 69%
teers. Source: Study by the Urban institute, 2003
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Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-
based and other community-based organizations.

Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 3.4

ercent of Corporation grantees that are faith-based (and other community- aith-base A
based programs).30 Source: CNCS program data Other: N/A31

Building on our Performance

The Strategic Environment

Over the coming decade, the Corporation will be challenged to
adapt to changing demographic, social, and economic trends.
These trends clearly point to expanding demand for community
services. They also indicate a number of opportunities to increase
the supply of community services through volunteer service-
based programs, and to greatly increase the impact of the
Corporation’s programs overall. In FY 2004, the Corporation
more fully incorporated a broader perspective and increased
awareness of relevant trends into the strategic planning, budget
development and policy development processes. The agency will
continue to implement many on-going efforts to further incorpo-
rate knowledge of the Corporation’s environment and improved
information on the agency’s activities and results into the
agency’s decision-making process.
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Demographic Trends and Implications

Each of the Corporation’s programs focuses on somewhat differ-
ent demographic groups. AmeriCorps and, especially, the NCCC
program engage young adults in intensive community service.
Senior Corps engages older Americans, typically in part-time vol-
unteering. Learn and Serve America promotes volunteerism
among the nation’s youth. Each of these programs helps to meet
a variety of human needs. But the agency’s central focus is on
helping the most vulnerable Americans — children at risk and the
frail elderly. As the nation’s population changes, the
Corporation’s programs also will need to change to meet growing
needs and take advantage of expanding opportunities.

Mission Performance Highlights

The Aging “Baby Boomers.”
The Baby Boom generation, defined as those born between 1946
and 1964, is about 77 million strong or 28 percent of the U.S.
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population. The oldest of them are just

. . . . Population Age 65 and Over as a Percent of Total U.S. Population

= now beginning to retire. During the
g next decade, this trickle will turn into a 25
g flood of newly-retired ‘ibaby boomers,” e 204
o) as the number of Americans aged 65 and g 20 :
3 over grows from the current 36 million 8 16.3
g to about 40 million in 2010, and then § 15 1 13
o explodes to 55 million, or about 16 per- a 14
e cent of the country’s population, in 5 10
2 2020. F
(o] e 5
§ The “baby boom” generation will be the .
o healthiest and best-educated generation 2000 2010 2020 2030 2040
= of seniors in the Nation’s history. Fully  ‘ssoree 75 censns
Q 29 percent have a college degree. Most
3_ have extensive experience in the workplace and have gained a
h broad range of technical and social skills. Many are already com-
g mitted to volunteerism and express a remarkable commitment to
< their communities. Many were inspired during their formative
3. years by the example and idealism of programs like Peace Corps

and VISTA. As “baby boomers” retire, they will have more

leisure time than previous generations and could contribute their

time and expertise to their communities. For the Corporation to
= effectively engage this population in volunteering, the agency
2. will need to:
o
-
o = Broaden the public image and operational flexibility of the
(_2 Senior Corps programs;
=3
2 » Promote opportunities for “baby boomers” in the AmeriCorps
3 programs;
Q
g » Develop special outreach efforts that focus on the newly retired
® population, particularly in the locales where “baby boomers”
T are an especially large part of the
Q population; and
2 Undergraduate and Community College Enroliment
e} » Support the Corporation’s partner (in millons of students)
= organizations to build programs that
] can make best use of highly skilled 18

volunteers, including volunteers
available during the workday. 17.51

The “Echo Boomers.” 171

The current surge of “echo-boomers”— 65 1

children of “baby boomers”—is current-

ly seen in our crowded schools and col- 16 |

leges. This surge presents both new

challenges and new opportunities for 15.5

the Corporation. The increasing popu- 19% 19%8 2000 2002

source: U.S. Census
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lation of children and teenagers is leading to growing needs for
after-school tutoring and mentoring programs, anti-drug pro-
grams and similar support to help them become productive mem-
bers of our society. As these “echo boomers” enter young adult-
hood, many will need to find the means to meet rising postsec-
ondary education costs and corresponding student loan debts.

This increasing population of children and teenagers also pro-
vides opportunities for the Corporation to greatly increase the
supply of community services. As children and teenagers, the
“echo boomers” can participate in service-learning programs that
not only help to provide services to others, but also teach civic
responsibilities and promote lifelong volunteering. The Learn
and Serve program must be adapted to take advantage of this
opportunity by promoting the continued expansion of service-
learning to all our schools.

As the “echo boomers” enter young adulthood, the Corporation
can continue to engage them in service and help them to pay for
postsecondary education through our intensive AmeriCorps pro-
grams that provide education awards, through partnerships with
colleges and universities to provide college credit for service and
through expanded work-study community service programs. As
the “echo boomers” enter the workplace and begin to have fami-
lies of their own, the Corporation can continue to develop service
opportunities that enable them to help others, while meeting
their other responsibilities.

Growing Frail and Elderly Population.

U.S. Population Aged 85 and Older

The fastest growing segment of the U.S.
population is the group that is 85 years
old and older—most of whom are frail

2.2

6.7 and require help in living. The
increasing life expectancy, now
approaching 75 years for men and 80

4.3

for women, also is resulting in an
increase in the number of somewhat
younger seniors, with compelling
human needs. While social services

1980

1990

will be available to meet many of the

2000 2010 needs of the expanding frail and elderly

Source: U.S. Census

population, other aspects of their
needs, such as assistance with grocery shopping or helping to pay
monthly bills, will need to be met through the help of their
neighbors and other volunteers.

Increase in the Foreign-Born Population.
In the 2003 census, 33.5 million people (or 12 percent of the U.S.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Mission Performance Highlights



population) were estimated to be foreign-born. Many of these
people will not have sufficient English-language skills to work at
more than relatively low-paying jobs, often with little or no
health insurance. This population, which grew by about 37% in
just eight years is expected to continue to grow dramatically.
This trend presents both a challenge and an opportunity to the
Corporation. While many of the expanding foreign-born popula-
tion will need support services, such as classes in English as a
Second Language or job skills, others could represent a significant
resource to their communities and could help their fellow for-
eign-born or other neighbors in a variety of ways.

To meet growing needs, the Corporation must take advantage of
key opportunities to attract more Americans to service and vol-
unteering. Demographic trends presage shifts in how we struc-
ture and market our programs. To meet the implications of these
trends, the Corporation must continue to refine its programs and
develop effective and efficient approaches to meet the needs of
the Nation’s changing population.
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At-Risk Youth

A large population of American children continue to face enor-
mous obstacles to becoming productive adults, capable of holding
down employment, earning a sustainable wage, supporting a fam-
ily, and positively contributing to their communities. The
Corporation and its predecessor agencies have a long history of
giving the highest priority to assisting this population, across the
country in urban and rural settings.

Children in Severely Distressed Neighborhoods

Children growing up in severely distressed communities, charac-
terized by high poverty rates and a variety of social problems,
from high crime rates to early experimentation with illicit drugs,
are more likely to be at risk of school failure, unemployment,
criminal behavior and persistent poverty. In 2000, 5.6 million
children, or about 8 percent of the
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children under 18 years old, were liv- Children by Family Type
ing in severely distressed neighbor- 80.0%
hoods, 852,000 more than in 1990. 70.0%
g 60.0% +——
Children in Single-Parent Families 5 50.0%

. .. S o || @ 2001
Family structure also plays a critical g 40.0% B 2002
role in determining whether children £ %00% T/
become productive members of socie- § 200% 1

. D learly sh hat children in 100% 17
ty. Data clearly show that c dre oo | e—
Slngle) fema]-e_headed hOUSGhO].dS are Tw o-Parents Mother Only - Father Only - No Parent -
more likely to be poor and are com- Family Types

paratively more likely to have aca-

A-36 FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report



demic and behavioral problems, leading to poor socio-
economic status later in life. Almost 30 percent of
children under age 18 were living in single parent or
no parent homes in 2002.

Children of prisoners

A particularly challenging subset of all “at-risk” chil-

dren is composed of those with an incarcerated par-

ent. These children not only face the risk associated

with growing up in a single-parent household or one

v P A with no parent present, but also experience the stigma

“Tonight | ask Congress and the American people to f h . . l .

focus the spirit of service and the resources of the gov-  Of having a parent in jail or prison. In 2003, over two

ernment on the needs of some of our most vulneérable  mjllion children had an incarcerated parent, nearly
Citizens— boys and girls trying to grow up without guid- .

ance and attention, and children who have to go double the number in 1991.

through a prison gate to be hugged by their mom or

dad [...] Government will support the training and

recruiting of mentors; yet it is the men and women of Children of Prisoners

America who will fill the need. One mentor, one person 2.500.000
can change a life forever. And | urge you to be that one T
person. President George W. Bush, January 28, 2003
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Social Trends and Implications

The Service Learning Movement

The service learning movement, which gained strength in the
1990s, is now well established in many locales. It is reflected in
the community service graduation requirements for a growing
number of high schools, in the granting of school credit for pub-
lic service, and in a budding movement to integrate civic educa-
tion into school curricula. A recent study indicated that 30 per-
cent of all public primary and secondary schools now offer serv-
ice-learning opportunities, as compared to less than 10 percent in

Mission Performance Highlights

1984.32 Half of all community colleges offer service-learning
opportunities. Twenty percent of the Nation’s college and uni-
versity presidents belong to Campus Compact, a national coali-
tion committed to helping students develop the values and skills
of citizenship through participation in public and community
service. Service learning not only provides and promotes com-
munity service both in school and in later years, but also results
in improved academic performance.
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The Corporation, especially through the Learn and Serve America
program, has been the catalyst for this movement.
Approximately 1.1 million students participate annually in 2,000
local Learn and Serve-supported projects in which community
service is integrated into the classroom and extracurricular activi-
ties. Learn and Serve America higher education programs annu-
ally engage about 30,000 participants in service linked to their
studies at 250 institutions of higher education. Most schools that
received funding through the Learn and Serve America program
have institutionalized service-learning, so that service-learning
programs continue after Federal funding ends.

Unfortunately, recent studies indicate that growth in

service-learning has begun to plateau. Responses to CPS Volunteering Survey

Although the percentage of schools with Not
service-learning programs more than tripled Mofiated to
. . olunteer
from 1984 to 1999, since then, this rate has 19%
. . Volunteers
remained at just 30 percent. The Learn and 29%

Serve America program must re-stimulate
the growth in service-learning.

S
)
S
]
Q
®
3
@
=
=
L))
=
2]
o
<
2]
8,
o
=
)
=
o
=
S
)
<
&,
)]

Face
Barriers to

Volunteering in America Volunteering
Currently, about 29 percent of the U.S. pop- ’
ulation, or about 64 million people volun-

teer in their communities an average of Potential

Volunteers
about one hour per week. However, an 359
additional 52 percent would volunteer, if

. i Source: U.S. Current Population Survey (CPS) conducted by the
they had more information on volunteer Census Bureau

opportunities, a good match of their skills with
the volunteering activity, and more time to volunteer.

At the same time, more than 90 percent of charities and congre-
gational social service outreach organizations reported that they
could use, on average, 20 more volunteers each, or about 6 mil-
lion additional volunteers nationwide. These organizations also
reported that effective volunteer recruitment and management
was a challenge for them. Recruitment, particularly of volunteers
available during the workday and with the right skills and work
habits, as well as the lack of staff to train and supervise volun-
teers are the biggest impediments for these organizations to
expanding their volunteer services.
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Addressing these factors could have a broad impact on the num-
ber of Americans serving their communities.

The Non-Profit Volunteer Sector
The non-profit volunteer sector is highly complex, with inter-
woven partnerships and relationships involving a wide range of
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Volunteer Management Capacity in America's
Charities and Congregations

The Corporation recently completed the
first study of volunteer management
capacity among America's charities and
congregations. This study assessed the
ability of these organizations to utilize vol-
unteers, including the extent to which
they have adopted various effective man-
agement practices, as well as the chal-
lenges they face in managing and retain-
ing volunteers and the types of changes
that could increase their ability to engage
volunteers. The study was conducted in
the fall of 2003 by the Urban Institute, on
behalf of the Corporation, the UPS
Foundation, and USA Freedom Corps and
is based on a representative sample of
congregations of all faiths and other char-
ities throughout the country.

The study found that the benefits volun-
teers bring to organizations are quite
large, with these organizations reporting
that one hour of a typical volunteer's time
was worth $20. However, the study also
identified several barriers that prevent
these organizations from realizing the full
benefits of their volunteers.

Overcoming Obstacles to Improved Use of
Volunteers

The study also concluded that:

= Volunteer management capacity
could be enhanced by helping
organizations to recruit more volun-
teers (particularly during the work
day and with specific skills), invest in
staff support for volunteers, and
provide opportunities for volunteer
management training.

= When paid staff members dedicate
a substantial portion of their time
to the management of volunteers,
organizations experience fewer
recruitment challenges and demon-
strate greater adoption of volunteer
management practices.

= More than nine out of ten charities
and congregational social service
programs indicate that they are
able to take on additional volun-

teers at current capacity; however,
many experience difficult in recruit-
ing sufficient numbers of volun-
teers and would like more informa-
tion about potential volunteers.

= While additional funding to cover
the expenses of volunteer involve-
ment is a popular capacity-building
option, an even greater percentage
of charities and congregations indi-
cated that a full-time, stipended
volunteer with responsibility for vol-
unteer management would
enhance their volunteer programs.

= Charities that screen and match
volunteers, offer training and devel-
opment opportunities for volun-
teers, provide recognition activities
for volunteers, and use volunteers
to recruit other volunteers demon-
strate higher volunteer retention
rates than charities that have not
regularly adopted these practices.

= Charities that collaborate or partner
with religious organizations report
greater benefits from volunteers.
Yet, only 15 percent of charities
with a secular mission report that
they partner with religious organiza-
tions.

= MOSt congregations partner with
other organizations when running
their social service outreach activi-
ties and tend to provide emergency
services.




organizations. Not only are
there many community and Percentage of Charities and Congregational Social Service Outreach
Activities That Cite Various Challenges as a Big Problem in

faith-based organizations, :
5 Their Volunteer Programs

there also are many

delivery and make sub-
grants to other organiza-
tions that provide direct services. They vary widely in size and
funding, with smaller organizations having annual budgets often
of less than $250,000 and larger organizations frequently with
budgets of $1 million or more. They provide services to people of
all ages, in rural and urban settings—in schools, hospitals, and
state forests—and help to meet educational, public safety, envi-
ronmental and other human needs. As with for-profit organiza-
tions, partnerships and a focus on the organization’s core func-
tions and highest value-added services are helping to bring
greater efficiency and effectiveness to the operations of these
organizations, but also are contributing to the further complexity
of the sector.

Corporation

V)
-
Q)
o) national direct service and Recruiting volunteers available during the workday
5 grant—making organiza— Lack of funds to support volunteerss
g tiOIlS, VOlunteer centers Recruiting sufficient number of volunteers
ﬂ . . . .
U; that SPEC1311Z6 n hEIPlng Lack paid staff time to train and supervise volunteerss
U Other Organlzatl.ons recruit Recruiting volunteers with right skills ong.r.egations
= and manage their volun- Charities
g d . 1 d Absenteeism, unreliability, or poor work habits by volunteers
: teers, an reglona an Having more volunteers than the organization can
[ state-sponsored organiza- accommodate
2. tionS Such as the state Regulatory, legal or liability constraints
o
1 1QQ] Resistance by board members or paid staff
= service COminissions.
g These organizations pro- 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40°
o vide both direct service Source: 2003 study, “Volunteer Management Capacity in America’s Charities and
> Congregations,” conducted by the Office of Research and Policy Development of the
-
Q
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<
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The Corporation recently completed a study of volunteer man-
agement capacity in America’s charities and congregations. This
study, combined with existing and planned research and data, is
helping the Corporation to identify better, more effective and
efficient ways to support and expand the non-profit sector and
the services they provide. For example, the agency can better
focus its training and technical assistance to grantees to promote
more effective volunteer management practices, or target its
resources to key aspects of the volunteer generation and manage-
ment process.
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Homeland Security, Disaster Preparedness and Recovery.
Although the future extent of terrorism, extreme weather events,
and other man-made and natural disasters is not knowable, the
nation can become better prepared to respond to such emergen-
cies. All of the Corporation’s programs contribute to improved
preparedness and respons; but the NCCC program is particularly
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well structured to meet these needs. Using its quick-response,
team-based approach, NCCC team members have provided emer-
gency assistance in responding to forest fires, hurricanes and
other disasters, often providing the organizational and manage-
ment support necessary to effectively mobilize thousands of other
community volunteers.

Beginning in 2001, the Corporation gradually modified its pro-
grams and priorities to better support homeland security and dis-
aster preparedness and response. However, the Corporation’s
programs can be made to more effectively and efficiently deliver
this support throughout the country. For example, the
Corporation could further emphasize the effective coordination
of its efforts with its partner
organizations and provide

Average Tuition and Fees- Current Dollars (Enroliment weighted) improved Coverage in Currently
underserved areas and popula-
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Corporation. The AmeriCorps
program was created in part to
help narrow the college affordability gap by providing a $4,725
education award in exchange for a year of service. Although
inflation has eroded the education award’s value, it is still equal
to the average tuition and fees of one year at a public four-year
college and two years at a public two-year college. The
Corporation’s programs can be structured to better meet the
needs of students, not only through the education award for
AmeriCorps members, but also through the expansion of service-
based College Work Study and improved support for current
members to continue their educations.

Mission Performance Highlights

Corporation Performance Challenges

All of the trends—economic, social and demographic—point to
the need for the Corporation to continuously review and revise
its programs to meet the rapidly changing challenges and oppor-
tunities that will present themselves over the coming years. The
Corporation has begun to analyze and determine appropriate
changes to meet these needs.
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1 The distribution of funding (obligations) by goal is based on the primary
roles of our programs and the components of our programs, such as the educa-
tion award and senior stipend. The derivation of this distribution is provided
in Appendix B: Derivation of Estimated Funding by Goal.

2 For State/National the figure for FY 2004 is lower than most years due to a
pause in enrollment.

3 The Corporation is developing a definition of “highly disadvantaged commu-
nities” based on percent in poverty, unemployment, education, household
income, and per capita income. For FY 2005, county level data will be
matched against addresses of grantees and subgrantees for AmeriCorps ,VISTA
and State/National programs.

4 Data will be available following completion of final grant competition for
2004 program year.

5 This includes children of prisoners served by 278 Senior Corps and VISTA
programs, and refers to a range of services provided to the children. Data for
other Corporation programs are expected in FY 2005.

6 These data will be available beginning in FY 2005.

7 There are some instances of more than one Citizen Corps in a county.
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8 This is based on a survey of those receiving training, and indicates the per-
centage reporting that as a result of the training they or their organization had
followed up by preparing emergency kits, conducting emergency drills, chang-
ing organization operations, or related preparedness activities.

9 The Corporation has so far not been able to collect reliable data on this indi-
cator.

10 Beginning in FY 2004, all grantees began submitting proposed performance
goals. The Corporation is now reviewing the first round of self-assessments
against these goals, and developing standards for judging performance by
grantees.

11 1t is anticipated that the Corporation will be able to report on this indicator
for AmeriCorps programs beginning in FY 2005.

13 Initial efforts have been unsuccessful in attaining reliable data.

14 AmeriCorps only, based on a random sample. “Minority” includes all who
identified themselves as other than “White, not Hispanic”.

15 1t may be possible to begin to report on this indicator for some programs in
FY 2005.

16 Data is not yet available for all Corporation programs. However, the per-
centage of RSVP participants is 5.1%; for VISTA the percent is 32.8%.

17 Recruitment to serve in AmeriCorps through VISTA and the State/National
programs are generally handled by the grantees themselves, and application
data is not systematically kept nor passed on to the Corporation. For NCCC,
there were 4,084 applicants for 1,187 slots in FY 2004, or about 3.4 per posi-
tion.
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18 percent who responded that to a great (58%) or moderate (34%) service
increased life skills defined as leadership, teamwork, communications, time
management, and decision-making.

19 This includes 62 percent reporting that they were helped to a great extent
and 31 percent reporting that they were helped to a moderate extent.

20 This is the average percent of RSVP volunteers who agreed (58%) or strong-
ly agreed (36%) that volunteering 1) had given more meaning to their lives, 2)
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had given them a more positive outlook, 3) had made them better informed
citizens, and 4) had made them feel more competent.

21 This is the percent of those entering Americorps service in 1997, and who
had used the award by the time it had expired in FY 2004.

22 This includes some colleges that have agreed to match education awards
based on personal requests, but do not have a formal program for doing so.

23 These include: 1) activities of a significant duration, 2) clear and specific
learning objectives, 3) connections between service and learning, 4) connec-
tion of curriculum, 5) explicit relationship between service and civic participa-
tion, responsibility, skills, and concepts, 6) formal reflection, 7) leadership
roles for participants, 8) strong community partnerships, and 9) emphasis on
both learning and service.

24 “Engaging Youth in Lifelong Service,” Independent Sector, 2002.

25 There is no official “social capital index” for the Corporation or the Federal
Government overall. The Corporation will continue to explore developing an
appropriate one as a composite of broadly available data.

26 This indicator is a composite of the responses to six questions pertaining to
the effect on the organization as a result of its involvement with AmeriCorps:
increased the number served by a considerable amount (State/National and
VISTA), leveraged considerable number of additional volunteers
(State/National and VISTA), brought in considerable additional funds (VISTA),
brought in considerable donations of goods and services (VISTA), led to a con-
siderable increase in number served (VISTA and NCCC), and led to a consider-
able increase in involvement in coalitions and partnerships (NCCC).
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27 The Corporation is studying the feasibility of scoring these required plans
annually, beginning in FY 2005.

28 These data do not seem to be readily available on a national level.

29 This is for the NCCC program only. The State/National and VISTA data are
not yet available. These programs are revising their data collection systems in
order to provide this information on a timely basis in FY 2005.

30 Does not include formula-based grants.

31 The Corporation is seeking additional data for all programs beginning in FY

2005 to report on involvement with community—based organizations that are
not faith-based.

32 Study conducted by Westat, Inc., 2004

Mission Performance Highlights

Corporation for National and Community Service A-43



=
0
S
Y,
Q
®
3
@
=
=
L))
=
2]
o
<
2]
8,
o
=
0
=
o
P
S
)
<
&,
L))

This page is intentionally left blank.

A-44 FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report



Management Performance
Highlights

overview

The Corporation places a major emphasis on improving the
agency's management and relationships with it customers and is
implementing reforms affecting nearly every aspect of the
agency's operations. Such reforms reflect the concepts and
approaches outlined in the President's Management Agenda,
OMB's Program Assessment Rating Tool, the Strengthen
AmeriCorps Program Act and other statutory and regulatory
requirements, as well as the Inspector General's and the agency's
own identification of changes needed to ensure effective, efficient
and legal agency operations. The following sections describe the
agency's:

= Overall management goal (Goal 4), supporting strategies and
performance measures
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m Progress in implementing the President's Management Agenda

= Response to OMB's Program Assessment Rating

= Analysis of budgetary expenditures, financial condition and
financial statements

= Management controls, systems and compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements

m Audit results

Goal 4: Improve the Corporation's Trust, Credibility,
Accountability, and Customer Focus ($82 million)

Effective agency management, including ensuring the agency's
credibility and accountability, is so critical to achieving the
agency's mission that the Corporation has elevated its manage-
ment goal to the same level as the agency's mission goals. Thus
the agency's fourth primary goal is to improve the Corporation's
trust, credibility, accountability and customer focus.

Management Performance Highlights

As with its mission goals, in FY 2004 the Corporation developed
strategies and performance measures to help guide the agency's
actions and measure its progress in achieving its management
goal. Because these performance measures were only recently
developed, the agency is not generally able to report on its FY
2004 performance against these measures. In FY 2005, the
Corporation will fully analyze the reporting requirements and
processes necessary to use these measures. In some cases, this
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analysis may conclude that a particular measure is not feasible;
however, the Corporation will establish and implement the nec-
essary reporting to support measurement against these or compa-
rable measures and will establish a performance baseline and set
targets for subsequent years' performance.

The Corporation has made significant progress in a number of
key management areas over the past few years, including devel-
oping and implementing grantee and Corporation performance
measures; developing grant guidelines that require grantees to
better leverage Corporation dollars; increasing Board oversight;
implementing policies aimed at increasing our programs' account-
ability and effectiveness; implementing fiscally sound manage-
ment of the National Service Trust; improving budget execution,
financial and grants management; and, enhancing the agency's
information technology systems and capital planning. The
Corporation's management reforms are enhancing its financial
integrity and helping to ensure the accurate, timely, and relevant
reporting of financial information.
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Strategy 4.1: Restore trust and credibility.

Following the problems associated with shortfall in the National
Service Trust that was identified in FY 2002, many of the
Corporation's stakeholders were concerned that other problems
may exist and that the Corporation was not being managed effec-
tively. Although the Corporation's own internal review identi-
fied no further similar problems, the Corporation's trust and
credibility with its stakeholders had been seriously compromised.
To address this problem, the Corporation identified restoring
trust and credibility as one of its primary management objectives.

To help measure the Corporation's progress toward strengthening
its trust and credibility, the agency identified the following per-
formance measures for which baselines will be established in FY
2005, using the identified data sources, and for which targets will
be set for FY 2006.

Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 4.1

!ercent O! !ey !lnanua sta!e“o !ers W| 0 say J e !orporatlon IS trustwort| !V N!A

Source: Customer survey to be developed in FY 2005
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Percent of employees who feel the Corporation's leaders consistently demonstrate N/A
integrity and honesty Source: Federal Human Capital Survey, initially conducted in

October 2004

Ratio of positive to negative media citations in major outlets Source: Office of N/A

Public Affairs media monitoring beginning in FY 2005
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A number of recent external reviews-by the GAQO, OIG, and an
independent auditing firm-found that the Corporation: 1) is in
compliance with the requirements of the Strengthen AmeriCorps
Program Act; 2) is following sound business and accounting prac-
tices; and 3) is effectively addressing identified weaknesses
through major management reforms.

A new evaluation unit in the OIG will bring a fresh perspective
to identifying best practices. The National Academy of Public
Administration (NAPA) soon will make recommendations about
our leadership structure, operations, management and grants pro-
grams. The Corporation itself has expanded its internal oversight
by expanding its evaluation, program review, analysis and per-
formance-based budget development efforts. Such oversight and
the Corporation's continued open, transparent and collaborative
approach will help the Corporation to continuously improve its
management, trust and credibility.

Strategy 4.2: Manage to accountability.

Through a focus on greater accountability, the Corporation will
not only ensure that all its programs and operations meet all
statutory and regulatory requirements, but also will promote
more effective and efficient use of its resources.

To help measure the Corporation's success in managing to
accountability, the agency identified the following performance
measures for which baselines will be established in FY 2005 using
the identified data sources and for which targets will be set for
FY 2006:

Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 4.2

!um!er of grantee noncomp‘lance m!lngs In site visit an! au!lt reports !ource: N!A

Field Liaison Office's monitoring of site visit and OIG audit reports, beginning in FY

2005
Number of consecutive clean audit opinions Source: 0IG audit reports 5
Number of consecutive Certificate of Excellence in Accountability Reporting N/A

awards Source: Association of Government Accountants (AGA) award program;
the Corporation's FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report will be the first
such report submitted by the agency to the AGA for evaluation

In FY 2004, the Corporation's management of all its programs,
organizations and processes was improved to ensure greater
accountability, and thereby improved performance.

Central to this effort is the agency's ongoing development of a
comprehensive performance measurement and management pro-
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gram. Under this program, which is described in more detail in
the President's Management Agenda—Budget-Performance
Integration section, each grantee now is required to submit infor-
mation on its performance, documenting the actual impact of the
program on the people and communities it serves. In addition,
the Corporation's own performance will be measured against a
hierarchy of performance measures, ranging from national, out-
come-oriented performance measures to operational performance
metrics.

These performance measures and the data to support their ongo-
ing monitoring will be maintained in a data warehouse that is
currently under construction. To help focus management atten-
tion on the most critical aspects of performance, the agency also
has begun to develop a management "dashboard" that will place
key performance metrics for each of the Corporation's functions
at the fingertips of executives and managers. Moreover, for all of
its programs, the Corporation has begun to produce annual per-
formance data pertaining to participants, grantees, sub-grantees,
and end beneficiaries. Analysis of this data in FY 2005 and
beyond will enable the Corporation and its partners to make
more performance-based judgments on the funding allocations,
program policies, and management priorities that will produce
the greatest results.
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Because the Corporation's programs operate primarily through
grants, the agency also focused considerable attention in FY 2004
on improving its grants management, monitoring and oversight.
The grant-making process was simplified and improved by, for
example, improving the quality of peer reviewers and internal
agency analyses of grant applications, continuing to upgrade the
agency's new eGrants system and using more analytical tools for
portfolio development. The Corporation's grant compliance
monitoring also was improved, with more comprehensive written
guidance covering all Corporation programs and the development
of improved administrative standards for the state service com-
missions, among other reforms.

To support continued improvements in management accountabil-
ity, the Corporation initiated business process reviews of many of
its internal processes. Under contract, a private, independent
firm completed initial reviews of the agency's grants manage-
ment, National Service Trust, procurement, and VISTA and
NCCC member payroll processes. Based on these reviews, the
Corporation identified opportunities to streamline labor-and-
paper-intensive processes, eliminate redundant data entry, and
reduce errors
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Strategy 4.3: Put the customer first.

In FY 2004, the Corporation's new Chief Executive Officer placed
customer service as one of the agency's highest priorities. Thus,
the Corporation's third management priority focuses on our cus-
tomers-the program’s end beneficiaries, grantees, members and
other constituents that benefit from the Corporation's programs.
Only by placing an emphasis on service to our customers can the
Corporation effectively focus its efforts to meet their needs.

While the Corporation will continue to assess its performance
along a broad range of dimensions through ongoing, detailed cus-
tomer surveys, the agency also identified in FY 2004 two key per-
formance measures against which to measure its customer service
performance at the Corporate level in FY 2005 and beyond, as
follows:

Corporation-Wide Indicators for Strategy 4.3

Average burden hours per grant associated with applying for Corporation grants N/A
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Source: OMB reporting burden analysis —

Overall score on the American Customer Satisfaction Index Source: National 57 out of 100
Performance Benchmarking Study

To help implement this customer service priority, in FY 2004 the
Corporation:

» Greatly improved the grants application, funding and manage-
ment reporting process (additional details on these improve-
ments are provided in the Grants Management section of the
discussion of the President's Management Agenda);

m Began to conduct annual customer surveys of its grantees/sub-
grantees, service participants and end beneficiaries; and

» Began developing plans to further assess customer satisfaction
through additional surveys of its other customers, such as
Congressional and OMB staff.

Initial results from the Corporation's recent survey of
AmeriCorps grantees, participants and beneficiaries are beginning
to indicate the areas most in need of improvement. For example,
the following graphs show that most current and former
AmeriCorps members considered their AmeriCorps experience to
be excellent or good (50 percent and 40 percent, respectively for
current members, and 61 percent and 34 percent, respectively for
former members). This data also show that VISTA members
were not as happy with their experience as members of other
AmeriCorps programs. As a result, the Corporation is looking
further into aspects of the VISTA members' experiences to deter-

Management Performance Highlights
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mine how to better meet members' expectations.

Also as part of the

National Performance 2003-2004 Program Performance
BenChmarking Inltlatlve Current and former AmeriCorps members' opinions of their overall experience with AmeriCorps.
b

the Corporation recently I
Surveyed State Commis_ State/National Former Members

sions, national direct 1

organizations, national State/National Current Members

education award organiza-
VISTA Former Members _ | O Excalont

tions, tribes and territories
using the American @600
O Fair

\
CuStomer SatiSfaCtion VISTA Current Members _ | O Poor

Index (ACSI).! This data,
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i Source: Early resufts from the National Performance Benchmarking Project, conducted by
grantees needs. A fur- the Urban Institute and the Office of Research and Policy Development in FY 2004

ther analysis of the pro-

gram's customer satisfaction index for particular aspects of
§ grantee customer service, also shown below, is helping the
> Corporation to identify particular aspects of its grant-making
Lg services in need of improvement.
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Q,bq’ *The American Customer Satisfaction Index (ACSI) rates customer satisfaction on a 100 point scale. Individual customers rate their level of
satisfaction using a scale from 1 to 10, where 1 is “Poor” and 10 is “Excellent”. The scores are then aggregated and converted into a scale
from 0 to 100.

Source: Early results from the National Performance Benchmarking Project, conducted by the Urban Institute and
the Office of Research and Policy Development in FY 2004.
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AmeriCorps*State and National 2003-2004 ACSI Customer Satisfaction:
Components of Customer Service

ransparency of funding decision

process

Timeliness of being notified of 50 41 62 66
funding decision decisions

Quality of assistance AmeriCorps 78 71 86 92
staff provides

AmeriCorps' ability to articulate a 59 52 68 75

vision for National and
Community Service

Consistency of information 54 47 66 68
about Corporate programs and

policies

Helping to foster new partner- 42 31 56 67

ships with other organizations

Source: Early results from the National Performance Benchmarking Project, conducted by the Urban Institute and the Office
of Research and Policy Development in FY 2004.
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Also in FY 2004, recognizing the need to continue to make effec-
tive use of technology to meet customers' needs, while enabling
effective grant management and monitoring, the Corporation

continued to make improvements to its eGrants system, the n
agency's central system for tracking and managing its grants. =
e
<
Technology 97
2003-2004 ACSI Customer Satisfaction T
Ease of Using eGrants ©
O
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o
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AmeriCorps Overall State National Education Award Program
AmeriCorps Program
*The American Customer Satisfaction Index (ACSI) rates customer satisfaction on a 100 point scale. Individual customers rate their level of
satisfaction using a scale from 1 to 10, where 1 is “Poor” and 10 is “Excellent”. The scores are then aggregated and converted into a scale from
0to 100.

Source: Early results from the National Performance Benchmarking Project, conducted by the Urban Institute and the Office of
Research and Policy Development in FY 2004.

Corporation for National and Community Service A-51



However, data from the same National Performance
Benchmarking AmeriCorps survey indicated that much more
must be done. In FY 2005, the Corporation will implement fur-
ther improvements to the eGrants system, based on the feedback
of the grantees and the needs of agency grant managers.

The Corporation also is developing plans to implement a
Customer Relationship Management System. This system will
help to support a "one-stop" approach to customer service, reduce
the need to refer customers to other staff and provide the infor-
mation the staff need to help solve customer problems quickly
and correctly.

Strategy 4.4: Build a diverse, energized, high-performing work-
force.

In FY 2003, our Inspector General and the Office of Personnel
Management issued highly critical reports on the Corporation's
human capital program. These reports, augmented by suggestions
from Corporation employees, led us to reassess nearly all of the
agency’s human capital programs and to identify human capital
development as a key Corporation management goal. To help
assess the agency's progress in meeting this goal, the agency iden-
tified the following performance measures in FY 2004 and will
report on these measures as data becomes available:
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Corporation-Wide Indicators

!ercen! o! emp‘oyees repo!lng !|g! overa J|O! sa!|s!ac!|on !ource: !e!eral !!!

Human Capital Survey; initially conducted in October 2004

Percent of employees rating "fully successful" or higher on annual performance N/A
appraisals Source: Office of Human Capital's performance records system; initial
results of the more performance-based appraisal system for supervisors available

in January 2005

Percent of managers from under-represented groups (ource: Office of Human N/A
Capital's staffing database

Percent of annual performance targets met or exceeded Source: to be deter- N/A
mined

During FY 2004, the Corporation moved forward in implement-
ing three key strategies to build the agency's human capital.
These strategies focused on:

SIUDBIUBIH 8duew.0Juad Juswabeueln

» Implementing a comprehensive strategic workforce plan;

» Ensuring a fair, performance-based appraisal system; and

m Identifying and responding to employee needs
In FY 2004, the agency developed a preliminary Strategic Human
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Capital Plan that is designed to advance workforce planning,
encourage a results-driven, performance culture and open-up
communication and decision-making. Under this plan, the
Corporation ended the predominant use of term appointments
and is now implementing electronic, web-based recruitment and
application systems. These changes are helping to increase the
number of high-quality job applicants and significantly improve
employee morale.

In the area of employee performance management, the
Corporation implemented a new, five-level performance appraisal
system for managers. This system holds managers accountable for
results and distinguishes between levels of performance.
Moreover, the Corporation more closely tied management's
bonuses and pay adjustments to their performance.

To help its managers and staff to meet performance expectations,
the Corporation also began to more systematically identify and
attempt to meet its employees' needs. For example, the
Corporation initiated a survey of employees based on the govern-
ment-wide survey developed by the Office of Personnel
Management (OPM). Moreover, the agency doubled its invest-
ment in employee training and promoted leadership development
by encouraging all supervisors, managers and executives to par-
ticipate in "360-degree" assessments by the individual's supervi-
sors, peers and staff.

(Further details of the agency's FY 2004 human capital accom-
plishments are provided in the Human Capital section of the
President's Management Agenda discussion.)

President's Management Agenda

In order to ensure accountability for performance and results, the
Administration identified the following five government-wide
areas for improvement: the strategic management of human capi-
tal, improved financial performance, competitive sourcing,
expanded use of electronic government, and the integration of
budget and performance information. The Administration also
identified several additional areas for targeted improvement spe-
cific to those agencies with certain types of programs, such as
loan or grant programs. As a grant-making agency, the
Corporation works to meet not only the five government-wide
objectives, but also to reduce barriers to the participation of faith-
based and other community organizations in Federal grant pro-
grams.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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The President's Management Council defined specific standards
for success in each area, in consultation with experts throughout
government and academe, and established a rating system to
measure agencies' progress in meeting these standards-green for
success, yellow for mixed results and red for unsatisfactory. This
system includes two ratings—one to assess the agency's manage-
ment operations, the "status" rating, and one to assess the
agency's progress in implementing improvement plans, the
"progress" rating. These two ratings use the following scale:

= Status rating—To receive a green status rating (G), the agency
must meet all of the standards for success, representing the
highest operational characteristics; a yellow rating () requires
the agency to meet all the success standards representing transi-
tional operational characteristics; while a red rating (R) applies
to performance that fails to meet any one of the yellow stan-
dards.

m Progress rating-For the progress rating, green (G) means the
agency's implementation of improvement plans is proceeding
on schedule; a yellow rating (') means that some slippage or
other problems are inhibiting the agency's planned achieve-
ment of the success standards; while a red rating (R) indicates
the initiative is in serious jeopardy and is unlikely to realize its
objectives without significant management intervention.
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Further information on the President's Management Agenda
(PMA) and its rating system is available at
http://www.results.gov/agenda/scorecard.html.

Although the Corporation is not required to meet the specific
requirements of the President's Management Agenda due to its
status as a small, government-sponsored corporation, the agency
has adopted the PMA as a guide to help focus the agency's man-
agement improvement efforts. A summary of the Corporation's
self-assessments against these standards and the actions taken and
planned for each of these issue areas follows.

Corporation Rating Summary

Corporation Rating Summary

Human Capital ! !

Financial Management
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Competitive Sourcing
Expanding E-Government

Budget and Performance Integration

Faith-based and Community Initiative
Overall Agency Rating
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Strategic Management of Human Capital

The Corporation recently reassessed nearly all of its Human
Capital Plan, modeled on the Office of Personnel Management's
(OPM's) Human Capital Standards for Success. This plan, which
reflects discussions with employees, managers, and
Administration officials, is helping the Corporation to:

» Align all staff performance toward achieving the Corporation's
mission and strategic goals;

= Plan for and deploy the resources necessary to achieve those
goals;

» Ensure Corporation leaders effectively manage people and cul-
tivate a climate of continuous learning and organizational
improvement;

m Leverage features of the Alternative Personnel System and the
General Schedule system to attract, acquire and retain quality
employees;

» Promote a diverse, results-oriented, high-performing work-
force;

m Differentiate between high and low performance and link indi-
vidual/team/unit performance to organizational goals; and

m Assure accountability to Administration goals, laws, regula-
tions, merit principles, the public interest and the highest stan-
dards of ethics and integrity.

The Corporation is committed to building a diverse, energized
high-performing workforce. Working against our preliminary
Strategic Human Capital Plan, the agency implemented major
human capital reforms in FY 2004. For example, the
Corporation:

m Reformed the long-time practice of using term appointments
for on-going positions to instead use permanent appointments,
thus increasing the number of high-quality job applicants and
significantly improving employee morale;

m Tightened the criteria used to determine bonuses and pay
adjustments and implemented a rigorous new managerial
appraisal system, thus more closely tying pay to performance;

m Doubled the agency's investment in employee training;

» Promoted leadership development by encouraging all supervi-
sors, managers and executives to participate in "360-degree"
assessments and to use the results of these assessments to pre-
pare Individual Development Plans;

m Established a Diversity Advisory Council to focus attention on
the Corporation's commitment to diversity and inclusiveness;

Corporation for National and Community Service
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» Improved employee communication by initiating a biweekly
newsletter and holding regular "all-staff" meetings on important
human capital issues;

» Reinforced the centrality of our programs and strengthened
program management, by establishing a new Chief Operating
Officer with broad responsibility for enhancing and integrating
all program operations;

m Developed initial operational, output, and outcome metrics to
better assess the agency's progress and to support more
informed decision-making;

» Implemented the Federal Human Capital Survey to help identi-
fy employee concerns, particularly with regard to equitable
treatment of employees; and

m Received the Excellence in Government Ethics award for our
comprehensive and highly effective ethics program.

Although enormous progress was made in FY 2004, the
Corporation recognizes that building a diverse, energized, high-
performing workforce requires a long-term investment of time
and resources. For example, although the Corporation's minority
and female representation compares favorably with that of other

agencies, the agency must continue to develop more effective
approaches to recruit and retain highly qualified minorities and
women, particularly in senior management positions.
To ensure the Corporation's ongoing progress, the agency will
Percentage of Workforce Composed of Minorities and Women
updated as of 8/27/04
70%
60%
50%
[
3
€
[}
E 40% —
©
n
k]
S  30% —
)
c
s
[
& 20% +— —
10% +—— —
0%
Total Civilian | Total Federal Total CNCS Total Civilian | Total Federal Total CNCS
Workforce Workforce Corporation Supervisor Workforce Workforce Corporation Supervisor
Workforce Staff Workforce Staff
Proportion of Minority Staff Members Proportion of Female Staff Members

Source: Corporation Staffing Database and OPM
A-56 FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report




update and refine its Strategic Human Capital Plan in FY 2005,
reassessing our progress, strengthening the measures used to
determine our success and identifying further steps to achieve a
high-performing workforce. Among other initiatives, our new
Strategic Plan will call for:

» Implementing a rigorous new appraisal system for non-supervi-
sory employees in FY 2005;

m Developing and testing a Workforce Planning Model, which
eventually will be applied to all Corporation units and occupa-
tions;

» Implementing a strategic approach to the use of training
resources to ensure that such resources help to address skills
gaps and leadership succession;

m Streamlining staffing processes to identify the right people for
the right jobs more quickly and efficiently; and

» Developing a certification program for the agency's grants man-
agers to further "professionalize" this function.
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Based on the tremendous progress made in FY 2004 and the
agency's commitment to meeting its human capital challenges,
the Corporation will, over the coming years, become a "model" of
human capital management.
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President’s Management Agenda: Strategic Management of Human Capital Rating

Developed and operate
against a comprehensive
human capital plan

Based on OPM's Human Capita
Standards for Success, devel-
oped, documented and commu-
nicated to all staff a preliminary
Strategic Human Capital Plan
that ensures agency's human
capital policies and practices
support the agency's mission

Analyzed and optimizing existing
organization structures from a
process in place to address service delivery perspective,
future organizational using redeployment and de-lay-
changes ering

Organizational structure G
analyzed and optimized;

Managers assure that a R G
continuously updated tal-

ent pool is in place for cur-

rent and future succession

Launched reform program to
assess the developmental needs
of current supervisors

Performance appraisal G
plans link, differentiate,

and provide consequences

for SES, managers and at

least 60% of the rest of

the agency

Reduced under-represen- G
tation and established a

process to sustain diversity

Implemented new, performance
appraisal system for all managers
in FY 2004 that ties to agency
goals, differentiates perform-
ance and incorporates incentives

Established Diversity Advisory
Council and a new Director of
Civil Rights and Inclusiveness
position to ensure management
attention to issues of under-rep-

resentation
Sustained a significant R G Identified resources and
decrease in mission critical launched ambitious multi-year
skill gaps workforce planning initiative
Developed and used an R G ldentified initial metrics for

accountability system to
make decisions

operations through outcomes;
participating in Federal Human
Capital Survey

Update and finalize the
Strategic Human Capital
Plan in FY 2005, focus-
ing on strengthening
measurement

Ongoing Business
Process Reviews will
form basis for continu-
ing organizational opti-
mization

Assess alternative
approaches to succes-
sion planning and
implement further
expansion of staff
training in FY 2005

Similar results-oriented
plan to be implement-
ed for all employees in
FY 2005

Increase minority repre-
sentation in senior posi-
tions through proactive
recruitment and devel-

opment programs

Implement and test a
workforce planning
model to, over time,
apply to all Corporation
units

Inform decision-making
with Federal Human
Capital Survey metrics,
as data is available

Improved Financial Management

In FY 2004, the Corporation continued to build on its recent
improvements in financial management, receiving an unqualified
opinion on its financial statements for the fifth year in a row.
The Corporation also performed well against its own internal
goals and provides initial information for FY 2004 for the govern-
ment-wide metrics that were recently established by OMB. In FY
2005, when comparable data is available for other Federal agen-
cies, the Corporation will be better able to assess its performance
against these metrics.

The FY 2004 financial statement audit identified one reportable
condition associated with the Corporation's grants monitoring
and management. Eliminating this reportable condition will be a
major focus of management’s attention in FY 2005.
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Government-Wide and Corporation Financial Management Performance Metrics

Government-wide:
Fund Balance with Treasury (absolute $ differ- N/A N/A §553,958
ence between the fund balance reported in
Treasury reports and the balance recorded in the
Corporation's general ledger)
Suspense Clearing (timeliness of clearing and N/A N/A $65,556
reconciling suspense accounts; absolute $
greater than 60 days)
Delinquent Accounts Receivable from the Public N/A N/A $2,180,946
Number of Vendor Payments Made by Electronic N/A N/A 3,016 (56%)
Funds Transfer
Non-Credit Card Invoices Paid on Time N/A N/A 4,152 (93%)
Interest Penalties Paid N/A N/A $9,754
Travel Card Delinquency Rates N/A N/A 1.9%
Purchase Card Delinquency Rates N/A N/A 3.5%
Corporation:
Audit opinion on financial statements Unqualified Unqualified opinion Goal Met
opinion
Material weaknesses reported in financial state- Maintained at Maintained at zero Goal Met
ment audit Z€ero
Operating status of a single grants management All new grants All new grants awarded Goal Met
system that provides stewardship over federal awarded through system
funds in a cost-effective manner through sys-
tem
Operating status of financial management sys- Maintained Upgrade to latest ver- Goal Met
tem ("Momentum") compliance sion, maintain compli-
with JEMIP ance with JFMIP stan-
standards dards
Status of accounting subsystem in Momentum N/A Conduct review of Goal Met
for procurement module to assess costa
and performance
Operating status of automated, internet-enabled N/A Implement Quick Hire Goal Met
personnel hiring system
Number of state commissions in compliance N/A N/A N/A
with the national state commission administra-
tive standards””
Percentage of timely vendor payments 99% 99% Goal Met (99%)
Timely reports to central agencies 100% 100% Goal Met
(100%)
Percentage of payroll by electronic transfer:
Corporation Employee 100% 100% Goal Met
(100%)
VISTA Volunteers 78% 80% Goal Met (90%)
*These measures were not tracked in FY 2003. Performance goals are under development.
“*This performance indicator is being revised since the Corporation has changed its protocol for reviewing the performance of
state commissions.
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Grants Management and Monitoring

About $644 million in grants were made
by the Corporation in FY 2004, represent-
ing about 69 percent of the Corporation's
overall funding. The proper management
and monitoring of these grants are critical
to accomplish the Corporation's goals.

Policies and Procedures

The Corporation recently formed the
Office of Grants Policy and Operations to
coordinate grant review policies and logis-
tics across all programs. This office also
helps to coordinate grants policies and
procedures with other agencies by partici-
pating in the government-wide
"grants.gov" initiative and the National
Grants Management Association, as well as
consulting with other Federal grant-mak-
ing agencies. A steering committee, com-
posed of representatives of each pro-
gram, also participates in the develop-
ment of Corporation-wide review policies
and procedures. Senior managers from
each program work together to establish
direction and priorities for funding, based
on statutory requirements, Board priori-
ties, community needs and innovative
approaches. The Corporation also is
developing a grants management hand-
book to help ensure consistent policies
and procedures across all Corporation pro-
grams. Moreover, all the Corporation's
grants are managed through a single sys-
tem, eGrants, thus ensuring consistency
from the initial application process
through application review, approval,
award, monitoring and final closeout.

Program-specific policies are codified in
the Notice of Funds Availability issued for
each grant competition. However, the
Corporation is working to establish more
comprehensive and stable guidance for
the AmeriCorps programs, and possibly
the Learn and Serve America program, by
developing regulations that will establish
the selection criteria used for all competi-
tions within each program. Rulemaking
for all AmeriCorps competitions, based on
extensive input from over 500 individuals
during initial public discussions and over
250 people during the comment period,

will be completed in FY 2005. Rulemaking
for the Learn and Serve America program
will begin in FY 2005, again incorporating
extensive input from the field.

Fair, Equitable and Efficient Grants
Competitions

The Corporation continues to place an
emphasis on the quality and consistency
of its grant competitions. In FY 2004, the
agency improved quality controls in the
peer review process, including developing
standard review worksheets for both
Corporation staff and peer reviewers that
reflect program-specific guidelines and
selection criteria, as well as Corporation-
wide grants policies and procedures. The
Corporation also is implementing a train-
ing and certification program for grants
managers that will help ensure grants are
consistently reviewed and managed in
accordance with the agency's and OMB's
policies and statutory requirements.

Grants Monitoring Processes and Progress
Through the Corporation's headquarters
and state offices, the Corporation moni-
tors grants and provides training and
technical assistance to grantees.
Monitoring requirements differ slightly,
depending on the program and the year
of the grant. The Corporation is moving
to a risk-based assessment to focus the
agency's monitoring resources on the
grantees and issues most likely to have
problems. Monitoring includes several
components— review and analysis of
progress and expenditure reports, desk
review of performance measures and
financial systems, site visits, audit reviews
and resolution and certification programs.
The agency also conducts financial man-
agement seminars for grantees and pro-
vides one-on-one coaching and training
of individual grantees, as needed. In
addition, Corporation staff work with the
0IG to conduct grantee audits, track
recurring financial management issues,
and publish common audit findings and
solutions, so that all grantees can address
shared problems. In FY 2005, the
Corporation will develop its first agency-




Grants Management and Monitoring (cont’'d)

wide oversight and monitoring plan and
hire a Director of Award Oversight and
Monitoring to help standardize policies
and promote best practices.

Other Recent Improvements

"Grants.gov"

The Corporation actively participates in
the "Grants.gov" initiative. Corporation
staff work on "Grants.gov" teams, helping
to establish government-wide grants
processes. All Corporation funding
notices are posted on "Grants.gov—find;"
and the Corporation is on track with the
planned schedule for expanded
"Grants.gov—apply" participation, with the
first full application currently under devel-
opment.

Streamlining Processes

The Corporation implemented a number
of management changes in FY 2004
designed to streamline the grant-making
and funding processes for both the
grantees and Corporation staff. These
changes include enabling peer reviewers
to complete most of their reviews prior to
meeting at the Corporation and further
improving the Corporation's electronic
grants management system (eGrants). In
addition, the Corporation participates in
federal grant simplification activities
underway in compliance with PL. 106-107.




For FY 2004, the Corporation provides qualified assurance on its
agency controls, pending resolution of compliance with the
Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA), as
required by the Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act
(FMFTA) and the Federal Financial Management Improvement
Act (FFMIA). (A full discussion of the agency's FISMA compli-
ance is provided in the section titled, "Statement of Assurance
over Agency Financial System Controls.")

The agency continued to improve its financial management sys-
tems in FY 2004, building on its JFMIP-compliant core financial
system (Momentum), by implementing a new salary management
system and improving the agency's grants system. However, the
Corporation needs to improve the quality of its grants perform-
ance data and further incorporate financial and performance
information into decision-making throughout the agency. To
help achieve these objectives, the agency plans in FY 2005 to:
incorporate a procurement module into the core financial system
(resources permitting); investigate performance-based budget
development systems, and continue to develop a data warehouse
that will integrate data, both financial and non-financial, from a
number of other systems. (A more complete description and dia-
gram of the Corporation's systems structure are included in the
section titled, "Overall Control System.")
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In FY 2004, the Corporation also continued to improve other
aspects of its financial management. For example, the agency:

» Implemented AmeriCorps member position certification
processes into the grant review and decision-making process to
ensure AmeriCorps enrollments do not exceed the level that
could be supported with available funds;

m Refined its cost accounting methodology to further break down
costs within each of its major responsibility segments:
AmeriCorps, National Senior Service Corps, and Learn and
Serve America. This year the Corporation provided data on the
major sub-programs for each responsibility segment. For exam-
ple, the National Senior Service Corps expenses include separate
information on the Foster Grandparent, Retired Senior
Volunteer, and Senior Companion Programs;

SIUBIUBIH 8ouUBWIOMSd Juswabeue|

» Reviewed the agency's programs against the criteria of the
Improper Payments Act and concluded that no Corporation
programs are susceptible to significant improper payments;

m Completed a "business process review" of the Corporation's
National Service Trust operations, the VISTA and NCCC pay-
roll system and procurement operations and identified potential
process improvements that will increase operational efficiency;
and
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m Issued new policies for the administrative control of funds.

In addition to addressing outstanding FISMA and grants monitor-
ing and management issues, the Corporation plans in FY 2005 to
further improve its financial management processes by:

» Automating the education award payment process that is cur-
rently paper-intensive, (which will likely yield significant oper-
ational cost savings) and

» Further enhancing the agency's cost accounting model and
improving upon the system's capabilities to better link costs to
program outcomes.

The Corporation's senior managers also will continue to review
all areas of the Corporation's operations to achieve greater
accountability and efficiency in the agency and its programs.
With this ongoing emphasis and the implementation of the
agency's FY 2005 plans, the Corporation will not only continue
receiving a clean opinion on its financial statements, but also will
further integrate financial information into decision-making
throughout the agency.
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Audit opinion on
annual statements
are clean

Meets financial
reporting deadlines

FEMIA compliance

Accurate financial
information is on
demand and is
used day-to-day

No chronic or sig-
nificant Anti-
Deficiency Act vio-
lations

No material audi-
tor-reported inter-
nal control weak-
nesses

No material weak-
nesses in FMFIA for
Sections 2 (agency
controls) and 4
(financial systems)

President’s Management Agenda: Improved Financial Management Rating

Received unqualified audit opin-
jon for fifth straight year

Met all FY 2004 reporting dead-
lines, including for reports to
Congress and the President

Provides qualified assurance on
its agency controls, pending res-
olution of FISMA compliance
issue

Agency's JFMIP-compliant sys-
tems produce accurate financial
information, as needed by
agency managers

Fully resolved shortfall in the
National Service Trust identified
in FY 2002; GAO, OIC and the
independent auditor concluded
the agency is following sound
business and accounting prac-
tices

FISMA auditor's found the
agency's overall control system
to be in compliance with the
Act, except for a single deficien-
cy due to the lack of an ade-
quate systems test and evalua-
tion documentation and follow-
up

See discussion of FISMA issue
above.

Improve grants monitoring to
eliminate agency's only
reportable condition

Continue to improve financial
reporting to provide support
for management decision-mak-
ing

Complete systems test and
evaluation using auditor-pre-
ferred tool by 1/05; continue
to assess internal controls to
ensure compliance

Incorporate procurement mod-
ule; improve availability and
quality of grants performance
data; integrate data into data
warehouse; ensure regular use
of data by managers

Fully implement management
reforms initiated over prior
year and continue to assess
policies and processes to
improve management control
and customer service

Complete re-certification of
agency systems by 1/05,
resolving significant weakness;
continue to assess control sys-
tem to ensure full compliance.

Continue to assess internal
controls to ensure full compli-
ance.

Competitive Sourcing

Although the Corporation's size and current extensive use of con-
tractor support make implementation of formalized Federal/con-
tractor competitions inappropriate, the Corporation nonetheless
fully supports the objectives of the competitive sourcing initiative
in the President's Management Agenda (PMA). However, since
the specific criteria cited for this initiative in the PMA relate pri-
marily to aspects of the competitive sourcing process, the
Corporation cannot rate its competitive sourcing performance
within the specific PMA criteria. Instead, the agency assesses its
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competitive sourcing performance on the extent of its use of con-
tractors to support many of the agency's functions and the cost
effectiveness of its internal operations.

Currently, Corporation contractors provide much of the agency's
technology operations, including its Office of Information
Technology’s Help Desk, payroll processing, internet support,
National Service Trust hotline, recruitment call center, and finan-
cial system operations and maintenance. In the program support
area, the Corporation uses competitive contracting to obtain
training and technical assistance providers to assist and support
Corporation grantees. The Corporation has service agreements in
place to provide assistance to grantees in a number of areas,
including financial management, member development, technical
assistance to state commissions, diversity training, and organiza-
tional development. These agreements cover the all the agency's
programs. This has allowed the Corporation to provide high
quality training, targeted to customers' needs, at a reduced cost.
Currently, about 24.5 percent of the Corporation's administrative
expenses are for outsourced services. Going forward, the
Corporation will continue to assess whether outsourcing of non-
governmental functions can save money and provide high quali-
ty, effective services in other areas of the agency.
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Expanded Use of Electronic Government

In FY 2004, the Corporation significantly improved its electronic
support of both external and internal government processes by:

» Improving its eSPAN system (the agency's grants and member
information system) based on suggestions from the user com-
munity and legislatively mandated requirements, including
increasing the speed of applications processing and implement-
ing more customer-friendly screens;

» Increasing information technology security by, for example,
initiating a proactive security awareness program, conducting
periodic network scans to identify vulnerabilities and mitigate
their risk, and implementing effective configuration manage-
ment of the Corporation's systems and assets;

Management Performance Highlights

» Exploring telecommuting technology alternatives, including
providing remote computing hardware and biometric devices;
and

» Working to redesign the agency's website to make the
Corporation's programs and people more accessible to their cus-
tomers.

The agency will build on these advances in FY 2005 through a
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continued focus on meeting customers' needs. In particular, the
Corporation will:

m Better support agency managers' decision-making through the
ongoing development of a data warehouse;

m Further increase the speed of the application process and
decrease the hardware requirements for grantees;

m Create a seamless pass-through of data from the AmeriCorps
Recruitment System to the National Trust, thus decreasing the
potential for data errors;

= Convert the Web-Based Reporting System (WBRS-the grant,
project and member tracking and management system) into
eSPAN, thus further expanding the systems capabilities and
accuracy and decreasing costs by about $650,000 per year;

m Update the agency's systems modernization blueprint and sys-
tems business cases to ensure information technology invest-
ments fully align with the agency's strategic plan;

» Improve re-use of data and XML to create greater operational
efficiencies and support improved data exchange; and
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m Develop plans for a customer relationship management system
to support improved customer service agency-wide.

Moreover, as noted above, the Corporation will address the single
security issue identified by the OIG in its FY 2004 systems audit.
A re-certification of the agency's systems will be completed by
January 2005.

President’s Management Agenda: Expanded Use of Electronic Government Rating
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Has modernization
blueprint in place
which focuses IT
investments

Has acceptable busi-
ness cases for all
major systems
Cost/schedule/per-
formance for adher-
ence overruns and
shortfalls less than
10%

Operational systems
are 90% secure, the
Inspector General and
quarterly reports verify
security

Participation and con-
tributions are com-
plete in 3 of 4 cate-
gories

Blueprint Is out of date.

Created business cases for all
of our major systems

Costs are within 10% of plans;

plans need to be better inte-
grated with the agency's
strategic plan

Conducted annual FISMA
audits and financial audit;

tracked and updated quarter-

ly Plans of Actions and
Milestones; no incidents
reported under U.S. Cert.;
conduct regular penetration

testing
Implementing eGrants per

schedule; currently re-use
data; planning integration
using XML

ontinue working with senior
staff to update blueprint in FY
2005

Update business cases and
coordinate them with agency
strategic plan

Measure new projects in the
broader context of the agency
strategic plan

Continue implementing cur-
rent systems security plans;
update plans, as necessary

Improve re-use of data and
XML; continue planning cus-
tomer relationship manage-
ment system; continue CIO
participation in GMIob project.
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Integration of Budget and Performance Information

In FY 2004, the Corporation continued to implement an ambi-
tious plan to fully integrate budget and performance throughout
the agency in support of management decision-making. When
fully implemented and fully integrated into all the agency's oper-
ations by FY 2010, this plan will enable the Corporation to meet
all of the President's Management Agenda criteria for this initia-
tive. The Corporation's tremendous progress in FY 2004 set the
agency on a trajectory to meet this goal.

Since the key point in an agency's operation, where budget and
performance information is most critical, is the budget develop-
ment process, the Corporation focused considerable attention to
restructuring this process to consciously and systematically take
performance into account in making budgetary decisions and
plans. The Corporation used a "logic model" approach in the
development of the agency's FY 2006 budget request to OMB.
This approach helps to align all of the agency's resources to effec-
tively and efficiently achieve the Corporation's goals by provid-
ing a framework for defining the relationships between the
desired agency/program results (end outcomes), and the inputs
(both funding and staffing) necessary to achieve them.

The Corporation also focused on the development and integration
into agency operations of relevant performance metrics. The
Corporation identified an initial set of measures to assess
Corporate, program and operational performance and to help
identify needed management and programmatic changes. This
hierarchy of performance metrics—from national outcome meas-
ures, such as the percent of Americans who volunteer, to opera-
tional measures, such as grant application cycle times—will con-
tinue to be developed and refined over the coming years. Once
fully implemented, this hierarchy will enable the agency to more
readily identify performance problems and trace the problem's
"root cause" through the subsidiary performance metrics, thus
more clearly identifying the management changes necessary to
effect an improvement in performance.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Hierarchy of Performance Measures

Corporate Strategy

Program Supporting Strategy
ne
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Operational Efficiency Metrics ,

To provide the data necessary to support these measurements and
effective management analyses in a timely and accurate way, the
Corporation began to develop a data warehouse in FY 2004. This
data warehouse will incorporate data from a variety of sources,
including, for example, data on grantees, financial data, perform-
ance data and service data. When fully implemented, the data
warehouse will enable improved performance monitoring and
better analysis of management issues, as managers identify per-
formance problems and opportunities (see graphic below).
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Data Warehouse
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The Corporation also began developing a "management dash-
board"—a selection of the most critical operational, output and
outcome measures that assess key aspects of the agency's per-
formance. As the first step in its development, the Corporation
identified its operational objectives, taking into account the
agency's mission, programmatic and management goals. Based on
these operational objectives, the Corporation is identifying key
metrics for continuous monitoring by agency management. The
"dashboard" will be implemented initially in FY 2005 and will be
refined in FY 2006.

In addition to these new FY 2004 Corporation initiatives, the
agency continued to move forward in other aspects of budget-
performance integration, including:

m Strengthening grantee performance measurement through
AmeriCorps rulemaking;

m Reporting quarterly to the Board of Directors on key aspects of
the agency's operations, such as grants awarded, member
enrollments, costs incurred and program performance;

Management Performance Highlights

s Implementing performance surveys of our programs' end bene-
ficiaries—the individuals and organizations, such as children
mentored or grantees that benefit from our programs—through
our National Performance Benchmarking Project;

» Conducting an agency self-assessment against the President's
Management Agenda;
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= Incorporating agency mission, goals and objectives into man-
agers' performance plans and implementing a more perform-
ance-based system to evaluate managers' performance and eligi-
bility for bonuses and pay adjustments; and

» Incorporating the agency's goals and performance measures
into its FY 2005 operating plans.

To help the agency accomplish this ambitious agenda and coordi-
nate the agency's many budget-performance integration initia-
tives, the Corporation recently established a cross-organizational
performance metrics team. This team is responsible for coordi-
nating all performance initiatives across the Corporation (e.g., the
data warehouse, Board metrics, grantee performance measure-
ment, strategic goals and indicators, dashboard metrics, perform-
ance surveys and evaluations) and ensuring that managers use
performance information to improve their programs.

The Corporation recognizes the difficulties inherent in fully inte-
grating budget and performance. However, by "jump-starting"
this initiative based on best practices in the field and making
budget-performance integration a key management objective, the
Corporation will be able to steadily increase the effectiveness and
efficiency of its programs and operations.
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Use of performance
information for deci-
sion-making

Plans contain limited
number of goals;
measures used are
from the agency's
PART

Performance apprais-
al systems are linked
to agency mission,
goals, and outcomes

Agency can show full
cost of achieving the
performance goals
and can accurately
estimate the margin-
al cost of different
levels of perform-
ance

Agency has efficiency
measure for all pro-
grams

Agency used the
PART to direct pro-
gram improvements
and to justify funding
requests; less than
10% of programs
receive "Results Not
Demonstrated" rating

President’s Management Agenda: Improved Financial Management Rating

G

G

G

For selected programs and oper-
ations (e.g., AmeriCorps enroll-
ment), managers regularly use
performance and financial infor-
mation for decision-making

Developed strategic budget plan
with a limited number of goals
and objectives, as well as corre-
sponding outcome and output
measures for most programs

Performance appraisal plans for
managers linked to agency mis-
sion, goals, and outcomes, and
effectively differentiate levels of
performance as FY 2004

Full cost of programs is reported
in financial statements; use of
"logic model" approach to devel-
oping the agency's FY 2006,
helped identify the full cost,
including all corresponding sup-
port services, necessary to
achieve programmatic results
All programs measure efficiency
as cost per
member/volunteer/participant
service year/service hour; how-
ever, end outcome efficiency
measures are dependent on the
development of viable end ben-
eficiary measures; agency is
developing hierarchy of per-
formance measures, including
operational efficiency metrics
Only AmeriCorps*State &
National program has been eval-
uated against the PART criteria;
rating of "Results Not
Demonstrated" and correspon-
ding OMB recommendations
guided management changes
and outcome measure develop-
ment

Develop data warehouse to
support decision-making at all
levels; promote use of data in
decision-making throughout
agency

Develop end beneficiary out-
come measures w/ viable data
collection methods

Implement plans for non-
supervisory staff that differen-
tiate levels of performance and
link to agency mission, goals
and outcomes beginning in FY
2005

Develop improved methodolo-
gies to readily and more accu-
rately trace and allocate costs
to performance goals; develop
methodologies to estimate
marginal costs of performance
changes.

Develop viable end beneficiary
measures and assess potential
for efficiency measures of end
beneficiary outcomes; contin-
ue implementing hierarchy of
performance measures; con-
duct business process reviews
to identify efficiency improve-
ments

Re-evaluate AmeriCorps*State
& National program in FY 2005;
other programs to be self-eval-
uated by the agency in FY
2005

Faith-Based and Community Initiatives

Since the Corporation is an independent agency, not subject to
OMB management agreement, the Corporation has not received
formal standards for rating performance on this initiative.
Therefore, the agency has completed a self-assessment based

upon rigorous execution of the President’s Executive Orders and

other administrative guidance to date. The Corporation has
proactively implemented the initiative through a task force com-
prised of representatives from all Corporation programs. The
agency's faith-based and community initiative ensures that all
program development, outreach, technical assistance, and base-
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line research, including collecting relevant data, support the equi-
table participation of faith-based and community organizations in
its programs.

In FY 2004, over $70.5 million, or 13.9 percent of the
Corporation's total program funding, was awarded to faith-based
organizations. Other community organizations received about
$164 million in VISTA, Senior Corps and Learn and Serve
America funding, representing about 47 percent of these pro-
grams' total funding.2 As a result of the removal of barriers and
strengthened outreach efforts across the Corporation's five pri-
mary programs, the number of faith-based and other community
grantees, host sites, sponsors and stations is expected to continue
to grow in FY 2005 and FY 2006. Part of this growth will be
driven by the Next Generation grants that target small, innova-
tive programs that have never before received Corporation fund-
ing.

Pursuant to the President's Executive Orders No. 13198, 13199
(January 29, 2001), 13279 (December 12, 2002) and 13331
(February 27, 2004), the Corporation modified many of its poli-
cies and practices to permit faith-based and other community-
based organizations to participate more fully in its programs.
These actions included:
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= State commission outreach and training;

» Publication of AmeriCorps*State/National guidelines emphasiz-
ing use of members in capacity-building activities, such as man-
aging volunteers and raising funds to support service activities
with grassroots and faith-based organizations;

= Eliminating AmeriCorps*VISTA handbook provisions which
had expressly discouraged "sectarian or religious symbols, deco-
ration, or other sectarian identification;"

= Setting involvement of faith-based and other grassroots organi-
zations as a priority for community partnerships engaged with
school service-learning under the Learn and Serve America
program guidance; and

» Using training and technical assistance as an outreach mecha-
nism and a tool to provide faith- and community-based organi-
zations with the skills and abilities necessary for them compete
effectively for Corporation funding.
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In FY 2004, model faith-based and other community organization
projects included a 15-city replication of the successful program
that provides mentors for children of inmates-the Amachi pro-
gram-through volunteer resources provided by
AmeriCorps*VISTA and Senior Corps, and companion initiatives
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with the National Conference of Black Mayors and National
Association of Blacks in Criminal Justice. In total, over 12,000
children of prisoners had been served in 278 AmeriCorps*VISTA
and Senior Corps projects as of July 2004. In FY 2005-06, the
Corporation's programs have set a goal of recruiting 25,000 new
mentors for children of prisoners.

To further enable faith-based and other community organizations
to participate in the Corporation's programs, the agency plans to:

» Further improve the collection and analysis of data on this ini-
tiative to monitor its impact and identify further areas for
improvement; and

» Further expand outreach to better demonstrate how national
service programs and their members can be a resource to faith-
based and other community organizations, by improving the
agency's web site and tool kit applications, broadening publicity
for notices of funding opportunity and convening informational
sessions at regional forums or gatherings of large organizations.

In FY 2005, the Corporation anticipates further success in elimi-
nating barriers to faith-based and other community organizations'
participation in its programs.

Program Assessment Rating Tool

The Program Assessment Rating Tool (PART) was developed by
OMB to assess and improve program performance so the Federal
government can achieve better results. A PART review high-
lights a program's strengths and weaknesses to inform funding
and management decisions aimed at making the program more
effective. The PART assesses all factors that affect and reflect
program performance including: program purpose and design;
performance measurement, evaluations and strategic planning;
program management; and program results. Because the PART
includes a consistent series of analytical questions, it allows pro-
grams to show improvements over time and allows comparison
between similar programs.

The AmeriCorps*State and National Program was reviewed by
OMB using the PART in FY 2002. OMB will re-evaluate the pro-
gram in FY 2005. Other agency programs are not yet scheduled
for review by OMB. However, the Corporation plans to conduct
an internal PART assessment of all the agency's programs during
FY 2005 to help identify ways to improve the programs, their
operations and outcomes.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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AmeriCorps*State and National

In FY 2002, the State and National program received an overall
PART score of 36 (out of 100) and a rating of "Results Not
Demonstrated." This overall score, which describes OMB's
assessment in FY 2002, was composed of weighted scores for:

» Program purpose and design (12 out of 20): Although the pro-
gram had a clear, specific and unique purpose (meeting commu-
nity needs through intensive volunteer service), its accomplish-
ments were difficult to measure and, at least at FY 2002 operat-
ing levels, relatively small compared to overall volunteering in
America. In addition, the program's authorizing legislation
would require changes to create a more optimal program
design;

= Strategic planning (7 out of 10): The program lacked a limited
number of specific long-term performance goals and annual
performance goals. However, the program was coordinated at
the state and local levels, as well as with other Federal pro-
grams. The agency conducted regular program evaluations and
aligned the budget with program goals, as well as initiated more
outcome-oriented strategic planning, including requiring
grantees to report on program accomplishments;
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» Program management (7 out of 20): Although grantees were
required to evaluate their performance, outcome-oriented per-
formance information was not collected on a regular basis, nor
were grantees held accountable for their performance.
Moreover, the program lacked the capacity to budget for full
costs and did not fully use effective financial management prac-
tices. However, program operations (e.g., timely grantee fund-
ing, effective peer review) reflected good management prac-
tices; and

» Program results (10 out of 50): Although the program had
reduced its average cost per member, demonstrable end-benefi-
ciary results could not be shown.

The Corporation has taken a number of steps to address the defi-
ciencies identified by OMB. The agency continues to develop
more effective strategic planning, involving both long-term goals
and annual performance goals. Extensive efforts to collect more
data from beneficiaries, as well as to require more outcome-ori-
ented reporting by grantees, also have been implemented. A
focus on outcome performance measurement and management is
beginning to influence the program's policies and operations. In
addition, the Corporation has taken specific steps to address the
OMB's PART recommendations:

SIUBIUBIH 8ouUBWIOMSd Juswabeue|

m The Corporation established new financial management proce-
dures, including properly recording education award obliga-
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tions in the Trust and ensuring that the Corporation has timely
and accurate information on AmeriCorps enrollments, in order
to ensure that obligations stay within budgeted levels. GAO
and OIG favorably reviewed the Corporation's management of
the Trust. The agency is implementing GAO recommendations
to further improve Trust data quality. In addition, the
Corporation is integrating the Web-based Reporting System
(WBRS) with eGrants, thus providing a single system for
recording and tracking enrollments;

= State and National is continuing to strengthen existing per-
formance measures and develop more outcome-oriented annual
and long-term performance measures. The AmeriCorps per-
formance measurement survey results are currently being ana-
lyzed and will provide baseline performance data for FY 2004;

= State and National also is developing better and more reliable
methodologies to quantify the results of the members' efforts to
recruit additional volunteers for the program/project, including
requiring grantees to submit at least one performance measure
addressing volunteer leveraging and management (e.g., the ratio
of volunteers to members); and
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m The agency also developed methods to disaggregate national
performance data and report information on program perform-
ance for states and grantees, making the presentation of the
data more transparent and meaningful.

Moreover, the Corporation is implementing a number of other
management reforms to improve the State and National pro-
gram's performance, including:

s Implementing an integrated program management system that
will result in much more comprehensive, efficient and accurate
information being available;

m Reorganizing the program's internal management structure to
improve business process, promote better customer service and
increase program effectiveness and efficiency;

» Requiring grantees to continue to refine their performance
measures to ensure adequate information on the program's ulti-
mate outcomes; and

» Increasing the competitiveness of applicants through expanded
outreach, new competitive processes and refined selection crite-
ria.

Management Performance Highlights

Although the Corporation has made significant progress toward
restructuring and improving the State and National program, the
agency recognizes the need to fully implement these initiatives
and continue to assess the program's progress to identify further
necessary changes. With continued management focus on creat-
ing an outcome-oriented program structure and operations, the
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State and National program's PART score will improve signifi-
cantly.

Analysis of Budgetary Expenditures, Financial Condition
and Financial Statements

Analysis of Percentage Distribution of FY 2004 Appropriation
Appropriations and by Major Program

Budgetary ($ in millions)

Expenditures

The Corporation's

budget is comprised of W 1%

appropriations under
the National and

[ State & National *
ENCCC
OVISTA

OLearn and Serve America

Community Service m4%
Act (NCSA) and the
Domestic Volunteer 014%
Service Act (DVSA).

In FY 2004, the agency
received $550 million

O 34%

B Senior Corps
O National Service Trust
W Other Grants

under NCSA and $354 O Evaluation
million under DVSA, . B 3% W Salaries & Expenses
. W 22% H Inspector General
for a total appropria- D10
tion of $935 million. 05% ’
This compares with a *State & National Includes State Commission AGMINIStrative Grants, Other Grants nciudes
total appropriation of Innovation, Demonstration and Assistance, Partnership Grants and Special Volunteer Programs;
$786 million in FY Salaries and Expenses includes only Corporation staff salaries and expenses
2003.
Analysis of Financial Condition FY 2004 Budget Authority by Object Class
The National Service Trust maintains bal- ($ in millions)
ances to pay members the education awards
and interest forbearance on qualified student 7007
loans they earned through the AmeriCorps ggg’
programs. Members may use their awards 400-
anytime up to seven years following their 300
service completion. However, some awarded 200
positions may not be filled, some enrolled 100
members may not complete full-time service 0
® % & B % A O
and some members may not use the educa- S e, By, %«,o@ % T,
. . R % e
tion awards they earned. Until recently, the o T 0, %, 7, %,
C ion obligated funds based on histori- N N
orporation obligated funds based on histori Zo s o T % %,
. . . . 7 . 4
cal program experience and did not maintain %, “9450 %, %,
. . ; Ty,
adequate control over the awarding of posi- "0;% Y

tions and enrollment of members. *Salaries & Benefits includes salaries (stipends) and benefits for

Corporation staff, and NCCC and VISTA members

Following the shortfall in the National Service
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Trust identified in FY 2002, the Corporation took corrective
actions to ensure the ongoing solvency of the National Service
Trust. These actions included significant changes in how the
Corporation manages the award of positions, estimates future
education award payments and records Trust obligations. In esti-
mating future liabilities and calculating Trust obligation require-
ments, the Corporation now uses more conservative assumptions
for the rates at which education awards are earned and used than
would be estimated based on historical data.

Comparison of Historical and Conservative Trust Funding Assumptions

nrollment Rate (% of awarde 0 0
positions that are filled by enrolled
members)
Earning Rate (% of enrolled mem- 77% 80%

bers who earn an award)
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Award Usage Rate (% of earned 79% 80%
awards that are used [i.e.
redeemed])

The more conservative assumptions mean that annual Trust obli-
gations exceed by about $10 million the liability calculated using
the experiential (historically-based) rates. In addition, the
Corporation has so far set-aside almost $20 million in the Trust as
a reserve, as mandated in the Strengthen AmeriCorps Program
Act, in the event that actual award payments exceed estimated
future obligations, even using the more conservative projection
assumptions. These two risk-offsetting actions result in a very
high probability of the Trust's balances being sufficient to cover
actual future liabilities. However, the Corporation also is work-
ing to improve its projected liability analyses by taking other eco-
nomic and social factors into account, thus refining the projec-
tions and better enabling the Corporation to assess likely risks.
(For more information on the Trust, see the The National Service
Trust chapter in the Program Performance Section as well as
Appendix D: National Service Trust—Financial Statements and
Key Financial Factors.)

Management Performance Highlights

Analysis of Financial Statements

The Corporation's financial statements, prepared in accordance
with the Government Corporation Control Act, as amended by §
306 of the Chief Financial Officers Act, present comparative
information for FY 2004 and 2003. For the fifth year in a row,
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the Corporation's audited financial statements received an
unqualified opinion. This opinion recognizes the financial state-
ments as fairly presented, in all material respects, and in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Corporation Assets

The Corporation's primary assets are Fund Balance with
Treasury, Trust Investments and Related Receivables, and
Advances to Others. The Fund Balance with Treasury represents
annual, multi-year, and no-year funds that are available to pay
current and future commitments. Trust Investments, which are
maintained in the National Service Trust, are restricted for use in
paying education awards, interest forbearance, and President's
Freedom Scholarships to eligible participants, and are not avail-
able for use in the current operations of the Corporation.
Advances to Others mainly represent funds provided to grantees
in advance of their performance under a grant. For the most
part, these advances are liquidated during the first quarter of the
subsequent fiscal year.
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Fund Balance with Treasury increased by about $111 million
from $743 million as of September 30, 2003, to $854 million as of
September 30, 2004. The additional funds are mainly for grants,
most of which were awarded in the fourth quarter of FY 2004
and will be expended during FY 2005. During the same time
period, Trust Investments and Related Receivables showed an
increase of $106 million due to increased funding, including the
receipt of a deficiency appropriation of $63 million for obliga-
tions incurred in 2002 and earlier program years. Advances to
others increased by $17 million from $49 million as of September
30, 2003 to $66 million as of September 30, 2004. The increase is
the result of increased AmeriCorps grant appropriations and grant
awards being issued later in the fiscal year, thus increasing grant
advances, plus the grantees' increased use of the automated HHS
grants advance process.

Corporation Liabilities

The Corporation's most significant liabilities are the Trust Service
Award Liability and Grants Payable. The Trust Service Award
Liability represents the estimated total value of education awards
that will be paid to all members who were enrolled and served at
least 15 percent of their service term as of September 30, 2004,
adjusted to reflect the award earning and usage rates. Grants
Payable represents funds due to grantees in payment of their per-
formance under a grant.

SIUBIUBIH 8ouUBWIOMSd Juswabeue|

The Trust Service Award Liability as of September 30, 2004,
increased by $6.9 million from the net service award liability as
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of September 30, 2003. This change was largely due to increased
grant awards and corresponding projected education awards, off-
set by a somewhat smaller increase in the value of education
awards used. Grants Payable remained relatively stable, with an
increase of only $451,000.

Management Controls, Systems and Compliance with
Legal and Regulatory Requirements

This section of the report provides information on the
Corporation's compliance with the:

» Government Corporation Control Act;

m Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act;

m Federal Information Security Management Act;

» Federal Financial Management Improvement Act; and

» Improper Payments Information Act.

The Corporation is subject to the reporting requirements of the
Government Corporation Control Act (31 U.S.C. 9106). Under
these requirements, the Corporation provides a statement on its
internal accounting and administrative controls consistent with
the Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act (FMFIA). This
Act requires that agencies establish management controls and
financial systems to provide reasonable assurance that the integri-
ty of Federal programs and operations is protected. Furthermore,
it requires that the head of the agency provide an annual assur-
ance statement on whether the agency has met these require-
ments and whether any material weaknesses exist. The
Corporation's Chief Executive Officer's FY 2004 annual assurance
statement is included in his message at the beginning of this
report as well as in the discussion below.

Overall Control System

The Corporation's management controls review found the
agency's overall control system to be in compliance with the Act.
A single deficiency, identified by the auditor, relates to the ade-
quacy of documentation and follow-up of its major systems secu-
rity assessment. However, the Corporation disagrees with this
citation as a significant weakness and has requested that OMB
review the auditor's finding. (A detailed description of this issue
is provided below under Statement of Assurance over Agency
Financial System Controls.) Nonetheless, the Corporation is con-
ducting a certification and accreditation of its systems, to be com-
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pleted by January 2005, which will address the auditor's finding.

The Corporation is committed to management excellence and
recognizes the importance of strong financial systems and inter-
nal controls to ensure accountability, integrity, and reliability.
Management, administrative, and financial system controls have
been developed to ensure the following:

» Programs and operations achieve their intended results effec-
tively and efficiently;

m Resources are used in accordance with the Corporation's mis-
sion;

» Programs and resources are protected from waste, fraud, and
mismanagement;

» Applicable laws and regulations are followed; and

m Reliable, complete, and timely data are maintained and used for
decision making at all levels.

Targeted Financial Management System Structure

S
0
S
Y,
Q
@
3
@
=
=
L))
=
2]
o
<
2]
8,
o
=
0
=
o
=
S
)
<
&,
L))

MOMENTUM

Core Financial

SIUDBIUBIH 8duew.0Juad Juswabeueln

‘ " National
HMS/PMS Finance

{grantes
payments) Center
y {staff payroll)

: Existing external systems
- Existing internal systerms

’ Planned intemal systerms

A-80 FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report




The Corporation's financial systems and control infrastructure is
anchored by the Momentum Financial Management System,
which is the core financial system at the agency. Momentum is
updated with current transactions on a real-time basis. The sys-
tem also features many automated controls that maintain budget-
ary integrity, assure no single individual can issue an unautho-
rized payment, and nearly eliminate the possibility of duplicate
payments. The system also maintains a fully retrievable multi-
year database, which is accessed using reports to produce trial
balance, financial statement and ad-hoc management reports.

The core financial system is interfaced with eSPAN (the grant
and member information management system). The eSPAN sys-
tem also includes eGrants (the agency's internal grant award
management system) and the VISTA payroll system. The
agency's e-SPAN system further interfaces with the Web-Based
Reporting System (WBRS)-the grantee reporting system; WBRS
currently is being integrated into eSPAN. In addition, the core
financial system is interfaced with payment systems at other
agencies:

m Health and Human Services/Program Management Support
(HMS/PMS-the external system that administers our grant pay-
ments and grantee expenditure reports) and

m U.S. Department of Agriculture/National Finance Center (the
processing system for Corporation staff payroll).

The Corporation implemented a pilot Salary Management System
in FY 2004 and plans to integrate a procurement module and a
budget formulation and performance management system with
the core financial system. The agency also is developing a per-
formance management data warehouse that will integrate data
from many agency systems. These systems will interface with
the core financial system. In the future, a Customer Relationship
Management system also will be defined and implemented.

The controls built into eGrants assure that grant applications pro-
ceed through all required reviews and approvals and that estab-
lished processing schedules are maintained. HHS/PMS provides
continual external verification of the validity of our grant award
authorizations and currently authorized grantees. In addition,
the timing and amount of all grant payments are determined by
electronic grantee requests. The payment activity to all grantees
and their respective reported expenditures are electronically
monitored and the financial activities of the larger grantees also
are subject to independent audit under the Single Audit Act and
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OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations.

Basis of FY 2004 Assessment

The Corporation's assessment of management controls is based on
reviews and other assessments of Corporation operations, pro-
grams and grantees including:

» A written assessment of controls by Corporation managers;

» Independent validation of the managers' responses for selected
Corporation units;

» Office of Inspector General (OIG) reports, including the annual
financial statement audit and recent audits of portions of the
Corporation's operations; and

» In-Progress Reviews (IPR) at NCCC campuses. (The IPR is a
focused management control assessment that provides for a self-
assessment by campus staff, followed by an independent review
by headquarters staff. Review items include project manage-
ment, corps member management, and fiscal controls.
Following the on-site review, a written report is prepared and
campus staff develops corrective action plans in response to IPR
recommendations.)
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In addition, management's knowledge of the Corporation's day-
to-day operations plays an important role in ensuring that con-
trols for the Corporation's programs and operations are in place
and working as intended. These controls include the announce-
ment of funds availability for grants, the receipt and evaluation of
applications for financial assistance, and the negotiation and
award of grants (including AmeriCorps member slots), contracts,
and cooperative agreements. New procedures and certification
systems also were implemented in FY 2003 and FY 2004 that
ensure tight management control over the authorization of
AmeriCorps member slots, correcting the problems experienced
in FY 2002 involving a shortfall in the National Service Trust.

Management Control Program

The Corporation's management control program includes provid-
ing appropriate training to managers on the purpose of controls
and how the Corporation develops, implements, assesses, cor-
rects, and reports on controls. The management control program
is conducted through a four-part process:

SIUBIUBIH 8ouUBWIOMSd Juswabeue|

m A self-assessment of controls by Corporation managers using a
structured questionnaire;

= An examination of all completed questionnaires by CFO staff
and an on-site management control assessment to independent-
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ly test selected areas determined to be the highest risk;

m The provision of feedback, including noting areas for improve-
ment at locations reviewed; and

m The documentation of results for analysis and planning future
reviews and improvement efforts.

Under the management control program's risk-based approach,
certain areas of the Corporation's operations are tested annually
(e.g., accounting, grants) and all others on a cyclical basis (at least
once every three years). During FY 2004, the Corporation sur-
veyed 15 operational areas and performed additional on-site veri-
fication testing at 7 of the 15 areas.

Statement of Assurance over Financial Reporting

The Corporation is responsible for assessing the effectiveness of
its internal controls in achieving the following objectives: (1) reli-
ability of financial reporting - transactions are properly recorded,
processed, and summarized to permit the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles; (2) safeguarding of assets against loss from
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition; and (3) compliance
with applicable laws and regulations - transactions are executed
in accordance with (a) laws governing the use of budget authority
and other laws and regulations that could have a direct and mate-
rial effect on the financial statements and (b) any other laws and
regulations or government-wide policies identified by OMB and
Corporation management as being significant and for which com-
pliance can be objectively measured and evaluated. Based on the
Corporation's evaluation, controls in place on September 30,
2004, provided reasonable assurance that the foregoing objectives
were met.

Statement of Assurance over Financial Systems

Under the Federal Financial Management Improvement Act
(FFMIA) and OMB Circular No. A-127, Financial Management
Systems, section 7, the Corporation is responsible for ensuring
that management reporting is based on financial management
systems that comply substantially with three requirements:

m Federal financial management system requirements;
m Applicable Federal accounting standards; and

m The U.S. Government Standard General Ledger at the transac-
tion level.

With the successful operation of the Momentum financial man-
agement system, the Corporation continues to comply with
FFMIA and OMB Circular A-127 requirements. FFMIA also
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requires agency compliance with FISMA. The OIG reported a
single deficiency in the agency's compliance with FISMA, based
on the agency's documentation and follow-up of the systems
assessment. (See discussion under Statement of Assurance over
Agency Financial System Controls below.)

Statement of Assurance over Agency Controls

The Corporation is responsible for assessing the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of its management controls to promote (1)
effective and efficient operations; (2) reliable financial reporting;
and (3) compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In
deciding on the type of assurance to provide, the agency consid-
ers information from senior program and administrative officials
and OIG. Management is precluded from concluding that the
agency's internal control is effective (unqualified statement of
assurance), if there are one or more material weaknesses.

The Corporation has maintained an outstanding record of compli-
ance with all applicable laws and regulations governing its sys-
tems and provides qualified assurance that the agency's financial
reporting and systems controls comply with the requirements of
the FFMIA and FMFIA. In addition, as required by the Federal
Information Security Management Act (FISMA), the Corporation
performed a self-assessment of its major systems using the
National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) ASSET
tool in September 2003 and noted no significant issues. The
OIG's auditor does not feel that proper follow-up and documen-
tation was done as part of this effort; the Corporation disagrees
with this as a significant deficiency. The Corporation referred
this issue to OMB, as part of its FISMA submission, for OMB's
resolution. Additionally, the Corporation completed its 2004
testing and evaluation of its major systems using the NIST ASSET
tool again in September 2004 and expects to complete new
Certification and Accreditation reports for all of its major systems
by January 31, 2005, resolving the OIG finding.
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OMB Circular 123, Management Accountability and Control,
requires that matters identified as a significant deficiency by OIG
in its FISMA report be included in this report as a material weak-
ness. As a result, the Corporation is providing qualified assurance
on its agency controls. Based on the Corporation's evaluation,
except for the FISMA test and evaluation documentation and fol-
low-up issue, the Corporation controls in place on September 30,
2004, provided reasonable assurance that the foregoing objectives
were met.
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Improper Payments

The Improper Payments Information Act (IPIA) requires the
Corporation to identify and report on significant payment pro-
grams that are susceptible to improper payments. The Act
defines improper payments as significant to a program if the
amount of annual improper payments exceeds both 2.5 percent of
total annual program payments and $10 million. If an agency
identifies that it has significant improper payments it must devel-
op statistically valid estimates of improper payment rates and
provide detailed information on its improper payment detection,
tracking, mitigation, and recovery efforts.

The Corporation identified 13 payment programs, as defined by
IPIA, and reviewed each of them to determine which, if any,
were susceptible to significant improper payments. Only seven
of the 13 programs made payments in FY 2003 that exceeded $10
million.

The two largest Corporation payment programs are the Domestic
Volunteer Service Act and National and Community Service Act
grant programs. Together the annual payments for these pro-
grams amount to about 66 percent of all the Corporation's FY
2003 payments. As grant programs with payments administered
by the Department of Health and Human Services Payment
Management System (HHS/PMS), there are numerous internal
and external controls making improper payments highly unlikely.
For example awards go through multiple levels of review and
approval before obligations are created and transmitted to
HHS/PMS. These payments are all requested by authorized
grantees and validated and disbursed by HHS/PMS. Moreover,
the receipt and use of grant funds are monitored by the
Corporation and in many cases also are subject to independent
audits under the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations.

Based on the Corporation's analysis, no programs are susceptible
to significant improper payments as defined under IPIA and,
therefore, additional testing, analysis and reporting specific to
improper payments were not performed. However, most of the
Corporation's payment processes were reviewed as part of the
Management Control Program discussed above.
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Audit Results

The Corporation, for the fifth straight year, received an unquali-
fied audit opinion, with only one reportable condition related to
grants management. This reflects the agency's ongoing commit-
ment to sound financial management.

Corporation Audit Resuits Since Inception

: : CorporaﬁenAndltReuhaSmeelmphnn S R e
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Status of Grants Management Reportable Condition

The Corporation remains concerned with the continuing
reportable condition related to grants management cited in the
FY 2004 audit. As an agency that spends most of its appropria-
tions on grants, the Corporation continues to implement manage-
ment reforms to ensure the agency's grant-making and monitor-
ing operations provide for the accountable use of Federal funds.
While the Corporation has made tremendous progress, further
management improvements can help address the specific prob-
lems identified by the Inspector General. Some of the actions
necessary to address these problems will require additional
resources. However, many have and will be taken within current

budget levels.

Corporation Management Control Issues*
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The audit report notes that while the Corporation's program
offices have taken steps to implement the recommendations dis-
cussed in the prior year's internal control report, the
Corporation's monitoring activities require further improvements
in order to provide adequate controls over grantees' activities.
Specifically, the audit noted that all the required monitoring vis-
its for State Commissions and National Direct grantees did not
occur. Additionally, the audit noted improvements that need to
be made to the risk-assessment process in order to adequately
document both the criteria used in assessing risk, as well as docu-
menting the steps performed for reaching conclusions on risk
rankings. In addition, although the number of site visits con-
ducted by Senior Corps program officers increased to the point of
having visited substantially all of its grantees, documentation was
often inadequate with regard to the scope of testing and specific
procedures performed by program officers in reaching their con-
clusions regarding the grantees visited.

The auditor's report made five recommendations, as follows, to
improve the Corporation's monitoring of grantees:

m The Corporation’s risk assessment should be based on concis-
tently implemented criteria. The assessment should include the
reasons justifying a risk rating and how the conclusion was
reached. Documentation to support each risk assessment should
be maintained to prevent the loss of institutional knowledge.

n After completion of the assessment tool, any further discussion
by Corporation management, regarding the selection and pri-
ororitization of AmeriCorps*State grantees for monitoring visits
should be adequately documented.

m The Corporation should prioritize monitoring visits based on a
risk-based selection process, maintain a site visit travel schedule
based on risk, and monitor progress made in completing these
visits.

m The Corporation should develop monitoring policies to docu-
ment what constitutes an acceptable, substantive review of
grantees, in lieu of performing site visits. These activities
include, but are not limited to, desk reviews, technical assis-
tance, training, OIG reviews and audits, grantee audits, and
other relevant monitoring activities performed by grant man-
agers, program offices, the OIG, and external contractors.

m The Corporation should improve coordination between grant
managers, program offices, and the OIG. The Corporation has
created a new position of Director of Grants Oversight and
Monitoring, which should be filled as soon as possible. The
Director of Grants Oversight and Monitoring should establish
consistent policies and procedures across Corporation programs
and coordinate all monitoring efforts.
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The Corporation will implement the OIG’s recommendations. In
addition, the Corporation established an Award Oversight and
Monitoring Council comprised of senior staff. The Council's
mission is to ensure that the Corporation exercises uniformly
excellent financial, administrative and programmatic award over-
sight across its programs and supports awardees success through
effective compliance monitoring, training and technical assis-
tance. The initial tasks of the Council are to develop and approve
a position description for the new Director of Oversight and
Monitoring Position and develop the FY 2005 oversight and
monitoring plan.

Further discussion of this finding, related auditor recommenda-
tions, and the agency's related progress and plans is provided in
the section entitled, "Corporation Response to the Significant
Management Challenges Identified by the Inspector General.”
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Transitioning to a More
Performance-Iinformed

Organization

The Corporation has made significant progress during the 2004
fiscal year towards integrating planning, budgeting and perform-
ance. We have adopted the ‘logic model’ framework and method-
ology in order to more explicitly link resources to results. An
integral part of this methodology is the incorporation of perform-
ance measures. In 2004, as part of our development of program
logic models, the Corporation developed new, ambitious perform-
ance measures and targets. By incorporating these new measures,
which are still being refined, we hope to enhance the capacity of
the Corporation to manage its resources both effectively and effi-
ciently, and sharpen our focus to achieve results.

During this year of transition, we have organized our FY 2006
Budget Estimate and Performance Plan around four new goals
and 14 new strategies. As the Corporation looks forward, we have
organized the performance measures cited in our 2004 Budget
and Performance Plan according to these new goals and strate-
gies. We have also included selected new performance measures
developed in the past year to create a more robust performance
section.

For our FY 2006 Performance Plan, we have made target-setting
a priority, and will report on Corporation program performance
in relation to performance targets (which are currently under
development) starting in our FY 2006 Report.

Although our FY 2004 Performance Plan did not establish per-
formance targets, we hope the following chapters provide a com-
prehensive picture of our programs’ performance, and mark the
progress we've made to date in better demonstrating results.

Organization of the Program Performance Section

As with our FY 2006 Budget and Performance Plan, each chapter
in the Program Performance section of the Corporation’s 2004
Performance and Accountability Report is organized around
these new goals and strategies. The first subsection focuses on the
performance of our five core service programs: AmeriCorps*State
and National, AmeriCorps*NCCC, AmeriCorps*VISTA, Learn &
Serve America, and the Senior Corps. Following a brief descrip-
tion of the program, each chapter provides a narrative analysis of
the results achieved towards each of the Corporation goals and
strategies. This is followed by a brief overview of the findings of
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program evaluations completed during FY 2004. At the end of each
chapter is a comprehensive listing of the program’s GPRA performance
measures as well as select new measures developed in FY 2004 (these
measures are identified in footnotes). The second subsection discusses
the results and performance of other Corporation activities outside our
core programs.

Data Quality

According to the criteria specified by OMB on performance data relia-
bility and completeness, the Corporation considers the performance
data in this report reliable but incomplete. The Corporation has in cer-
tain cases not reported on performance measures cited in the FY 2004
Performance Plan when other, similar measures were available or
when the data were too costly to obtain. In each case, we have provid-
ed specific explanations at the end of each program chapter. The
Corporation is still in the early stages of developing a complete and
robust set of performance measures; however, we are continually
improving our ability to demonstrate results.
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Limitations

While the Corporation has reasonable confidence that the data con-
tained in this report accurately reflect the performance of the agency,
there are several limitations to using the Corporation’s data systems for
performance reporting. The Corporation is a highly decentralized
agency, and responsibility for collecting and reporting performance
data often resides with outside sources at the state and local levels.
Most of the data systems used by the Corporation derive their data
from reports provided by these outside sources, including states,
grantees, subgrantees, and members of national and community service
programs. Although some of these reports are subject to corroboration
through monitoring of local program performance by Corporation rep-
resentatives, and the Corporation has a strategy for monitoring cover-
age that includes site visits, program evaluations, and audits, not all
reports from outside sources are subject to external corroboration.

Data Certification

The focus of the Corporation’s data quality efforts has been on assess-
ing the internal data system controls and their effect on the accuracy
of the performance information. Although the Corporation does not
independently verify or validate data received from outside sources,
the data are managed appropriately and our procedures for analyzing
and reporting performance statistics are replicable. In addition, to
ensure the Corporation is reporting data accurately, program managers
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and data managers are required to certify that the procedures
used to analyze and report data received from outside sources are
appropriate and replicable. As part of this certification, program
managers and data managers certify that they are able to provide
the source or sources for the data, the names of the person or
organization conducting any analysis needed to produce the
result, copies of all tables and computer output showing final tab-
ulations, forms used to collect the data, and a description of any
steps taken to ensure that the data are reported accurately.

OIG Audit Findings on Performance Indicators

A recent audit report by the Office of Inspector General made
several recommendations regarding the Corporation’s perform-
ance measurement systems.! Overall, the auditors concluded that
data were “reasonably accurate” based on their assessment of the
database controls and their effect on the accuracy of the perform-
ance information. The audit did not test the controls over data-
base input from sources outside of the Corporation. The assess-
ment confirmed what was already understood within the
Corporation: the quality of the data varies based on the degree of
decentralization and the ability of programs to assess information
reported by outside sources. While some Corporation programs
rely on self-reported and unaudited data, the Corporation suc-
cessfully initiated new performance measurement and bench-
marking systems in Senior Corps, AmeriCorps, and Learn and
Serve America to collect information and report annually on the
performance of programs.

How the Corporation Evaluates its Programs

Evaluation at the Corporation is the responsibility of the
Department of Research and Policy Development (RPD). RPD’s
mission is to develop and cultivate knowledge that will enhance
the mission of the Corporation and of national and community
service programs. RPD is responsible for conducting high-quali-
ty, rigorous evaluations, research and policy analysis, and provid-
ing the Corporation’s executive management, OMB, the
Congress, the nonprofit sector and the public with performance
information on national and community service. RPD is also
responsible for new program development and special grant ini-
tiatives.

The Corporation’s vision for evaluation is to:

» Conduct high quality, rigorous social science evaluation

Corporation for National and Community Service
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research designed to measure the impact of the Corporation’s
programs and shape policy decisions;

» Encourage a culture of performance and accountability in
national and community service programs;

» Provide national information on volunteering, civic engage-
ment, and volunteer management in nonprofit organizations;

m Assist in the development and assessment of new initiatives and
innovative demonstration projects designed to shape future pol-
icy decisions.

The research and evaluation efforts of RPD are an important part
of the Corporation’s efforts to provide information on program
performance and manage to accountability. These efforts also
provide national level data on volunteering and volunteer man-
agement in America’s nonprofit organizations.

°
‘
o

Q
1
o
3
°
®
‘
=
)
*
3
)
S
(o]
o

Our evaluations and research efforts are designed to assess the
following research questions:

= What are the impacts of national and community service pro-
grams on:

0 Members and service participants?
o Nonprofit and community organizations?
o Communities and service recipients?

» How can the Corporation’s program designs be improved?

» How can the Corporation strengthen effective volunteer lever-
aging?

= What are the national patterns of volunteering and civic
engagement?

m How can the Corporation use evaluations and research to man-
age to accountability?

Evaluation Highlights

Current Population Survey Supplement on Volunteerism

In partnership with the Census Bureau and the Bureau of Labor
Statistics (BLS) at the U.S. Department of Labor, this effort result-
ed in national data on the “supply side” of the market for volun-
teerism: the supply of current and potential volunteers. The
study includes information on the frequency and intensity of vol-
unteering, the types of organizations where individuals volun-
teer, the volunteer activities performed, the ways individuals
access volunteer opportunities, and the perceived barriers to vol-
unteerism. For example, approximately 63.8 million people (28.8
percent) volunteered between September 2002 and September
2003, representing a significant increase over the 59.8 million
volunteers (27.4 percent) for the previous year. The data also

20uew.Jo4iad weldboldd 03 uoidnpoJu|

B-94 FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report



indicate there is great potential to increase volunteering in
America. Of the individuals who did not volunteer in 2003, 75
percent indicated one or more factors would motivate them to
volunteer. For example, 6.3 million non-volunteering Americans
indicated that having more information on available opportuni-
ties would motivate them to volunteer. Combined with basic
CPS labor market and demographic data, RPD has created a pow-
erful benchmark from which to track and measure our progress
in expanding volunteerism and to provide national data on vol-
unteering in America.

Volunteer Management Capacity Survey

To complement this effort, RPD completed a Volunteer
Management Capacity Survey to provide national data on the
volunteer recruitment and management practices of organizations
in the nonprofit sector, as well as valuable information on how
Corporation programs can effectively mobilize volunteers. This
effort measures the “demand side” of the market for volun-
teerism: the capacity of nonprofit and charitable organizations to
recruit, manage and retain volunteers. Findings from the 2003
study indicated that more than nine in ten charities benefit from
their volunteers in areas such as increased quality and scope of
services, cost savings, and public support. At the same time, the
study suggested that a lack of investment in volunteer manage-
ment practices prevents many organizations from realizing the
full benefits of their volunteers. The study also found charities
screening and matching volunteers with organizational tasks,
offering training and development opportunities for volunteers,
using volunteers to recruit other volunteers, and providing recog-
nition activities for volunteers demonstrate higher retention rates
than charities that have not adopted these practices.
Demonstrating the value of faith-based partnerships, charities
that collaborate or partner with religious organizations reported a
greater volume of volunteers and greater organizational benefits
from volunteers.

National Performance Measurement Benchmarking

In 2004, RPD completed the first phase of The National
Performance Measurement Benchmarking, which provides annu-
al data on the performance of the Corporation’s programs at the
national level. The majority of the outcome data for AmeriCorps,
Senior Corps and Learn and Serve America in the Corporation’s
budget justification and performance and accountability report
are a direct result of this research effort. For example, the find-
ings suggest that 82 percent of former AmeriCorps members are
actively volunteering in their communities, and 49 percent of
organizations working with AmeriCorps leveraged additional
community volunteers to increase their capacity and sustainabili-

Corporation for National and Community Service
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ty. The data also demonstrate that Senior Corps volunteers are
less socially isolated and more connected to their friends (more
than 83%) and their communities (more than 58%), and 75 per-
cent of Learn and Serve America grantees have a majority of the
characteristics of high-quality service-learning programs. In
assisting organizations to improve their capacity to respond to
disasters and emergency situations, Corporation programs helped
78 percent of AmeriCorps organizations receiving emergency and
disaster preparedness training to become more prepared to
respond by conducting emergency drills, preparing emergency
kits, changing organization operations, and related disaster pre-
paredness activities. As part of our efforts to improve the trans-
parency of national performance reporting, RPD is also in the
final stages of a project designed to disaggregate the Corporation’s
performance data for states and national grantees.
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Longitudinal Study of AmeriCorps Member Outcomes

RPD continued its efforts to report on the impact of AmeriCorps
on members in the Longitudinal Study of AmeriCorps Member
Outcomes, and results will be available in December 2004. This
study is designed to assess the long-term attitudinal and behav-
ioral impacts of participation in AmeriCorps on members’ civic
values and engagement, education, employment, life skills, and
social attitudes and behaviors. The study includes a nationally
representative sample of more than 2,000 AmeriCorps members
from 109 AmeriCorps*State and National programs and from
three (of five) AmeriCorps*NCCC regional campuses, and similar
numbers in the matched comparison group. The study compares
changes in the outcomes of members to individuals not in
AmeriCorps, controlling for interest in national service, member
and family demographics, and prior civic engagement.

Parent Drug Corps Evaluation

RPD also initiated several new evaluations of national and com-
munity service programs. The Parent Drug Corps Evaluation will
describe the implementation of the Parent Drug Corps program
and use a random assignment evaluation design to evaluate its
impact on prevention of and reduction in substance use among
children aged 18 or younger.

20uew.Jo4iad weldboldd 03 uoidnpoJu|

The Study of AmeriCorps*VISTA’s Impact on 40 years of
Volunteers

The Study of AmeriCorps*VISTA’s Impact on 40 years of
Volunteers will identify the long-term civic engagement, educa-
tion, and employment outcomes of AmeriCorps*VISTA volun-
teers serving between 1964 and 1990.

B-96 FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report



Evaluation of AmeriCorps Tutoring Programs

RPD initiated the pilot phase of the Evaluation of AmeriCorps
Tutoring Programs, a random-assignment evaluation to assess the
impact of AmeriCorps tutoring programs on youth and identify
programmatic factors related to achievement.

See Appendix A: 2004 Evaluation Highlights for a full listing of
FY 2004 activities of the Office of Research and Policy
Development.
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Use of Non-Federal Parties

In producing the FY 2004 Performance and Accountability
Report, the Corporation received consulting assistance from
Management Systems International, and document production
assistance from MacroSys Research and Technology, Inc.

1 XPMG LLP. May 18, 2001. Audit of Controls Over the Corporation for
National and Community Service's Key Performance Indicators and
Accomplishment Statistics. OIG Audit Report Number 01-28.
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AmeriCorps*State and National

About the Program

Created in 1993, the primary mission of the AmeriCorps*State
and National program is to provide financial support through
grants to non-government and government entities sponsoring
national service programs that meet critical community needs in
education, public safety, health, and the environment. One-third
of State and National grant funds are distributed by a population-
based formula to Governor-appointed state service commissions,
which in turn make grants to local nonprofit organizations and
public agencies. One percent of program funds are set aside for
tribal entities; and one percent of program funds are set aside for
U.S. territories. Roughly 25 percent of grant funds are awarded to
national nonprofits operating national service projects in two or
more states. The remaining approximately 40 percent of grant
funds are awarded to state service commissions on a competitive
basis to fund local nonprofit and public entities operating local
community service projects.

State and National grants have been used to enable sponsoring
organizations to manage and fund about 70,000 AmeriCorps
members per year to provide intensive services in communities
across the country. State and National AmeriCorps members
serve through more than 900 nonprofit organizations, public
agencies, and faith-based and other community organizations.
Members tutor and mentor youth, build affordable housing, teach
computer skills, clean parks and streams, run after-school pro-
grams, and help communities respond to disasters. In addition,
these trained and dedicated people enable nonprofits to accom-
plish more by helping them to recruit, train, and make more
effective use of community volunteers.

$6 533 [ Formula grants to states

$117

W Competitive grants to states

| Competitive grants to national non-
profits

M Education award program

W Set-aside for U.S. territories

| Set-aside for Indian tribes

Corporation for National and Community Service
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The premise of the State and National Program is that communi-
ties and community institutions, whether public agencies or pri-
vate organizations, can best identify community needs and devel-
op appropriate responses to those needs. The Corporation’s sup-
port for community-based solutions serves to leverage additional
financial and in-kind support, making local efforts more sustain-
able. Equally important, State and National support is designed
to increase the involvement and contribution of community vol-
unteers to solve community problems. The State and National
program is an effective way to help communities strengthen their
ability to respond to local concerns.
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Interest in Americorps*State and National continues to grow —
both among younger Americans who want to serve and among
communities and community organizations that recognize that
the Program can be a valuable partner in the effort to meet criti-
cal local needs. In the 2004-05 program year, for example,
AmeriCorps*State and National has awarded grants for about
70,000 members to:

m Serve over 2 million children and youth in education-related
programs and continue to advance the Nation’s goal of ensuring
that all children can read by the third grade; and

» Recruit and train more than 600,000 community volunteers,
reflecting the Corporation’s goal of increasing member leverag-
ing.

Program Performance

Goal 1: Meet human needs through diverse, high-quality
service programs

Strategy 1.1 Leverage service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other
human needs.

Since 1994, more than 400,000 Americans have served in pro-
grams supported by the State and National program. Over the
years, AmeriCorps*State and National members have served in
every state and territory, in rural and urban communities, and in
tribal communities. In 2004, AmeriCorps*State and National
members contributed more than 30 million hours of service to
their communities, meeting educational, environmental, public
safety, and other human needs.

[euoileN pue a3elys.sdio)lswy

As part of our National Performance Benchmarking efforts, we
surveyed AmeriCorps grantee organizations to measure the
impact of the AmeriCorps members to the projects with which
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they served. 84 percent of these organizations responded that
these projects were “very successful.” 75 percent said that
AmeriCorps assistance had increased “by a considerable amount”
the number of end beneficiaries served. And 83 percent reported
that AmeriCorps members helped their organization either “con-
siderably” or “moderately” in leveraging additional volunteers.

Strategy 1.2 Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability.
The State and National program’s success depends largely on the
performance of its grantees in creating and managing projects to
meet community needs. The Corporation closely tracks the per-
formance of grantees in such areas as recruiting and sustaining
members through their terms of service.

Strategy 1.3 Diversify the national and community service infra-
structure.

The State and National program is taking additional steps to
diversify its funded partners, and specifically to increase the
number of grants to under-represented types of organizations.
The current thrust is to focus outreach on increasing the number
of rural programs, programs sponsored by faith-based and other
small community-based organizations, and programs carrying out
homeland security activities. Beginning in FY 2005, the
Corporation will set a baseline for these types of organizations
and programs.

Goal 2: Improve the lives of national service participants
Strategy 2.2 Expand educational and economic opportunities for
members.

One important benefit of national service for members complet-
ing their terms of service is access to an education award that can
be used toward current educational expenses or to pay off quali-
fied higher education debt. Education award usage has increased
since the creation of the AmeriCorps program from 68 percent to
the current rate of 75 percent. This indicator reports on the per-
centage of members who use their award within the seven years
allotted following the end of service. This improvement would
therefore suggest some success in our efforts to strengthen out-
reach to former members to encourage them to use their benefits.
The Corporation is strengthening its communication with mem-
bers at the end of service to better inform them of education
award parameters, and this should be reflected in continued
improvement in this indicator in the years ahead.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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As part of our National Performance Benchmarking effort, we
recently asked former AmeriCorps members about their
AmeriCorps service experience, including how their service
helped in their current job, educational pursuits, or other com-
munity service activities. 63 percent stated that it helped “to a
great extent” and another 30 percent said it helped “to a moderate
extent.” Only 6 percent responded “to a small extent” or “not at
all.” Former members were also very positive about their overall
service experience, with 90 percent citing their service experi-
ence was either “excellent” (49 percent) or “good” (41 percent).
92 percent said they are “very likely” (34 percent) or “somewhat
likely” (58 percent) to recommend AmeriCorps service to a friend
or family member. 81 percent of former members said they have
done volunteer work since completing their service.

Goal 3: Strengthen the infrastructure, capacity, and social
capital of communities across America

Strategy 3.4 Increase service programs and participants in faith-
based and small community organization initiatives.

Supporting faith-based and community-based programs contin-
ued to be a priority for AmeriCorps*State and National in FY
2004. AmeriCorps*State and National continues to reach out to
and partner with faith-based and other community-based organi-
zations to expand their opportunities to help address community
needs. During FY 2004 over $25 million was awarded to 47 faith-
based organizations (community-based statistics are still being
compiled). Members provide services to children and youth,
build houses, and support health care needs through faith-based
and community-based organizations.

Evaluation Findings and Plan

Longitudinal Study of AmeriCorps Member Serving Country and
Community:

This study is designed to assess the long-term attitudinal and
behavioral impacts of participation in AmeriCorps on members’
civic values and engagement, education, employment, life skills,
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AmeriCorps: Changing a
Life for the Better

Xavier Vasquez serves with the
Safe Neighborhood
AmeriCorps Program in
Bridgeport, Conn. When he
was 13 he was charged with
robbery and assault but now,
a high school senior, he just
received the first-ever
Bellinger Youth Award from
the Regional Youth Alcohol
and Substance Abuse
Program, honoring a young
person who has overcome
obstacles in life and made a
commitment to community
service. After a year serving
with an after-school program
for a performing arts group,
Vasquez is in his second year
of AmeriCorps, at the
Bridgeport Area Youth Ministry
helping youth with comput-
ers. He plans to use his educa-
tion award to study electrical
engineering in college.
Source: National Service News
195



and social attitudes and behaviors. The study includes a nation-
ally representative sample of 2,233 AmeriCorps members from
109 AmeriCorps*State and National programs and from three (of
five) AmeriCorps"NCCC regional campuses enrolling in the 1999-
2000 program year, and similar numbers in the comparison
group. The study compares changes in the outcomes of members
to individuals not in AmeriCorps, controlling for interest in
national service, member and family demographics, and prior
civic engagement. Results will be available in December of 2004.

National Performance Benchmarking Initiative:
AmeriCorps*State and National is currently collecting survey data
from grantees, members completing their service, and end benefi-
ciaries of AmeriCorps programs. Among other things, these sur-
veys regularly measure:
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» Grantee satisfaction with the effectiveness of their AmeriCorps
members in meeting specific community needs;

m Effectiveness of programs in terms of the experiential, educa-
tional, and workplace benefits for the members themselves;

» Impact of AmeriCorps on individuals, families and communi-
ties.

AmeriCorps*State and National
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o AmeriCorps*State and National Key Performance Measures
*
8 Actuals Goal
o Perf M
“g’ SIelElnee izl FY  FY2002 FY2003 FY2004  FY
2001 2004
g Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education, public safety, environmental, home-
z land security, and other needs
2 Number of members enrolled annually. Source: State 59,377 48,146 35,844 56,824
3 and National Program data "
g Average percent of expected service time completed 90.9% N/A N/A Data will be
8 by members. Source: National Service Trust 2 ;8’8315’;&';&
Percentage of members completing their term of 75.7% 80.1% 78.7% 91%
service. Source: National Service Trust 3
Number of members serving in organizations focusing N/A N/A N/A 22,650
on children and youth. Source: State and National
Program data 4
Percentage of service recipients reporting that they N/A N/A N/A DataI Vtv>i|” be
. . f . avallaple In
received high quality services. 2005 Report
Number of member service years.*> N/A N/A N/A Data will be
available in
2005 Report
Strategy 1.2: Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability
> Percentage of state commissions reviewed that met all N/A N/A N/A Data will be
= critical performance elements within 6 months of ;8’8;.)'3'5"6 "
review. 6 epo
(D .
%- Number of volunteers resulting from State and N/A 256,170 529,389 Data will be
o National Program activity. Source: State and National 238’3'5”56'% o
8 Program data
N Percentage of programs meeting established end-out- N/A N/A N/A DataI er)illl be
* available in
ﬁ come performance measures. 2005 Report
'Q_>'_ Number of grants approved and funded. Source: 145 145 127 134
oD eGrants*
%’ Average cost sharing rate of grantees. Source: 44% 42% 44% 44%
o eGrants*
5 Strategy 2.2: Expand educational, economic and other opportunities for service participants
.
g Education award usage. Source: National Service 68% 72% 75% 75%
Q Trust”?
Percentage of members increasing their level of civic N/A N/A N/A Data will be
engagement because of State and National Program. 8 238’3'5'356",2(')’&
Percentage of members indicating that their service N/A N/A N/A 93%

experience influenced ("greatly” or “moderately”) their
career, education, or professional goals. Source:
Corporation National Performance Benchmarking.9

Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-based and other community-based

organizations

Number of members serving in faith-based organiza- N/A N/A N/A Data will be
tions. Source: eGrants 238/&'_)'3542&
Number of members serving in small community- N/A N/A N/A Data will be
based organizations. Source: eGrants 10 2%’3?%%&
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* These are new indicators. Other indicators are from the FY 04 budget and
Performance Plan.

1 This is an estimate based on the historic fill rate of about 85 percent for
AmeriCorps*State and National slots authorized in a fiscal year. Data for FY 2003 is actu-
al enrollees to date; some programs are still enrolling members for FY 2003 slots, so
this number is still increasing.

2 This is calculated as the actual service time of those who exited the program during
the fiscal year divided by the planned service time of this group. For most members
the planned service time is 1,700 hours.

3 For members who complete service during a program year, divide the number of
members who met requirements for an education award by the total number who
ended service. If the average is 70%, approximately seven of every ten members who
left the program during the year earned an education award. For FY 2004, these data
are incomplete and the percentage can be expected to fall as members get further into
their terms of service.

4 This is the total number of Americorps member slots in grants awarded in FY 2004 to
organizations that identified working with youth and children as one of their focus
areas.

5 A method for calculating this figure is being developed so that these data can be
reported beginning in FY 2005.

6 This is a new indicator since the review process has changed from reviewing all com-
missions each year to conducting a more in-depth review of approximately one-third
each year. Given the allowance of 6 months to come into compliance, reporting on this
indicator cannot begin until FY 05.

7 The current year usage rate compares the amount of the education awards members
earned seven years earlier with the amount of those awards used in the subsequent
seven-year period (a member has up to seven years to claim the award). For example,
the 2004 rate compares the amount of the education awards members earned in 1997
to the amount of those awards members used in the seven-year period from 1997-
2004. The measure is most meaningfully viewed as an indicator which informs a long-
term strategy towards maximizing the effectiveness of the education award.

8 The Corporation has gathered preliminary data from members after their service was
completed. At this stage it is unclear if these data can provide reliable information on
the longer term impact of service on the member.

9 This is the baseline for this indicator.

11 The Corporation is developing a definition of “small community organization” to be
used across all programs and will be able to begin reporting these data in FY 05.
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Performance Indicators That Are Being Discontinued

State and National—Discontinued Performance Measures and Explanations

Performance Measure Explanation

Number of state commission meeting all
of the state administrative standards cri-
teria.

Number of state commissions meeting
state administrative standards criteria for
utilizing appropriate financial and pro-
gram management systems

Number of national direct grantees
meeting standards for utilizing appropri-
ate financial and program management
systems.

This performance indicator is being dropped since the
Corporation has changed its protocol for reviewing the per-
formance of state commissions. It has been replaced by a
new indicator.

This performance indicator is being dropped since the
Corporation has changed its protocol for reviewing the per-
formance of state commissions. It has been replaced by a
new indicator.

This performance indicator is being dropped since the
Corporation has changed its protocol for reviewing the per-
formance of state commissions. It has been replaced by a
new indicator.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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AmeriCorps*NCCC and Montana Conservation Corps
members posing with a Lake Wales, Florida Family whose
home sustained damage from a recent hurricane.
AmeriCorps members installed the tarp on the roof to
prevent further rain damage until contractors could con-
duct permanent repairs.



AmeriCorps*NCCC

About the Program

AmeriCorps*National Civilian Community Corps (NCCC) is a
full-time, team-based residential program for men and women
ages 18-24. Drawn from the successful models of the Civilian
Conservation Corps of the 1930s and the U.S. military, the NCCC
is built on the belief that civic responsibility is an inherent duty
of all citizens, and that national service programs work effective-
ly with local communities to address pressing needs.

The mission of the NCCC is to strengthen communities and
develop leaders through direct team-based national and commu-
nity service. In partnership with nonprofit organizations, state
and local agencies, and community and faith-based groups, mem-
bers complete service projects in all 50 states and some U.S. terri-
tories. Members receive a $4,000 annual living allowance, plus
room and board. At the successful completion of their service,
members receive an education award of $4,725.

The NCCC offers young Americans an opportunity to give back
to their communities, develop a work ethic and citizenship skills,
learn to live cooperatively with people from different back-
grounds, and make lasting changes in communities. Organized
into teams, members serve in local communities on projects that
are proposed by nonprofit and local government organizations.
All members are trained in CPR, first aid, and mass care, and can
be deployed immediately to support disaster relief efforts in coop-
eration with the American Red Cross and FEMA.

NCCC members live and train at five regional campuses. Three
of the campuses occupy closed military bases in Charleston,
South Carolina; Denver, Colorado; and Sacramento, California.
Of the two other campuses, one is based at a medical facility for
veterans in Perry Point, Maryland and the other at a municipal
facility in Washington, D.C.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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NCCC Campuses and Corporation Cluster Offices, State Offices, and Service
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Program Performance

During this past year the Corporation has undertaken a compre-
hensive review of how it measures success for the NCCC pro-
gram. NCCC is unique among Corporation programs in that the
recruitment of members, planning of activities (“projects”), and
day-to-day management of the program and the campuses on
which the members reside is handled directly by Corporation
staff. It is also the Corporation’s most flexible program, as it is
designed to respond to direct requests for support from partner
organizations. NCCC specializes in responding to urgent needs
as a result of natural disasters and critical, often very short term,
assistance to communities.

Success of the program is essentially measured along four lines:

= Impact on the capacity of the partner organization with whom
a project has been undertaken.

= Impact on the AmeriCorps member in terms of increasing his
or her educational and employment prospects.

= Prompt response and effective adaptation to national priorities
(e.g. homeland security).

n Efficient use of member service through cost effective planning
and management.

Goal 1: Meet human needs through diverse, high-quality
service programs

Strategy 1.1 Leverage service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other
human needs

In FY 2004, NCCC was instrumental in enabling a range of
organizations to address unmet needs in local communities and
provide effective services to project clients. In FY 2004, NCCC
engaged 1,187 members on 591 projects in all 50 states. Nearly
90 percent of program participants completed the program,
investing 1.8 million service hours. Members served with about
16,000 volunteers, or about 15 volunteers per member. In NCCC,
projects are identified under one of five issue areas. The distribu-
tion of NCCC projects by type within each of the regions is
shown below:

Corporation for National and Community Service
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o Distribution of NCCC Projects by Region and Type

‘

8 Regions Issue Areas

- Disaster Education Environment Unmet Public Total

Q Relief Human Safety

3 Needs

g Western 2 25 40 64 5 136

}, Region

o Central Region 7 21 40 61 0 129

§ Northeast 17 7 21 50 0 95

g Region

(0] Southeast 0 31 56 63 1 151
Region
Capltal Reglon 4 11 29 35 1 80
Total 30 95 186 273 7 591

In FY 2004, NCCC was particularly active in disaster relief, espe-
cially in the Southeast where a historic number of storms hit.
Altogether, teams served on 36 projects that addressed homeland
security needs. Examples of disaster relief and homeland securi-
ty activities included the following:

m Conducted initial attack on small wildfires in northern
California alongside Forest Service members;

m Assisted southern Californians who were evacuated due to
wildfires, and provided mass care and family support services;

D22JN.SdJodlBWY

m Staffed American Red Cross call centers to respond to citizens’
requests for assistance when hurricanes touched down along
the East Coast;

» Helped conduct a disaster relief simulation of a plane crash to
test local response capabilities in Colorado;

m Assisted families in Kentucky and West Virginia displaced by
flooding, and helped them to recover valuables and remove
debris from their homes; and

» Provided recovery support to communities in Maryland
impacted by Hurricane Isabelle, in cooperation with county
government and the Maryland Interfaith Recovery Team.

Although disaster relief and homeland security are organizational
priorities, NCCC members continue to provide a variety of serv-
ices to local communities in partnership with community-based
and other organizations and institutions. Accomplishments in
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AmeriCorps: Building
Homes with Habitat for
Humanity

Habitat for Humantiy engages
600 AmeriCorps members
each year in helping people in
need of shelter build or reno-
vate simple, decent, afford-
able houses. AmeriCorps
members serve full-time for
an 11-month term, complet-
ing at least 1,700 service
hours. They carry out a range
of tasks, from directly con-
structing and rebuilding
homes and providing crew
leadership to recruiting and
supervising volunteers. Since
1994, AmeriCorps members
have served 1.5 million hours
and have worked alongside
300,000 Habitat volunteers to
build more than 2,500 houses
that otherwise would not have
been built. Habitat’'s founder
Millard Fuller said, “The conti-
nuity, leadership, and knowl-
edge that AmeriCorps mem-
bers provide allow us to
increase both the number of
volunteers we are able to
mobilize effectively and the
overall productivity of our
efforts.

FY 2004 included:

= Tutored or mentored 25,000 children and youth;

m Constructed or repaired over 500 homes for low-income fami-
lies;

m Built or restored more than 550 miles of trail in national parks;

m Supported 73 summer camps to improve the infrastructure and
increase the capacity to engage more youths; and

» Assisted nearly 1,000 senior citizens and veterans.

The team-based program model results in a high volume rapid-
response service that is extremely cost-effective. For example,
following the hurricanes this past year in the southeast, 545
NCCC members were deployed at the request of FEMA and the
American Red Cross to assist citizens. A group of 85 members
worked with the Christian Contractors Association to make tem-
porary repairs to over 1,500 homes. This included installing tem-
porary roof tarps that enabled families to return to their homes.
Based on prevailing market rates this effort was valued at $5 mil-
lion, roughly 20 percent of the total NCCC budget. Put another
way, NCCC program costs for these members during the disaster
deployment were less than one percent of the value of the servic-
es that they provided.

Goal 2: Improve the lives of national service participants
Strategy 2.1 Increase the diversity of participants within and
among service programs

In FY 2004 the NCCC restructured the national office and creat-
ed a new position—recruitment coordinator—to provide
increased emphasis on recruitment efforts overall, including spe-
cial attention to applicant diversity. Working in collaboration
with youth- serving organizations and higher education institu-
tions, the NCCC expects to see, beginning in FY 2006, incremen-
tal increases in the number of applications overall, and especially
from members of non-traditional populations.

Strategy 2.2 Expand educational and economic opportunities for
service participants

NCCC members have up to seven years to use their educational
award to pay for further education or to pay off school loans.

Our data for the 1997 entry class, whose awards expired this year,
show that 84 percent of the funds set aside were used by the for-
mer members. Although a slight decline from the previous year,
education award usage is still impressive. NCCC continues to
enhance the end of service career and educational development
support that is integral to the program structure.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Strategy 2.3 Encourage lifelong civic engagement

The Corporation surveys are now in progress to analyze the cur-
rent civic involvement of those whose service in NCCC ended
half a decade ago. The results of this survey will inform program
planning strategies and focus on continuous improvement. It
will also help, more broadly, in the design of other Corporation
programs for which lifelong civic engagement should be an
important by-product of service.

Goal 3: Strengthen the infrastructure, capacity, and social
capital of communities across America

Strategy 3.2 Strengthen the spirit of community, as demonstrat-
ed by greater interaction and collaboration among individuals
and institutions.

This is a general objective of the NCCC program overall, but one
for which the Corporation has no specific measures because of
the very modest size of the program. We do believe that organi-
zations that sponsor NCCC projects develop skills and insights
into how to better position their organizations to be more
responsive to their constituents and clients. For example, in FY
2004 fully 50 percent of project sponsors reported that NCCC
teams helped the organization to build or increase involvement
in coalitions and partnerships.
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Strategy 3.4 Increase service programs and participants in faith-
based and small community-based organizations.

In FY 2004, NCCC undertook a total of 123 projects with faith-
based organizations. This represented 21 percent of all NCCC
projects. With an average team of 12 members serving for six
weeks per project, this amounted to an investment of more than
350,000 service hours in faith-based organizations. Project spon-
sors included Efforts of Grace, Inc. in Louisiana, where members
restored facilities and led a conflict resolution curriculum for stu-
dents, and the Salvation Army in Tennessee, where members
helped to operate the store and to collect and sort donated goods.
In addition, NCCC’s partnerships with Habitat for Humanity
affiliates and other agencies that help low-income families
become homeowners resulted in construction of many new
homes.

D22JN.SdJodlBWY

Evaluation Findings and Plan

Longitudinal Study of AmeriCorps Members Serving Country and
Community:

This study is designed to assess the long-term attitudinal and
behavioral impacts of participation in AmeriCorps on members’
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civic values and engagement, education, employment, life skills,
and social attitudes and behaviors. The study includes a nation-
ally representative sample of 2,233 AmeriCorps members from
109 AmeriCorps*State and National programs and from three of
five AmeriCorps"NCCC regional campuses enrolled in the 1999-
2000 program year, and similar numbers in the comparison
group. The study compares changes in the outcomes of members
to individuals not in AmeriCorps, controlling for interest in
national service, member and family demographics, and prior
civic engagement. Results will be available in December of 2004.

End of Service Studies

As in seven of the 10 years that NCCC has been in existence the
members were surveyed at the end of the service year to capture
data about their service experience.
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National Performance Benchmarking

Effective in FY 2004, the Corporation implemented a national
performance benchmarking effort to collect data from
Corporation AmeriCorps programs (NCCC, State and National,
and VISTA). In FY 2005 the Corporation plans to expand the
aspect of the benchmarking effort that targets current NCCC
members and to continue the sample survey of community
organizations sponsoring NCCC projects. As in FY 2004, the
project sponsor survey will capture information about the effec-
tiveness and efficiency of the NCCC team that served with the
community organization. Data from both of these surveys will
contribute substantially to NCCC’s ability to better serve commu-
nities and evaluate team performance.

AmeriCorps*NCCC
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AmeriCorps*NCCC Key Program Performance Measures

Actuals Goal
FEMETENED [ (B2 FY  FY2002 FY2003 FY2004  FY
2001 2004

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education, public safety, environmental, home-
land security, and other human needs

Number of members enrolled annually. 1,182 1,276 1,276 1,187 N/A
Source: National Trust Database

Average percent of expected service time complted. 98.9% 98.0% 99.9% Datal vgilll be N/A
. i avallanle In

Source: National Trust Database 2005 Report

Percentage of members completing their terms of 88% 88% 90% 92% N/A

service.l Source: National Trust Database

Percentage of projects supporting homeland security.2 N/A N/A 10% 6% N/A

Source: AmeriCorps*NCCC

Percentatge of projects focusing on children and N/A N/A 35% 45% N/A

youth. Source: AmeriCorps*NCCC

Number of members supporting disaster relief opera- 592 838 475 545 N/A
tions. Source: AmeriCorps*NCCC, National Survey of
AmeriCorps members

Percentage of organizations reporting that projects N/A N/A N/A 889%™ * N/A
were “very successful.” Source AmeriCorps*NCCC’3

Percentage of organizations reporting that they would N/A N/A N/A 88%** N/A
highly recommend NCCC teams to other organiza-

tions.* Source: AmeriCorps*NCCC”
strategy 2.2: EXpand educational, economic, and other opportunities for service partiCipantS

Education award usage. Source: AmeriCorps*NCCC2 68% 85% 89% 84% N/A

Percentage of members indicating that their service N/A N/A N/A 83%** N/A
experience impacted their career, educational, or pro-

fessional goals. Source: National Performance

Benchmarking Survey

Strategy 2.3: Encourage lifelong civic engagement

Percentage of members increasing their level of civic N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
engagement because of NCCC service. Source:
AmeriCorps Longitudinal Study

Percentage of members saying at the end of service N/A N/A N/A 95%** N/A
that their experience was excellent or good. Source:

AmeriCorps*NCcC”

Strategy 3.2: Strengthen the spirit of community, as demonstrated by greater interaction and collab-
oration among individuals and institutions

Number of projects sponsored by small community 113 219 250 216 N/A
organizations3

Number of volunteers resulting from NCCC activities. 15,000 15,000 30,000 16,000 N/A
Source: AmeriCorps*NCCC?

Percentage of organizations reporting that the service N/A N/A N/A 50%** N/A

of members helped (“considerably” or “moderately”)
the organization build or increase its involvement in
coalitions or partnerships with other organizations.*

Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-based and other community-based
organizations

Number of projects sponsored by faith-based organi- N/A 107 160 123 N/A
zations
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* These indicators are in addition to those presented with the FY 04 budget submission,
and are intended to present a broader picture of overall program performance.
** This figure for FY 04 is the baseline.

1 Homeland security includes projects that support prevention of, preparedness for, and
mitigation and response to natural disasters including terrorist acts. Included in this def-
inition are response to tornados, floods, and hurricanes; support for blood banks and
food banks; disaster simulations; and firefighting.

2 The current year usage rate compares the amount of the education awards members
earned seven years earlier with the amount of those awards used in the subsequent
seven-year period (a member has up to seven years to claim the award). For example,
the 2004 rate compares the amount of the education awards members earned in 1997
to the amount of those awards members used in the seven-year period from 1997-
2004. The measure is most meaningfully viewed as an indicator which informs a long-
term strategy towards maximizing the effectiveness of the education award.

3 The Corporation is developing a definition of “small community organization” to be
used across all programs and will be able to begin reporting these data in FY 05. The
data reported for FY 04 refers to the number of projects sponsored by “local non-prof-
its” (every project sponsor is now classified in one of five categories, the other four of
which are national non-profit, native American, government, and educational).

4 This is an estimate based on member counts of community volunteers participating in
service activities. The numbers may vary substantially year to year based on the number
of short-term “mass volunteer” projects that NCCC undertakes.
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Performance Indicators That Are Being Discontinued

NCCC—Discontinued Performance Measure and Explanation

Performance Measure Explanation

Percentage of NCCC sponsors indicating This performance indicator is being dropped because the

that NCCC members made a significant Corporation selected a more effective indicator for its new

contribution to achieving the project’s surveys, which is being used from FY 2004 onward:

objectives “Percentage of organizations reporting that projets were suc-
cessful.”

AmeriCorps*NCCC
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AmeriCorps member talking with a homeless man on a
public street



AmeriCorps*VISTA

About the Program

Authorized in 1964, AmeriCorps*VISTA (Volunteers in Service to
America) provides full-time volunteers to nonprofit community
and faith-based organizations and public agencies to create and
expand programs that ultimately bring low-income individuals
and communities out of poverty. Each year, nearly 6,000
AmeriCorps*VISTA members leverage human, financial, and
material resources to increase the capacity of thousands of low-
income communities across the country to solve their own prob-
lems.

AmeriCorps*VISTA sponsoring organizations absorb most of the
costs related to project supervision and logistical support.
AmeriCorps*VISTA provides benefits for members and their
sponsoring organizations with limited federal intrusion. The
concept of self-reliance is fundamental to the AmeriCorps*VISTA
program because sponsoring organizations must plan for the
eventual phasing out of AmeriCorps*VISTA members and absorp-
tion of functions by the organization or community.

AmeriCorps*VISTA embraces the following objectives:

» Anti-Poverty Focus— Any private nonprofit organization or
public agency with a program idea that is poverty-related in
scope can apply for an AmeriCorps*VISTA project. The pro-
ject’s goal should address helping individuals and communities
out of poverty rather than focusing on making poverty more
tolerable.

» Community Empowerment— Organizations must ensure that
each project engages residents of the low-income community in
planning, developing, and implementing the project to ensure
that it is responsive and relevant to low-income residents’ own-
ership and self-help initiatives tapping inherent community
strengths.

» Capacity-Building— AmeriCorps*VISTA achieves its mission
by assigning members to organizations in order to expand the
ability of those organizations to fight poverty. Through activi-
ties such as fundraising, volunteer recruitment and manage-
ment, outreach, and collaborative development,
AmeriCorps*VISTA members mobilize community resources
and increase the capacity of organizations to better address the
needs of the communities in which they serve.

= Sustainable Solutions— AmeriCorps*VISTA members are peo-
ple power to help organizations address a new program area
related to their mission. However, it is crucial to the concept of

Corporation for National and Community Service

B-117

(]
(O
<
(]
&
LS
()
=
S
@
o
(S
()
-
o)
(o]
[
o

AmeriCorps*VISTA



°
*
o

Q
1
o
3
°
®
‘
=
)
‘
3
)
S
(o]
o

VLSIA.SdJ0QlBWY

local self-reliance that organizations plan for the eventual phase
out of AmeriCorps*VISTA members and the absorption of their
functions by other facets of the organization or community.

FY 2004 Funding Allocation

Program Performance

The AmeriCorps*VISTA program supports the Corporation’s
goals of meeting human needs and strengthening the infrastruc-
ture, capacity, and social capital of communities across America.
AmeriCorps*VISTA’s strategies for reaching these goals, along
with a description of the program’s FY 2004 performance, are
presented below.

(in millions)
Other
$3,
3%
Asset Faith-Based and
Development Community
$30.1, Initiative
32% $38.5,
42%
Children and Homeland
Youth Security
$19, $3.18,
20% 3%

Strategy 1.1 Leverage service to address the

nation’s education, public safety, environ-
mental, homeland security, and other

AmeriCorps*VISTA Service Years Completed

human needs
7,000

For decades, AmeriCorps*VISTA has devel-
oped systems and structures within non-
profit organizations to effectively engage

6,000+

5,000

volunteers in long-term, meaningful service. Number ]

AmeriCorps*VISTA supported 6,957 mem- 30001

bers in 1,421 anti-poverty projects in FY 20001

2004. Those members served a total of 5,694 10001

Volunteer Service Years (VSYs) totaling AR 2002 2003 2000

11.8 million service hours.! In FY 2004, 92 Year

percent of former AmeriCorps*VISTA mem-

bers reported that, to a great or moderate extent, the skills they

learned during their service helped them in their current job,

educational pursuits, or community service activities. VISTA Volunteers’
Contribution

According to the Federal Reserve Board, an estimated 10 million

U.S. households have no savings or checking accounts.2 Programs
that focus on wealth creation can help low-income families save
money and build equity in physical assets, such as a home. In FY
2004, AmeriCorps*VISTA supported 578 financial asset develop-
ment projects, with 2,536 members serving in areas such as home
ownership, individual development accounts, microenterprise
development, technology access, and job training.

VISTA helps children and youth in areas such as school prepared-
ness, child health services, and youth leadership development. In
FY 2004, AmeriCorps*VISTA supported 1,588 members working
in 374 projects to address the needs of children and youth. In
addition, AmeriCorps*VISTA contributed to America’s Homeland
Security efforts with 289 members serving in areas such as disas-
ter preparedness and relief.
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In 2003 and 2004, 70
AmeriCorps*VISTA members
assigned to the International
Rescue Committee (IRC) recruit-
ed 2,590 community volun-
teers, who donated 42,758
hours of service. The
AmeriCorps*VISTA members
developed a program to offer
extensive business training, with
a goal of moving clients toward
successful lending and creation
of new businesses. In addition,
they further enhanced the
capacity of the organizations by
raising $889,372 in donated
goods and services, and
$640,837 in additional grants
and funding. Source:
AmeriCorps*VISTA Project
Progress Reports




Even after completing their
AmeriCorps*VISTA service, those that
have served as AmeriCorps*VISTA
members continue to make contribu-
tions to their communities. In FY 2004,
88 percent of former members said they
had performed volunteer work since
completing their service. This figure is
well above the national average for vol-
unteering of 28.8 percent, suggesting
that AmeriCorps*VISTA service has a

positive influence on volunteering.3

AmeriCorps*VISTA Members Serving with Financial Asset
Development Projects

3,000

2,500+

2,000+

Number 1,500

1,000

500+

2001 2002 2003 2004
Year
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After successfully completing a term of
service, AmeriCorps*VISTA members have the option of receiv-
ing an education award or an end of service stipend. The educa-
tion award can be used to defray education costs at qualified
institutions of higher education or training, or to repay qualified
student loans. A member has up to seven years after his or her
term of service has ended to claim the award. The FY 2004 usage
rate for these awards for AmeriCorps*VISTA was 80 percent,
demonstrating that a majority of former members take advantage
of the educational benefit that AmeriCorps*VISTA service pro-

vides.4

Strategy 1.2 Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability
The Corporation provides training and technical assistance and
monitors projects to strengthen the capacity of
AmeriCorps*VISTA sponsors to achieve the goals of their
AmeriCorps*VISTA projects. Through capacity-building efforts
such as fundraising, volunteer management, and training,
AmeriCorps*VISTA members contribute to their sponsoring orga-
nization’s ability to positively impact low-income individuals,
families, and communities. In FY 2004, 28 percent of
AmeriCorps*VISTA-sponsored projects shared the costs of sup-
porting AmeriCorps*VISTA members.

AmeriCorps*VISTA

Also in FY 2004, AmeriCorps*VISTA project sponsors indicated
that members played a large part in helping them achieve their
goals. For example, 65 percent of organizations that received
AmeriCorps*VISTA resources considered the projects on which
members served over the past twelve months to have been very
successful. In addition, 67 percent of these organizations stated
that the assistance provided to them increased the number of
people they were able to serve by a considerable amount.

AmeriCorps*VISTA’s objective is to strengthen the capacity and
sustainability of project sponsors so that they are better able to

Corporation for National and Community Service B-119
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address community needs. Sixty per-
cent of organizations served
believed that AmeriCorps*VISTA

members considerably or moderate-

Organizations that reported the services of AmeriCorps*VISTA
members helped the organization where they have served over
the past 12 months:

ly helped bring in additional funds,

and 72 percent thought that Considerably

AmeriCorps*VISTA members con-

siderably or moderately helped g Moderatel

them bring in donations of goods &

and services. ® Sl

Strategy 3.3 Increase volunteering in Notatall PP
0 10

America and grow community
capacity to engage volunteers effec-

20

30 40 50

Percent

tively

O Bring in additional funds
W Bring in donations of goods or senices
O Leverage additional volunteers

AmeriCorps*VISTA supports com-

munity efforts to grow volunteerism

by helping AmeriCorps*VISTA sponsors develop effective volun-
teer programs and develop and establish systems to track volun-
teer programs and contributions of community volunteers. Of the
organizations that were served by AmeriCorps*VISTA members
in FY 2004, 78 percent reported that AmeriCorps*VISTA mem-
bers either considerably or moderately helped them leverage
additional volunteers.

Strategy 3.4 Increase service programs and participants in faith-
based and other community-based organizations

VISTA supported 690 distinct projects with faith-based organiza-
tions in underserved communities with 915 members. In total,
AmeriCorps*VISTA provided more than $38.5 million in FY 2004
to support faith-based and other community-based

organizations.”

A key initiative of the faith-based and community initiative is
mentoring children of prisoners. In FY 2004, over 4,000 children
of prisoners were mentored as a result of AmeriCorps*VISTA’s
capacity building and volunteer generation activities in 107 proj-

ects.6
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VISTA Volunteers Helping
Children of Prisoners

In FY 2004, 54 AmeriCorps*VISTA
members working with Amachi,
a faith-based partnership estab-
lished in Pennsylvania, were
placed in 16 Big Brothers/Big
Sisters agencies and four other
community and faith-based
agencies in 17 states across the
country. Collectively they
recruited 972 new volunteers
from local congregations to
serve as mentors for children of
incarcerated parents. Over the
course of the year 11,664 hours
of mentoring were provided to
approximately 900 children.
(AmeriCorps*VISTA Project
Progress Report).




Evaluation Findings and Plan

Study of AmeriCorps*VISTA's Impact on 40 years of
Volunteers

The Corporation initiated this evaluation to identify the long-
term civic engagement, education, and employment outcomes of
AmeriCorps*VISTA volunteers serving between 1964 and 1990.
The study will assess how, and to what extent,
AmeriCorps*VISTA service affected participants’ civic attitudes,
life decisions, goals, values, and enduring habits of civic engage-
ment. It will compare AmeriCorps*VISTA volunteers to a demo-
graphically similar group to see whether they are more civically
engaged; whether their attitudes toward service and volunteerism
have changed over time; whether they pursued different types of
careers; and whether their experience had an intergenerational
effect by helping to shape the values and service habits of their
children, among other issues.

(]
(O
<
(]
&
LS
()
=
S
@
o
(S
()
-
o)
(o]
[
o

AmeriCorps*VISTA Accomplishments Study

To better enable AmeriCorps*VISTA to report on program
accomplishments, the Corporation is seeking a contractor to
design and carry out a study assessing the community impacts of
the federal AmeriCorps*VISTA program. The study will assess
program accomplishments above and beyond what is currently
captured in Project Progress Reports, including an assessment of
how AmeriCorps*VISTA is fulfilling its legislative mandate to
alleviate poverty and poverty-related problems, to generate pri-
vate sector resources, to encourage volunteer service, and to
strengthen the capacity of local agencies and organizations to
carry out this anti-poverty program.

AmeriCorps*VISTA

Evaluation of Entrepreneur Corps and Faith-Based and
Community Initiatives

In 2004 and 2005, AmeriCorps*VISTA is evaluating projects with-
in its portfolios of Entrepreneur Corps and Faith-Based and
Community initiatives. The studies will assess how and to what
extent AmeriCorps*VISTA resources have increased the capacity
of organizations to provide services specific to their intended
goals and outcomes. In addition, studies will evaluate project
processes and identify common performance indicators within
each portfolio to help AmeriCorps*VISTA’s aggregate projects’
collective impact within a given strategic priority.

Corporation for National and Community Service B-121



1 A volunteer service year (VSY) approximately equals one full year of service
(365 days). Dividing the number of days a member serves during a fiscal year
by 365 produces the VSY production. Both appropriated and non-appropriated
service year production is included in this indicator. While
AmeriCorps*VISTA service is 24 hours a day, seven days a week, we equate
one VSY to 2080 service hours for this purpose.

2 Survey of Consumer Finances, Federal Reserve Board, 2001.

3 "Volunteering in the United States, 2003," Current Population Survey, U.S.
Department of Labor.

4 The 2004 rate compares the amount of the education awards members
earned in 1997 to the amount of those awards members used in the seven-year
period from 1997-2004 (a member has up to seven years to claim the award).
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5 Data is accurate as of 5/27/2004. End of year totals are not yet available.
6 Data is accurate as of 5/27/2004. End of year totals are not yet available.
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AmeriCorps*VISTA Key Program Performance Measures

Actuals Coal
o
performance Measure FY  FY2002 FY2003 FY2004  FY =
2001 2004 E
Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education, public safety, environmental, home- S
land security, and other human needs 2
[
Percent of former members who, since they conclud- N/A N/A N/A 88% N/A D
ed service, have exhibited a high level of community o
participation. Source: 2004 AmeriCorps National E
Performance Measurement Benchmarking project.” ]
Number of anti-poverty programs served. Source: 1,639 1,637 1,541 1,421 N/A a
eSpan and VISTA information systems™2 o
S
Number of AmeriCorps*VISTA members enrolled annu- 7,325 5,697 6,754 6,957 N/A o
ally. Source: AmeriCorps*VISTA and National Service
Trust Database3
Number of AmeriCorps*VISTA service years completed. 6,132 5,826 5,569 5,694 N/A
Source: Corporation eSpan database**4
Number of members serving with homeland security N/A 1 83 289 N/A
projects. Source: VISTA Information systems™
Percent of former members reporting the skills they N/A N/A N/A 92% N/A

learned during their service helped in their current job,
educational pursuits, or community service activities to
a great or moderate extent. Source: 2004 AmeriCorps
National Performance Measurement Benchmarking

projectd

The number of AmeriCorps*VISTA members serving 1,755 1,797 1,714 1,588 N/A
children and youth. Source: VISTA Information

systemsb

Number of members serving with financial asset devel- 2,630 2,669 2,663 2,536 N/A

opment projects. Source: VISTA information systems’

Percentage of AmeriCorps*VISTA members receiving 73% 78% 78% 80% N/A
education awards that use the award to further their

education or reduce their education loan debt during

the sen-year award period. Source: National Service

Trust Database8

AmeriCorps*VISTA

Strategy 1.2 Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability

Percent of projects sharing costs of VISTA members. N/A N/A N/A 28% N/A
Source: VISTA information systems”
Percent of organizations reporting that the projects on N/A N/A N/A 65% N/A

which members served over the past 12 months had

been "very successful.” Source: 2004 AmeriCorps

National Performance Measurement Benchmarking

project”

Percent of organization that reported the assistance N/A N/A N/A 67% N/A
provided to their organization had increased the num-

bers served by a considerable amount over the past

12 months. Source: 2004 AmeriCorps National

Performance Measurement Benchmarking project.®

Percent of organizations that reported the services of N/A N/A N/A 60% N/A
VISTA members “considerably” or “moderately” helped

the organization where they have served over the past

12 months to bring in additional funds. Source:

AmeriCorps National Measurement Benchmarking

project™® (continued on next page)

Corporation for National and Community Service B-123



(cont’d) Actuals Goal

O

*

o Performance Measure FY  FY2002 FY2003 FY2004  FY
Q 2001 2004
Q Percent that reported the services of VISTA members N/A N/A N/A 72% N/A
5 “considerably” or “moderately” helped the organiza-

o tion, where they have served over the past 12

() months, bring in donations of goods or services.

z Source: 2004 AmeriCorps National Performance

g Measurement Benchmarking project 10

g Strategy 3.3: Increase volunteering in America and grow community capacity to engage volunteers
g effectively

8 Percent that reported the services of VISTA members N/A N/A N/A 78% N/A

“considerably” helped the organization, where they
have served over the past 12 months, leverage addi-
tional volunteers. Source: AmeriCorps annual

survey*11

Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-based and other community-based
organizations

Number of children of prisoners mentored as a result N/A N/A N/A 4,098 N/A

of VISTA capacity building and volunteer generation
activities. Source: VISTA information systems

The number of AmeriCorps*VISTA members serving in N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
community-based (secular non-profit) organizations.
Source: VISTA information systems?

* The Corporation has not previously presented this measure for reporting purposes. It is
included here to supplement the FY 2004 performance information.

** The Corporation presented this measure in the Performance and Accountability
Report FY 2003.

1 The precise wording of this survey question was, “Percent of former members who
have done volunteer work since completing their service.”

2 n past years, this indicator was worded as, “Number of AmeriCorps*VISTA projects.”
Since all AmeriCorps*VISTA projects are anti-poverty, the figures are equivalent across
years. The FY 2004 data is for the number of projects operating at any time during the
year.

3 The number of members enrolled annually is the number of members beginning serv-
ice during the fiscal year.

4 A volunteer service year (VSY) equals one full year of service (365 days). Dividing the
number of days a member serves during a fiscal year by 365 produces the VSY produc-
tion. Both appropriated and non-appropriated service year production is included in this
indicator.

5 Responses of “to a great extent” equal 59% and to a “moderate extent” equal 33%..
This indicator was originally worded as, “Percentage of AmeriCorps*VISTA members indi-
cating that their service experience influenced their career, educational or professional
goals.”

6 The original wording of this indicator was, “The number of AmeriCorps*VISTA members
serving in organizations focusing on children and youth.” Children and youth activities
include adult education and literacy, head start, school preparedness, pre-elementary
day care, youth leadership development, maternal/child health services, mentoring,
child abuse/neglect, children and youth safety programs, and juvenile justice, deliquen-
cy/gangs.

7 This indicator was originally worded as, “The number of AmeriCorps*VISTA members
serving in organizations expanding asset accumulation and entrepreneurial opportunities
for the poor.” Asset development activities include computer literacy, job preparedness
and school-to-work, community revitalization/improvement, cooperatives/credit unions,
job development/placement, microenterprise, small and minority business development,
technology access, welfare-to-work, other community and economic development, and
home management support/education.

8 The current year usage rate compares the amount of the education awards members
earned seven years earlier with the amount of those awards used in the subsequent

VLSIA.SdJ0QlBWY
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seven-year period (@ member has up to seven years to claim the award). For example,
the 2004 rate compares the amount of the education awards members earned in 1997
to the amount of those awards members used in the seven-year period from 1997-
2004. The measure is most meaningfully viewed as an indicator which informs a long-
term strategy towards maximizing the effectiveness of the education award.

9 Responses of “considerably helped” equal 27% and “moderately helped” equal 33%.
10 Responses of “considerably helped” equal 40% and “moderately helped” equal 32%.
11 Responses of “considerably helped” equal 49% and “moderately helped” equal 29%.
This indicator was originally worded as, “Number of volunteers resulting from
AmeriCorps*VISTA activities.”

12 |n FY 2004, the Corporation changed its methodology for collecting this information
for VISTA. In prior years, all project names were manually reviewed at Headquarters to
determine which were sponsored or operated by faith-based organizations, and the
total members assigned to those projects were summed to arrive at an aggregate num-
ber. This method had limitations and the resulting prior year figures should be consid-
ered estimates. In FY 2004, a new methodology was employed to obtain this informa-
tion at the ground level, resulting in greater accuracy. While a single VISTA project may
have numberous placement sites, this year, only those members at the placement sites
designated as faith-based were counted (versus all members assigned to the overall
project, as has been counted in previous years). Therefore, the prior year estimates,
when compared to the more precise 2004 data, appear high.
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Seneca Valley juniors Matt Luette and Jordan
Coughenour work in an office setting with classmates
[...] as part of the school’s new service education course.
The group was brainstorming ideas for a project to aid

local soldiers serving in Iraq. christopher Horner/Tribune-Review.
Tribune-Review (Pittsburgh, PA), Thursday, September 9, 2004



Learn and Serve America

About the Program

Since 1990, Learn and Serve America (Learn and Serve) has fur-
thered America’s tradition of civic participation and volunteerism
by making grants to integrate community service with education-
al curricula through a practice known as service-learning. Learn
and Serve grant-making fosters collaboration among schools,
community-based organizations, and institutions of higher educa-
tion to meet immediate community needs and strengthen the
capacity of communities to address long-term needs.
Approximately 1.1 million students annually participate in about
two thousand local Learn and Serve-supported projects in which
community service is integrated into classroom and extracurricu-
lar learning.

Learn and Serve America provides funds to state education agen-
cies, nonprofit organizations, colleges and universities, Indian
Tribes, and State Commissions on National and Community
Service. Most of these grantees function as intermediaries; they
provide and administer subgrants to local programs, monitor and
evaluate local programs, and provide training and technical assis-
tance. The local programs create or expand service-learning
activities, and provide training to teachers, faculty and staff mem-
bers, adult volunteers, student participants, and community
members. At the local level, all programs are partnerships
between schools and community-based organizations, between
higher education institutions and schools or community-based
organizations, or are implemented by local community organiza-
tions.

The Learn and Serve America program leverages significant non-
Corporation support for its programs. All school- and communi-
ty-based grantees must demonstrate an increasing level of match-
ing funds to qualify for continued Federal support. After four
years, school- and community-based grantees are required to pro-
vide half of the program costs. Higher education grantees must
provide half of their program costs from the outset. Most Learn
and Serve programs exceed the match required.

Program Performance

Learn and Serve America supports the Corporation’s goals of
meeting human needs; improving the lives of national service
participants; and, strengthening the infrastructure, capacity, and
social capital of communities across America. Learn and Serve’s

Corporation for National and Community Service
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strategies for reaching these goals, along with a description of the
program’s FY 2004 performance, are presented below.

Strategy 1.1 Leverage service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other
human needs

The Corporation supports grantees and local subgrantee programs
that, in turn, support Learn and Serve participants. These partici-
pants, grantees, and subgrantees work to achieve the
Corporation’s service-learning objectives.

In FY 2004, 1.1 million individuals participated in Learn and
Serve programs. The Corporation believes this figure represents a
significant level of involvement, although it falls short of the FY
2004 target of 1.65 million participants. The FY 2004 participant
number reflects a change in program strategy for many Learn and
Serve America programs. Programs were instructed to support
projects that were to take place over the full year in one school or
district rather than to fund disparate projects in many classrooms,
as was the case in prior years. The revised standard meant that
projects covered fewer participants, but gave greater focus to
quality and program intensity.

Learn and Serve America develops and funds programs that
engage children and youth in service-learning activities that ben-
efit their schools and communities. Program participants con-
tribute significant amounts of time. Thirty-two percent of all
service-learning participants were involved at least one semester
and served 20 hours or more. In addition, 60 percent of grantees
and subgrantees reported that Learn and Serve-funded activities
had a substantial positive impact on the organizations that were
served.

Strategy 1.2 Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability
The Corporation strives to improve the competitiveness, quality,
reach, and sustainability of Learn and Serve grantees. Programs
are targeted for improvement through several outreach and train-
ing and technical assistance initiatives. Of the organizations that
received Learn and Serve funding, 75 percent in FY 2004 met a
majority of the criteria for high-quality service-learning pro-
grams. These characteristics include, among other things,
whether the program had clear and specific learning objectives,
strong community partnerships, and an emphasis on both learn-

ing and service.l

Strategy 2.1 Increase the diversity of participants within and
among service programs
In addition to engaging students in service-learning and helping

B-128 FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report

Service Hero: Service-
Learning’s Jane
Hammatt-Kavaloski

Jane Hammatt-Kavaloski plans
to retire at the end of this
school year, 20 years after
teaching the first service-
learning class at Malcolm
Shabazz City High School in
Madison, Wis. That class, "The
Mississippi Connection," was
just the beginning for
Hammatt-Kavaloski, a school
social worker, who later
became coordinator of serv-
ice-learning at Shabazz. Under
her leadership, service-learn-
ing has become an integral
part of the Shabazz curricu-
lum, involving every student.
More than 60 different types
of service-learning classes
have been offered, encom-
passing every discipline and
connecting with hundreds of
organizations and communi-
ties locally, nationally, and
internationally. Thousands of
youth and adults have been
impacted by the service-learn-
ing program at Shabazz. The
school's stellar program
prompted its selection as a
Service-Learning Leader School
in 1999. From 1999 to 2001,
Hammatt-Kavaloski coordinat-
ed 84 formal and informal
service-learning presentations,
which reached nearly 2,000
people, including 670 college
students majoring in educa-
tion.



to expand service-learning to about one-third of public schools,
Learn and Serve has increased the diversity of its programs and

participants and provided effective support to its grantees and §

schools throughout the coun- ]

try. The Corporation seeks to E

Programs in schools with at least 50 increase the proportion of o
percent of students eligible for School Learn and Serve participants o
Lunch program who are from underserved o

groups, including individuals &

50% - from low-income families, E

40% | underrepresented racial/ethnic 8)

30% groups, and special needs =
Percent o

groups. In FY 2004, 41 percent
of K-12 schools involved in
Learn and Serve programs had
more than half of their stu-
Year dents in the federal subsidized
school lunch program. About

20% 1
10% 1
0% -

28 percent of all Learn and
Serve participants were from minority (defined as non-white)
populations. In addition, ten percent of Learn and Serve partici-
pants were people with disabilities.

Strategy 2.2 Expand educational, economic, and other opportuni-
ties for service participants

Through increased emphasis on measuring the development of
civic knowledge and skills, on academic outcomes, and on the
prevalence of risky behaviors, Learn and Serve programs demon-
strate significant benefits to young people. For example, 34 per-
cent of grantees and subgrantees in FY 2004 believed that the
programs had a substantial positive impact on the academic per-
formance of service-learning participants.

Learn and Serve America

Strategy 2.3 Increase lifelong civic engagement

Learn and Serve programs encourage participants to stay civical-
ly-engaged throughout their lives by increasing their civic skills,
knowledge, and dispositions (i.e. intentions, inclinations, and
habits of civic engagement). The independent nonprofit organi-
zation, Independent Sector, indicates that the strongest predictor
of adult volunteer activity is service and volunteering as a child
or teen.2 In FY 2004, 48% of Learn and Serve-funded organiza-
tions reported that Learn and Serve activities had a substantial
positive impact on participants’ civic engagement.

Strategy 3.1 Renew the ethic of civic responsibility in part by
stimulating educational institutions to focus on their civic mis-
sions

A primary goal of the Learn and Serve program is to increase the
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civic engagement and community involvement of young people
through educational institutions and other organizations. All
Learn and Serve programs require partnerships between educa-
tion and community groups to meet local service and educational
goals. In order to ensure that Learn and Serve funding acts as a
catalyst to broader and long-term adoption of service learning,
the program has begun to measure key characteristics of program
design and scope believed to influence widespread sustainable

program institutionalization.

In FY 2004, 47 percent of all
organizations funded by Learn
and Serve reported that Learn
and Serve activities had a sub-
stantial positive impact on
efforts to make service-learning
a permanent part of their insti-
tution. Accordingly, 29 percent
had implemented service-learn-
ing institution-wide, suggesting
a number of these organizations
have made strong commitments
to a civic mission. A higher
number, 51 percent, had an

Percent 30% -

LSA-funded programs with a
formal service-learning policy

60%

50%

40%

20%+
10%
0%

Year

official core curriculum, approved course curriculum, or at least
one program or department in service learning. This figure repre-
sented an increase over the FY 2003 level, when 46 percent of
these organizations had formalized service learning.

Strategy 3.4 Increase service programs and participants in faith-
based and other community-based organizations

Also in FY 2004, 6.9 percent
(representing 57 organizations)
of LSA-funded organizations
were faith based and 39.1 per-
cent (representing 474 organi-
zations) partnered with faith-
based organizations. From 2001
to 2003, the percentage of
Learn and Serve programs
working with faith-based
organizations increased nearly
10 percent, from 17 to 26 per-
cent.3 In addition, funds grant-
ed directly to faith-based
organizations increased 147
percent from the 2000-2003

grant period to the 2003-2006 grant period.

Percent 20%

Programs that partner with faith-based

organizations

40%

30%-

10% |

0%

Year
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Evaluation Findings and Plan

Learn and Serve will continue to enhance its capacity to measure
program outcomes and will document the impact of the program
on institutions and organizations that operate LSA programs, on
student participants, and ultimately on communities.

Learn and Serve America Performance Measurement System

In FY 2004, Learn and Serve America implemented a new pro-
gram and performance measurement reporting system. This sys-
tem collects national data on the outputs, intermediate outcomes,
and end outcomes of grantees, subgrantees, and sub-subgrantees,
which will be used for program management and improvement,
as well as performance reporting. In future years, Learn and
Serve will use this system to conduct specialized surveys of par-
ticipants, teachers, faculty and staff, and community partner
organizations. In addition, the system will establish a baseline for
an intensive study of the institutionalization of service learning.
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Youth Volunteering and Civic Engagement Survey

With the U.S. Census, the Corporation has begun collecting data
on volunteering and civic engagement among America’s youth,
ages 12 to 18. The survey will be the only national study on teen
volunteering and civic engagement, including motivations, atti-
tudes, experiences, and demographics that would be utilized in
promoting, fostering, facilitating, managing, and evaluating par-
ticipation at the national level. Through the survey, Learn and
Serve will gain valuable national-level data on service-learning
and its relationship with volunteering and other forms of civic
engagement.

Learn and Serve America

Service-Learning and Community Service in Public Schools
Survey

In order to assess the extent of service-learning in America’s pub-
lic schools, the Corporation plans to collaborate with organiza-
tions such as the U.S. Department of Education, the National
Association of Secondary School Principals and the National
Association of Elementary School Principals to administer a
national survey of community service and service-learning in
public schools. The survey will be based on the 1999 National
Center for Education Statistics (NCES) Rapid Response study of
community service and service-learning which established the
baseline for the prevalence of community service and service-
learning.
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1 Specifically, 75% of the organizations said that they frequently or always
meet at least six of the nine characteristics.

2 "Engaging Youth in Lifelong Service," Independent Sector, 2002

32004 Learn and Serve America Program and Performance Measurement
Report. The 2004 figure for partnering with faith-based organizations may not
be directly comparable to the 2001-2003 data. For data collected in those prior
years, organizations were asked whether they "collaborate" with faith-based
organizations. In 2004, organizations were asked whether they "partner" with
faith-based organizations. Learn and Serve America school-based funds, which
account for nearly 65 percent of all LSA funding, must be provided to local
education agencies that serve as the fiscal agent for LSA funds. The balance of
LSA funds are available to colleges or nonprofit organizations.
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Learn and Serve America Key Program Performance Measures

Performance Measure

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education, public safety, environmental, home-

land security, and other human needs

Number of participants (students) in projects
supported by Learn and Serve America.
Source: Learn and Survey America Progress
Reports and surveys.

Percentage of grantees and subgrantees
reporting that LSA had a substantial positive
impact on the organizations that were served.
Source: 2004 LSA Program and Performance

Measurement Report”

Percentage of participants in service-learning
programs that last at least a semester that
serve a minimum of 20 hours. Source: 2004
LSA Program and Performance Measurement

Report”

Strategy 1.2: Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability

Increased percentage of grantees (and sub-
grantees) meeting characteristics of a high-
quality service-learning program. Source: LSA
Program Measurement Report*2

Strategy 2.1 Increase diversity of participants within and among service programs

Percentage of programs in schools with at
least 50 percent of students eligible for
school lunch (or otherwise identified as poor).
Source: LSA Program and Performance
Report™™

Percentage of participants who are part of a
minority population. Source: 2004 LSA
Program and Performance Measurement
Report’™3

Percentage of participants with disabilities.
Source: 2004 LSA Program and Performance

Measurement Report”4

Actuals Goal

FY 2001 FY 2002 FY2003 FY2004  FY 2004
1,844,146 1,725,658 1,873,515 1,129,887 1,650,000
N/A N/A N/A 60.4% N/A
N/A N/A N/A 31.6% N/A

N/A N/A N/A 74.6% N/A

27.0% 41.0% 32.0% 41.4% N/A
N/A N/A N/A 27.5% N/A
N/A N/A N/A 9.0% N/A

(continued on next page)
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(cont’d) Actuals Goal

Performance Measure FY  FY2002 FY2003 FY2004  FY
2001 2004

Strategy 2.2 Expand educational, economic, and other opportunities for service participants

Percentage of organizations that report that Learn and N/A N/A N/A 34.2% N/A
Serve funded activities had a substantial positive

impact on the academic performance of service-learn-

ing participants. Source: 2004 LSA Program and

Performance Measurement Report.”™4
Strategy 2.3: Increase lifelong civic engagement

Percentage of grantees and subgrantees reporting N/A N/A N/A 48.1% N/A
that LSA activities had a substantial positive impact on

participants’ civic engagement. Source: 2004 LSA

Program and Performance Measurement Report

Strategy 3.1: Renew the ethic of civic responsibility in part by stimulating educational institutions to
focus on their civic missions

Percentage of programs with a formal service-learning N/A 45.0% 46.0% 51.3% N/A
policy. Source: 2004 LSA Program and Performance

Measurement Report™S

Percentage of organizations where the scope of serv- N/A N/A N/A 16.0% N/A

ice-learning is institution-wide. Source: 2004 LSA
Program and Performance Measurement Report 6

Learn and Serve funded activities had a substantial
positive impact on efforts to make service-learning a
permanent part of their institution. Source:2004 LSA
Program and Performance Measurement Report*

Percent of elementary and secondary schools with N/A N/A N/A N/A 30%
service-learning programs. Source: Study by Westat,
2004

Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-based and other community-based
organizations

Percentage of grantees that are faith-based organiza- N/A N/A N/A 4.6% N/A
tions. Source: 2004 LSA Program and Performance
Measurement Report*

Percentage of grantees that are community-based N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(secular non-profit) organizations. Source: 2004 LSA
Program and Performance Measurement Report'”?

Percentage of programs that partner (collaborate) with 17.0% 23.0% 26.0% 39.1% N/A
faith-based organizations. Source: 2004 LSA Program
and Performance Measurement Report™*8
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* The Corporation has not previously presented this measure for reporting purposes. It is
included here to supplement the FY 2004 performance information.

** The Corporation presented this measure in the Performance and Accountability
Report FY 2003.

1 The FY 2004 number was estimated based on responses to the 2003-2004 Learn and
Serve America Program and Performance Measurement Report. For the survey, there
were 1,221 responses to the number of service-learning participants in Learn and Serve
programs for a total number of reported service-learning participants of 731,466. In
addition, there were 1,188 responses to the number of youth volunteer participants
(includes one-time participants in service-learning activities) in Learn and Serve programs
for a total number of reported youth volunteers of 81,656. Based on Learn and Serve
grantee reporting and the program and performance measurement report, there are a
total of 1,662 Learn and Serve grantees, subgrantees, and sub-subgrantees, indicating a
73% response rate for service-learning participants and a 71% response rate for youth
volunteers. With the assumption that the characteristics for nonrespondents are equiva-
lent to those of the respondents, the mean number of reported participants was multi-
plied by the estimated number of nonrespondents for each institutional type to calcu-
late the approximate number of nonreported service-learning participants at 270,043
and nonreported youth volunteer participants at 46,722. Also, the FY 2004 participant
number (down from prior years) reflects a change in program strategy for many Learn
and Serve America programs. Programs were instructed to support projects that were
to take place over the full year in one school or district rather than to fund disparate
projects in many classrooms, as was the case in prior years. The revised standard meant
that projects covered fewer participants, but gave greater focus to quality and program
intensity.

2 High quality” is an composite measure which includes the following factors: “Percent of
organizations that ‘frequently’ or ‘always’ have at least 6 of the 9 of the following char-
acteristics of a high-quality service learning program: activities of a significant duration;
clear and specific learning objectives; connections between service and learning; con-
nection of curriculum; explicit relationship between service and civic participation,
responsibility, skills, and concepts; formal reflection; leadership roles for participants;
strong community partnerships; and emphasis on both learning and service.”

3 In the future, the Corporation hopes to collect data for this indicator for both minority
and underrepresented participants.

4 percentage of participants with disabilities is based on a reported number of partici-
pants with disabilities divided by total participants.

5 In this past year, we clarified the phrase “formal policy” used in the FY 2003
Performance and Accountability Report, breaking it down into more specific policy ques-
tions. The language for the question varied for the different institution types, but the
information gathered was meant to be comparable across types. The specific survey
questions were: (1) Higher Education: Service-learning is part of the official core curricu-
lum in at least one discipline or major at the institution, (2) K-12 Schools: Service-learn-
ing is part of the board approved course curriculum in at least one subject in at least
one grade in the school/district, and (3) CBO: Service-learning is part of the activities for
youth in at least one program or department in the organization. Since the 2004 survey
question is a more limited version of the earlier question, we believe the trend data are
more or less comparable for purposes of assessing performance.

6 For this question, “institution-wide” included the following response categories: K-12
school-based - school-wide; K-12 district-based - involving all the schools in the district;
higher education - entire institution; CBO - integrated into all activities at the Agency.
Responses by category were K-12 = 33.1%, Higher Ed = 28.3%, and Community-Based =
9.3%.

7 Data not available at the time of report submittal; these data will be included in the
Corporation’s FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report.

8 The FY 2004 figure for partnering with faith-based organizations may not be directly
comparable to the FY 2001-2003 data. For data collected in those prior years, organiza-
tions were asked whether they “collaborate” with faith-based organizations. In FY 2004,
organizations were asked whether they “partner” with faith-based organizations.
“Partner” was operationally defined as organizations that were formally involved in man-
aging and/or planning LSA supported service-learning activities during the past year.
Learn and Serve America school-based funds, which account for nearly 65 percent of all
LSA funding, must be provided to local education agencies that serve as the fiscal agent
for LSA funds. The balance of LSA funds are available to colleges or nonprofit organiza-
tions.
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Performance Indicators That Are Being Discontinued

Learn and Serve—Discontinued Performance Measures and Explanations

Performance Measure

Number of K-12 teachers who participat-
ed in civics, history, and service activities
supported by Learn and Serve America in
a school year.

Number of college faculty members
involved with courses covering civics, his-
tory, and service at participating higher
education institutions.

Number of courses that contain civics,
history and service in participating higher
education institutions.

Number of participating K-12 schools
increasing their number of civics, history,
and service courses.

Percent of participating higher education
institutions that increase student service
placement in their Federal Work-Study
budget.

Number of volunteer hours generated in
a program year.

Develop measures of civic knowledge and
civic engagement.

Explanation

The Corporation dropped this indicator in favor of more
robust measures of service learning. Data for those measures
are now being collected in the 2004 LSA Program and
Performance Measurement Report. The survey asks a range
of questions concerning the impact and institutionalization
of service-learning across targeted organizations. The per-
formance measurement table above contains some of the
measures.

The Corporation dropped this indicator in favor of more
robust measures of service learning. Data for those measures
are now being collected in the 2004 LSA Program and
Performance Measurement Report. The survey asks a range
of questions concerning the impact and institutionalization
of service-learning across targeted organizations. The per-
formance measurement table above contains some of the
measures.

The Corporation dropped this indicator in favor of more
robust measures of service learning. Data for those measures
are now being collected in the 2004 LSA Program and
Performance Measurement Report. The survey asks a range
of questions concerning the impact and institutionalization
of service-learning across targeted organizations. The per-
formance measurement table above contains some of the
measures.

The Corporation dropped this indicator in favor of more
robust measures of service learning. Data for those measures
are now being collected in the 2004 LSA Program and
Performance Measurement Report. The survey asks a range
of questions concerning the impact and institutionalization
of service-learning across targeted organizations. The per-
formance measurement table above contains some of the
measures.

The Corporation dropped this indicator in favor of more
robust measures of service learning. Data for those measures
are now being collected in Learn and Serve's annual survey.
The survey asks a range of questions concerning the impact
and institutionalization of service-learning across targeted
organizations. The performance measurement table above
contains some of the measures.

The Corporation no longer uses this indicator for Learn and
Serve, since the term 'volunteer' means little in the Learn and
Serve context. The Corporation is now tracking number of
paricipants and participants that serve a minimum of 20
hours. Both of these indicators are reported above.

This item was not actually an indicator, but a placeholder for
addressing future data needs. Many such indicators now
have been developed and are part of Learn and Serve's annu-
al survey.
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Harvey McAdams, seated on the left, and his daughter
Maria Carey, center, are pioneers in Navarro County’s new
Foster Grandparent program. On the right is daycare
employee Tracy Owen, holding one of the children at
Life’s Little Ones Child-care Center, the first facility in

Corsicana to host senior volunteers. Dpaily Sun photo—Ashley
Dowd, Corsicana Daily Sun (TX), July 22, 2004.



Senior Corps

overview

The Senior Corps programs — the Retired and Senior Volunteer
Program (RSVP), Foster Grandparent Program (FGP), and Senior
Companion Program (SCP) — enable volunteers age 55 and over
to address needs in their communities and benefit from a positive
and rich volunteer experience. Each program has distinct charac-
teristics and holds a niche in the volunteer delivery systems in
communities nationwide through more than 1,300 community-
based organizations that serve as grantees.

In FY 2004, 536,224 Senior Corps volunteers served in their local
communities through a network of RSVP, Foster Grandparent,
and Senior Companion projects funded by the Corporation and
other sources nationwide. Together, these participants con-

tributed more than 119.91 million hours of service, compared to
118 million hours the previous year. This includes:

m RSVP: 78.1 million hours of service
m FGP: 27.9 million hours of service
m SCP: 13.9 million hours of service
Despite a slight decrease in volunteers from FY 2003, the number

of projects has increased. In 2004, 1,318 received grants (from all
sources) compared to 1,326 in FY 2003. This includes:

s RSVP—757
s FGP—337
m SCP—224

Volunteers Serving

Program FY 2001 FY 2002 FY 2003 FY 2004
RSVP 480,000 480,000 468,600 459,271
Foster Grandparent Program 26,100 N/A 32,500 31,725

Senior Companion Program N/A N/A 16,500 16,355

Special Volunteer Program N/A N/A 36,800 28,873

Homeland Security Volunteers

Total Senior Corps Volunteers 506,100 480,000 554,400 536,224

Source: The Corporation’s Grants Tracking Database

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Retired and Senior Volunteer Program

About the Program

For more than 30 years, RSVP volunteers have provided numer-
ous types of volunteer support to nonprofit organizations in their
communities. Building on the original purpose of the program—
enhance the quality of life for older volunteers—RSVP adopted a
dual mission in 1998 to focus volunteer resources on meeting
needs identified by communities and to deliver a high quality
volunteer experience.
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RSVP offers the most flexibility of service among the Senior
Corps programs. Volunteers choose how, where, and how often
they want to serve, and commitments range from a few hours a
week to 40 hours per week, depending on the volunteers’ inter-
ests and the agency’s needs. Volunteers are eligible to receive
reimbursement for mileage service and insurance coverage while
on assignment but do not receive monetary incentives or
stipends.

Volunteers serve in a variety of issue areas, with the most indi-
viduals focusing on health and nutrition. A breakdown of issue

5 areas is provided below.

o 5

o

3 RSVP Volunteer Breakdown by Issue Area?

o Issue Area Percent of Volunteers

Q)

(:_;. Health and Nutrition 51%

- Human Needs 46%

& Community and Economic Development 36%

v

< Education 27%

S Housing 13%

8 Environment 13%

3 Disaster 11%

wn Homeland Security 9%
Public Safety 6%

Source: Westat, 2004 Senior Corps Accomplishment Survey Findings

Program Performance

Goal 1: Meet human needs through diverse, high-quality
service programs

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other
human needs

The corporation awards grants to eligible organizations to carry
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out RSVP projects. RSVP volunteers are recruited and placed in
more than 65,000 non-profit organizations or “volunteer sta-
tions.” RSVP strengthens service delivery of volunteer stations;
enhances the ability of stations to recruit and manage non-RSVP
volunteers; and increases the ability of organizations to deliver
priority services, including homeland security and child mentor-
ing services to end beneficiaries. The Corporation awarded 759
grants to RSVP projects in 2004. In addition, 76 percent of vol-
unteer station supervisors indicated that volunteers assist signifi-
cantly with recruitment of community volunteers.

In 2004, 459,271 indi-
viduals participated in
Federally Funded RSVP Volunteers the RSVP program,3 and
757 projects received
grants from all sources.
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#80,0001 The number of RSVP
420,000 4 volunteers who served
360,000 in 2004 was down from
300,000 | the 468,600 who actual-

ly served in 2003. We
believe that the shift to
outcome-based place-
ments is resulting in a
fewer, but more inten-
sive, volunteers.

Number 240,000 -

180,000

120,000

60,000 4

0
2001 2002 2003 2004

Years . e
Ma]or program activities

included managing the
grant award process, monitoring and assisting with eGrants data
integrity and accuracy for data on awards and management, pro-
ducing and disseminating the 2006 National RSVP
Accomplishment Report, and conducting a survey of end benefi-
ciaries.

Percentage of Volunteers Working in each Major Service Activity Area Strategy 1.2: Improve
program quality, reach,
Health and Nutrition and sustainability
Human Needs The Corporation contin-
Community and Economic Development ues tO improve the qual—
Education ity, reach, and sustain-
Housing ability of RSVP grants
Environment through outreach, train-
Disaster ing and technical assis-
Homeland Security tance initiatives. In
P ublic Safety 2004, an impressive 73
’ percent of volunteer sta-
tion supervisors report-

National Senior Senior Service Corps

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Source: Westat, 2004 Senior Corps Accomplishment Survey Findings
Corporation for National and Community Service B-141



ed that RSVP volunteers helped them increase the quality of
services they offer:

» RSVP volunteers helped to a great extent: 40 percent; and

m RSVP volunteers helped to a moderate extent: 33 percent.

As high-quality performance of grantees is critical to program
success, the Corporation invests in training and technical assis-
tance (TTA) to RSVP grantees. Emphasis is placed on program-
matic, management and topical areas to help grantees strengthen
their projects, become more proficient volunteer managers, and
increase compliance. The number of RSVP volunteers serving in
outcome-based assignments has been increasing in the last few
years, with more than 65 percent in 2004, compared to 57 per-

cent in 2001.4
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In ]uly 2003, RSVP volunteers RSVP Volunteers Serving in Outcome-based Assignments
were required to self-select per-
formance measures documented 70%-

in their grant applications, to
which they would be held
accountable. The Corporation will

collect data on grantees that meet porcont 1
target levels for their 2004 end 30%1
outcome performance measures. 20%

60%

50% -

10%
Goal 2: Improve the lives of

. . 0%
national service programs 2001 2002 2003 2004

Strategy 2.1: Increase diversity of Year

participants within and among
service programs

The Corporation is preparing to enable the RSVP program to
expand diversity of volunteers. Through the inclusion of diversi-
ty and a baby boomer-focus in activities, the RSVP program
expects an increase in baby boomers and men. The Corporation
intends to collect information in the future to monitor diversity
of participants.
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Strategy 2.2: Expand educational, economic and other opportuni-
ties for service participants

The RSVP program facilitates life-long learning and decreased
isolation for volunteers. In 2004, more than 80 percent said that
involvement led to decreased isolation. A majority of volunteers
also said that involvement with the program led to enhanced per-
sonal growth, including:

= More meaning to their lives—91 percent;
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m A more positive attitude—86 percent;
m A better informed citizen—64 percent; and

m Increased feeling of competency—61 percent.

In addition, 31 percent of sur-
veyed RSVP volunteers indi-
cated that involvement with
the program has led to new
skills and knowledge.

RSVP Volunteers and Personal Growth

100
90|
80|
70
60|

Percent 50+
40+
30
20|
104

Goal 3: Strengthen the
infrastructure, capacity,
and social capital of com-
munities across America
Strategy 3.3: Increase volun-
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Given more Given a Made them a Made them teering in America and srow
meaning to more positive better informed feel more . .
their life attitude citizen competent community capacity to .
Type of Personal Growth (2004) engage volunteers effectively

Going forward, the RSVP
program is focusing on RSVP
volunteer diversity and is increasing the recruitment efficiency
for volunteer stations. The Corporation expects an increase in
the number of community volunteers that station supervisors will
be able to attract and place (as reported by the supervisors) by
streamlining the station volunteer recruitment processes.

In 2004, 17,146 RSVP volunteers were dedicated to leveraging
other volunteers. These individuals are given the assignment of
recruiting volunteers from the community. The number falls

well short of the Corporation’s 50,000 FY 2004 goal.> Through
these RSVP volunteers, however, 27,394 new community volun-
teers were recruited.

Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-
based and other community-based organizations

The Corporation aims to fund activities aimed at faith and other
community-based organizations. Activities include language
about working with faith-based and other community-based
organizations, providing opportunities for grantees to attend
broader faith-based and community conferences and events,
developing and implementing a survey of faith-based and com-
munity organizations.

National Senior Senior Service Corps
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Evaluation Findings and Plan

In 2004, the Corporation conducted a series of surveys to capture
outputs and outcomes attributable to the volunteers. These sur-
veys:

» Provided an updated “National Accomplishment Report” quan-
tifying RSVP volunteers and their service in more than 50 dif-
ferent service categories, including mentoring, disaster pre-
paredness, adult literacy, home building, and public safety; and,

» Compiled and reported on outcomes realized by the communi-
ty and by the volunteers themselves.

The 2004 Surveys provided baseline data that will allow the
Corporation to assess Senior Corps program outcomes on an
ongoing basis. The results will help grantees identify successful
management practices, while also reducing the overall reporting
burden on the organizations, agencies, and individuals affiliated
with the three Senior Corps programs. There is no other data
collection activity that gathers this information in such a way
that the Corporation can summarize and report valid and com-
prehensive “impact” data to grantees, OMB, Congress, and its
other stakeholders.

1 Data from National Overview (PPVA), estimate as of January 2004, based on
2003 actuals, which will be updated in the 2005 report.

2 The total exceeds 100 percent because volunteers often worked in more than
one service category area.

3 The 2003 number is from the national RSVP overview from PPVA 2003 self-
reported by grantees in "eGrants." The 2004 number is estimated as same,
based on federal funding in 2004.

4 Outcome-based assignments engage volunteers in activities that will con-
tribute to meeting a community need as identified by key stakeholders in the
community. The results of the service must be measurable and there must be a
system in place for reporting the information.

5 The source used in 2003 was the last set of Accomplishment Surveys that
were completed by Aguirre in 2002. This could be a result of: a) data reporting
errors by RSVP grantees when completing their PPVA; or 2) inaccurate start-
ing point based on the 2002 surveys; or 3) combination of both.
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Senior Corps Volunteers
Fight Telemarketing
Fraud

For five years, RSVP volunteers
in Santa Monica have worked
with the Federal Bureau of
Investigation to prevent sen-
iors from becoming victims of
telemarketing fraud. Using
phones donated by AT&T
Wireless, volunteers with WISE
Senior Services operate a
“reverse boiler room” to vic-
tims of telemarketing fraud
and give them tips about pro-
tecting themselves against
future scams. According to FBI
Supervisory Special Agent Dan
Bolick, “Because of these RSVP
volunteers, thousands of
crimes are prevented every
year. Conservative estimates
indicate that we prevent a
crime for at least one in every
ten people who receive peer
counseling. Roughly 13,000
crimes have been prevented
at a savings of approximately
$12,000 per crime. This
equates to approximately
$16,000,000 over the course
of the last five years.”



RSVP Key Program Performance Measures
Actuals Goal

(]
=
Performance Measure FY2001  FY2002 FY2003  FY2004  FY2004 <
Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education, public safety, environmental, home- 3
land security, and other human needs t
Percent of volunteer station supervisors who N/A N/A N/A Great N/A nq_’
reported that RSVP volunteers assist signifi- Extent:
catnly with recruitment of community volun- 29% E
teers to a “great” or “moderate” extent. Moderate ()
Source: 2004 Survey of Volunteer Station Extent: a
Supervisors™ 47% o
Number of individuals who served as RSVP 480,000 480,000 468,600 459,271 489,200 E
volunteers. Source: Grants Tracking
Database™*2
Number of RSVP Projects receiving grants 766 763 759 757 753
from all sources. Source: Grants Tracking
Database™
Number of federally funded RSVP projects. 753 753 752 759 N/A

Source: Grants Tracking Database™

Strategy 1.2: Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability

Percent of volunteer station supervisors who N/A N/A N/A Great N/A
reported that RSVP volunteers helped them Extent:
increase the quality of services they offer to a 40%
“great” or “moderate” extent. Source: 2004 Moderate
Survey of Volunteer Station Supervisors*3 Extent:
33%
Number of RSVP volunteers serving in out- 57% 60% 64% 62% N/A

come-based assignments. Source: eGrants,
State Offices™4

Strategy 2.1 Increase diversity of participants within and among service programs

Measures under development

Strategy 2.2: Expand educational, economic, and other opportunities for service participants

National Senior Senior Service Corps

Percent of RSVP volunteers who “strongly N/A N/A N/A a)SA: 34%, N/A
agreed (SA)” or "agreed (A)” that involvement A:61%
with the program led to enhanced personal D)SA: 33%
growth, including a) given more meaning to A: 63%
my life; b) given me a more positive attitude; CISA: 38%,
€) made me a better informed citizen; d) A: 55%
made me feel competent.”> d) SA: 40%
A: 51%

(continued on next page)
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(cont'd) Actuals Goal

] Performance Measure FY 2001 FY 2002 FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2004
3 Percent of RSVP volunteers who "strongly N/A N/A N/A a) SA: 39%, N/A
(o] agreed (SA): or agreed (A)" that involvement A: 59%
3 with the program led decreased isolation in a) b)SA: 37%
3 Made me feel closer to my community and b) A: 61%

Helped me make more friends or close
- ) acquaintances. Source: 2004 Survey of Senior
g Corps Volunteers *
3‘ Percentage of volunteers who report that N/A N/A N/A Info will be N/A
- their service activity fits their experience, abil- a;’ggasbLeeé%rFtY
= ities, and skills well.”
Q
= Percentage of volunteers who would recom- N/A N/A N/A Info will be N/A
8 mend service with RSVP* a;’g'('%b'reer';;fty

Percent of RSVP volunteers indicating that N/A N/A N/A 32% N/A

involvement with the program led to new

skills and knowledge. Source: 2004 Survey of

Senior Corps Volunteers ™

Strategy 3.3: Increase volunteering in America and grow community capacity to engage volunteers
effectively

Number of RSVP volunteers dedicated to N/A N/A 45,000 17,146 50,000
leveraging volunteers. Source: eGrants *

Number of new volunteers recruited by RSVP N/A N/A N/A 27,394 N/A
volunteers (not necessarily recruits for RSVP

projects) *

Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-based and small community-based
organizations

Number of grantees that are faith-based N/A N/A N/A 75
organizations”

Number of grantees that are community- N/A N/A N/A 491
based (secular, non-profit) organizations®

* The Corporation has not previously presented this measure for reporting purposes. It is
included here to supplement the FY 2004 performance information.

** The Corporation presented this measure in the PAR of FY 2003.

1 Responses could include: True to a great extent, True to a moderate extent, Not true,
Not applicable, or Don’t know.

2 The 2003 number is from the national RSVP overview from PPVA 2003 self-reported by
grantees in “eCrants.” The 2004 number estimated as same, based on federal funding in
2004. The number listed in the FY 2003 PAR is budgeted RSVP volunteers; not actually
serving.

3 Responses could include: True to a great extent, True to a moderate extent, Not true,
Not applicable, or Don’t know.

4 Outcome-based assignments engage volunteers in activities that will contribute to
meeting a community need as identified by key stakeholders in the community. The
results of the service must be measurable and there must be a system in place for
reporting the information. Not used as an official GPRA indicator after FY03; replaced
with more direct measurements of performance.

5 The question asked: “For each of the following, do you strongly agree, agree, disagree,
or strongly disagree? (check one box for each row). Volunteering through RSVP has:
given more meaning to my life (a); given me a more positive attitude (b); made me a
better informed citizen (g); made me feel competent (i). Responses: a) Strongly agree:
33 %; Agree: 58 %; b) Strongly agree: 29 %; Agree: 57 %; 9) Strongly agree: 27 %; Agree:
37 %; 1) Strongly agree: 27 %; Agree: 34 %

SdJ0) 32INIBS JOIUSS |euonnen
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Foster Grandparents
Work with Incarcerated
Youth

Eight Foster Grandparents in
two teams of four mentor
youth incarcerated at Juvenile
Hall in Imperial County,
California's poorest county.
After being sent to Juvenile
Hall for a variety of reasons,
including committing burglary
and assault, the youth receive
four hours per week of men-
toring and tutoring services.
Many of those served have at
least one parent in prison; in
fact, 79 percent of the incar-
cerated youth participating in
a recent survey have parents
who have spent time in jail.
The Foster Grandparents
undergo a 40-hour training
session to prepare them for
their mentoring duties. In
addition, all have taken a four-
week pre-employment and
work-training class so that
they can help the youth fill
out job applications and pre-
pare for interviews. The pro-
gram focuses on young peo-
ple who have high rates of
recidivism in an attempt to
break the cycle of incarcera-
tion that spans generations.
One young man had a brother
in Juvenile Hall, while his
father, uncle, and grandfather
were all imprisoned. Sharin
Yetman, who established the
program through Catholic
Charities of the Diocese of San
Diego, was inspired by
President Bush's message in
his 2002 State of the Union
address that children of pris-
oners need mentors to help
them avoid prison themselves.
Youth are often sent to
Juvenile Hall as a result of tru-
ancy. Yetman found that poor
academic skills make them
more likely to be truant and
included a book club in the
program to improve reading
skills. Many of the youth enter
the program reading at a
third- or fourth-grade level.
Participants in the year-old
program are less likely to com-
mit serious crimes.

Cont’d on next page sidebar

Foster Grandparent Program

About the Program

Since 1965, Foster Grandparents have provided aid, support and
service to children and youth with exceptional needs in a variety
of settings including schools, hospitals, drug treatment centers,
correctional institutions, and Head Start and child care centers.
They mentor children and troubled teenagers, model parenting
skills to adolescent mothers, and care for premature infants and
children with disabilities. In many cases, Foster Grandparents
maintain an ongoing relationship with specific children for a year
or longer. In other cases, such as that of Foster Grandparents
assigned to a hospital pediatric ward where they help to comfort
young patients, they serve a higher number of children for short-
er durations of time.

Foster Grandparents serve schedules ranging from 15 to 40 hours
per week, during which they provide one-on-one service to chil-
dren and youth. Foster Grandparents must be age 60 or over and
must meet certain income eligibility guidelines to receive the
monetary stipend of $2.65 per hour. They also receive accident,
liability, and automobile insurance coverage, if needed, during
their assignments.

One measure of the Foster Grandparent Program’s (FGP’s) impor-
tance to a community is the amount of non-Corporation
resources it generates. In 2004, FGP matched every federal dollar
with a non-federal source of 34 percent:

» Corporation funding: $107.7 million;
= Non-corporation funding: $36.7 million; and

» Foster Grandparents serve in serve in several issue areas, with
the most (84 percent) focusing on education.

Foster Grandparents Volunteer Breakdown by Issue Area’

Issue Area Percent of Volunteers
Education 84%
Health and Nutrition 11%
Human Needs 8%
Public Safety 2%
Disaster 1%
Homeland Security 0%

Source Westat, 2004 Senior Corps Accomplishnment Survey Findings

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Program Performance Cont'd from previous page sidebar

O . . .
P Goal 1: Meet human needs through diverse, high-quality
«@ service programs IEG Fo;ter Grandparenis h%Lp
= . . ., . eir charges reconnect wi
QO Strata'egy 1.1 Levef'age service to address the nation’s education, their families or encourage
= public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other them to remain in foster
o human needs placements when released

. . from Juvenile Hall. One youn
2 FGP aims, through its grantees and volunteers, to address human man is now attending juyniorg
3 needs throughout the nation. Each year, more than 31,000 Foster college and credits the Foster
E Grandparents serve through a network of 337 local projects Eg:?%gi;%‘lgs V%z lr:noaslég]rg
Q nationwide funded with Corporation and non-Corporation Grandparents receive plenty of
,:, funds.2 These grantees in turn work with more than 10,000 com- peer support from one anoth-
®

er each week, in addition to

munity organizations, both faith-based and secular, that supervise attending regular meetings

the Foster Grandparents during their service. In 2004, there was with the Catholic Charities

a slight reduction from the previous year — from 32,500 to 31,725 staff to work out problems
o . : that may come up. The pro-

— primarily due to closures of non-Corporation funded projects gram also has a strong com-

due to state budget cuts. These closures did affect the numbers of mitment from the Imperial

County Probation
Department. Source: National
Service News 208

volunteers and VSYs.

The Corporation also funded 337 FGP projects in 2004, compared
to 329 in 2001. Again, this was due primarily to closures of non-
Corporation funded projects due to state budget cuts, particularly
in California. In addition, 24,328 federally-funded FGP service
years were budgeted in 2004, a decrease of more than 100 from
the previous year. Also in 2004, the Foster Grandparents served
more than 263,000 children with special and exceptional needs.

In 2004, 97 percent of volunteer station supervisors reported that
Foster Grandparents helped them increase the quality of services
they offer.

Looking forward, FGP aims to increase positive benefits for more
involvement of children of prisoners and children in foster care.

Strategy 1.2: Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability
The Corporation’s success depends largely on the performance of
its grantees, which is why we support grantees with training and
technical assistance (T&TA), including topics such as volunteer
management, performance measures, high quality placements for
volunteers, and a whole range of programmatic areas that support
the issues of the corporation.
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The Corporation is putting an increased focus on end outcome
performance measures, increased sophistication in use of technol-
ogy to perform their project management functions, compliance
monitoring visits, and corrections put in place following compli-
ance monitoring visits. Part of this effort will include a focus on
grantees that meet target levels for their 2004 end outcome per-
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formance measures.

Strategy 1.3: Diversify the National and Community Service
infrastructure

Expanding the diversity of FGP grantee organizations is a priority
for the Corporation. We seek to increase the diversity of the
overall FGP grantee profile by attracting new sponsor organiza-
tion types that are beyond the traditional Foster Grandparent
Program sponsors. The Corporation intends to collect informa-
tion in the future to monitor progress of infrastructure diversifi-
cation.

Goal 2: Improve the lives of national service participants
Strategy 2.2: Expand education, economic and other opportuni-
ties for service participants.
As with other Senior Corps programs, FGP helps senior volun-
teers remain independent, enhances their quality of life, and
emphasizes lifelong learning. In 2004, volunteers overwhelming-
ly agreed that the program led to decreased isolation by making
them feel closer to their community (71 percent) and helping
them to make more friends

Federally Funded Foster Grandparent Service Years Budgeted

25,000

22,500

20,000 A

17,500

15,000

Number 12,500 -
10,000

7,500+

5,000

2,500

or close acquaintances (90
percent). More than 90
percent agreed that their

volunteer assignments

0-

2002 2003 2004

were satisfying because
they provided opportuni-
ties to make direct positive
changes in the lives of the
children and youth they
serve.

Goal 3: Strengthen the
infrastructure, capacity,
and social capital of
communities across

America
Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-
based and other community-based organizations
In FY 2004, 41 Foster Grandparent sponsors were faith-based
organizations, compared to 39 faith-based sponsors in FY 2003
and represents 12.2 percent of the 337 total FGP projects.

Evaluation Findings and Plan

In 2004, the Corporation launched a series of surveys to capture
outputs and outcomes attributable to the volunteers. These sur-

Corporation for National and Community Service
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veys and the final products, administered by the research con-

3 tractor Westat:
o
u . (45 . . »
3 » Provided an updated “National Accomplishment Report” quan-
= tifying Foster Grandparents and their service to children and
- youth; and,
g = Compiled and report on outcomes realized by the children,
community an the volunteers themselves.
o y and by the vol hemsel
S
Y 1 The total exceeds 100 percent because volunteers often worked in more than one
= service category area.
o 2 The 2003 number is from the national overview from PPVA 2003. The 2004 estimate is
® based on the reduction of non-Corporation funded projects in 2004.
FGP Key Program Performance Measures
Actuals Goal
Performance Measure FY2001 FY2002 FY2005 FY2004  FY 2004

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education, public safety, environmental, home-
land security, and other human needs

Percent of children mentored by Foster N/A N/A N/A a) 58%, N/A
Grandparents demonstrating increases in 40%

prosocial behavior. How have the relationships b) 33%,

with the FGs affected the children's a) behav- 59%

ior with other children? b) relationships with C) 67%,

family members in general? ¢) respect 33%

towards others? d)academic performance in d) 62%,

school? e) self-image? (FY04 Figures note 35%

Significant Positive Contribution and e) 63%,

Somehwat Positive Contribution Percentages) 36%

Source: 2004 Service Recipients Survey *1

Percent of volunteer station supervisors who N/A N/A N/A 66% N/A
reported that Foster Grandparents helped

them increase the quality of services they

offer to a "great" extent. Source: 2004 Survey

of Volunteer Station Supervisors *2

Number of volunteers enrolled. Source: 1) 26,100 N/A 32,500 31,725 34,000
Grants Tracking Database; 2) Project Profile
and Volunteer Activity Survey; 3) eCrants *3

Number of federally funded Foster 321 323 329 329 N/A
Grandparent projects. Source: Grants Tracking
Database **

Number of FGP Projects receiving grants from 339 340 340 337 340
all sources. Source: 1) Grants Tracking
Database; 2) eGrants *

Number of federally funded Foster 23,300 23,968 24,328 24,328 N/A
Grandparent service years budgeted. Source:
Grants Tracking Database ™™
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Number of children with special and excep- 275,000 275,000 263,600 263,600 N/A
tional needs served annually by Foster
Grandparents. Source: Project Profile and
Volunteer Survey (PPVA)
(continued on next page)
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(cont'd) Actuals Goal
Performance Measure FY2001 FY2002 FY2003  FY2004  FY 2004
Strategy 1.2: |mprOVG program quality, reach, and SUStainab”ity

Percentage of grantees who met target levels N/A N/A N/A Info will be N/A
for their 2004 end outcome performance a‘z’g'c')asb'e in FY
. . W report
measures, as listed in the grant appliation
work plan. Source: eGrants *4

Strategy 2.2: Expand educational, economic, and other opportunities for service participants

Percent of FGP volunteers who "strongly N/A N/A N/A a) Strongly N/A
agreed" or "agreed" that involvement with the Agree:56%,

program led to decreased isolation: a) made Agree:36%

me feel closer to my community; b) helped b) Strongly

me make more friends or close acquaintanc- Agree:64%,

es. Source: 2004 Survey of Senior Corps Agree:33%
Volunteers *>

Percent of Foster Grandparents who "agreed" N/A N/A N/A Strongly N/A
or "strongly agreed" that their volunteer Agree:68%,
assignments were satisfying because they Agree:24%

provided opportunities to make direct posi-
tive changes in the lives of children and youth
they served. Source: 2004 Survey of Senior
Corps Volunteers *6

Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-based and other community-based
organizations

Number of grantees that are faith-based N/A N/A N/A 41
organizations*
Number of grantees that are community- N/A N/A N/A 230

based (secular, non-profit) organizations*

* The Corporation has not previously presented this measure for reporting purposes. It is
included here to supplement the FY 2004 performance information.

** The Corporation presented this measure in the PAR of FY 2003.

1 Responses included: A significant positive contribution; A somewhat positive contribu-
tion; Has had no effect; Has had negative effect; or Does not apply.

2 The question asked: “Please describe the extent to which Foster Grandparents provide
the following benefits to your organization. (Check one choice for each statement)
Foster Grandparents help improve the quality of services provided: (True to a great
extent, True to a moderate extent, Not true, not applicable; Don't know) Responses:
Great extent: 66 %; Moderate extent: 31 %

3 The 2003 number is from the national overview from PPVA 2003. The 2004 estimate is
based on the reduction of non-Corporation funded projects in 2004.

4 Data to be available quarterly, about one quarter after receipt of PPR, starting in 2005.
Performance measures were first implemented for Senior Corps in July 2003; there was
a perception of not enough time for grantees to reach end-outcomes.

5 The question asked, “For each of the following, do you strongly agree, agree, disagree,
or strongly disagree? (Check one box for each row) Volunteering through the Foster
Grandparent Program has: d) Made me feel closer to my community; ¢) Helped me
make more friends or close acquaintances. Responses: d) Strongly agree: 43 %; Agree:
28 %; C) Strongly agree: 52 %; Agree: 38 %

6 The question asked, For each of the following, do you strongly agree, agree, disagree,
or strongly disagree? (Check one box for each row) Volunteering through the Foster
Grandparent Program has: Given me a chance contribute to others (f). Responses:
Strongly agree: 68 %; Agree: 24 %

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Senior Companion Program

About the Program

The Senior Companion Program, like the Foster Grandparent
Program, provides persons age 60 and over with the opportunity
to serve. Senior Companions assist frail, homebound individuals,
most of them elderly, with daily living tasks such as bill paying,
buying groceries, and finding transportation to medical appoint-
ments, helping them retain their dignity and independence.
They also provide companionship and support to their clients,
many of whom are isolated and living alone. While some Senior
Companions serve in community settings such as adult day care
or respite centers, the majority of Senior Companions serve
directly in the private homes of their clients, where their care
provides respite for clients’ caregivers. Senior Companions also
serve as “eyes and ears” for case managers, identifying potential
problems or services needed for their 57,500 mostly frail and eld-
erly adults.
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Senior Companions serve weekly schedules ranging from 15 to 40
hours per week and receive ongoing training in topics such as
Alzheimer’s disease, stroke, diabetes, and mental health.
Companions who meet income guidelines are eligible to receive
an hourly stipend of $2.65.

In FY 2004, we estimate that

16,355 Senior Companions spent Percentage of Senior Companion Volunteers Working in each Major

13.9 million hours volunteering, Service Activity Area’

for an average of 850 hours per
volunteer. The figure below pres- Other Human Needs
ents the distribution of volunteers
who worked in each of the seven

. . . Community and Economic
service activity areas: Development
Health/Nutrition, Other Human
Needs, Community and Economic
Development, Public Safety, Public Safety
Housing, Education, and Disaster.

Health/Nutrition

Education

SdJ0) 32INIBS JOIUSS |euonnen

Housing
The largest percent of volunteers — Disaster
in both the current and the prior ‘
A 0 0 0 0 o 0
Accomplishments Surveys — pro- 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
vided services in Human Needs Source: Westat, 2004 Senior Corps Accomplisnment Survey Findings

and Health and Nutrition, fol-

lowed by Community and Economic

Development and Public Safety (the latter two with much lower
percentages of volunteers).
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Program Performance

Goal 1: Meet human needs through diverse, high-quality
service programs

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other
human needs

In 2004, 16,355 volunteers were enrolled in the program, which
falls short of the 17,300 goal. As with the other programs, the
shortfall likely is due to closure of non-Corporation funded proj-
ects (state funded), due to budget cuts at the state level. The
Corporation funded 191 Senior Companion projects in 2004,
compared to 178 in 2001. In addition, there was a total of 9,885
federally funded SCP service years budgeted in 2004 compared to
9,400 in 2001.
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SCP is focusing attention
on meeting the needs of
the adult clients in need
of independent living
60,000 services and respite for
54,0007 caregivers. However, the
48,000 : :

service is not seen by

42,000 ~ - ff .
36,000 | caregivers as offering a

Frail, Homebound, Usually Elderly Clients Served by SC

Number 30 000 | service not affordable if
24,000 | purchased at the market
18,000 rate. For example, only

12,000 -
6,000 -

5.8 percent of sponsoring
organization staff and 9.6

2001 2002 2003 2004 percent of family mem-
Year bers said that SCP offered
Source: Project Profile and Volunteer Activity Survey a service that they would
not have been able to
afford.

In 2004, the number of frail, homebound, usually elderly clients
served by Senior Companions was approximately 57,700, a
decrease of more than 3,000 from the previous year.

National Senior Senior Service Corps

Strategy 1.2: Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability
The Corporation’s success depends largely on the performance of
its grantees, which is why we support grantees with training and
technical assistance (T&TA). In 2004, 227 SCP projects received
grants, slightly more than the FY 2004 goal of 223.

To improve program quality, reach, and sustainability, SCP aims
to increase the number of grantees that meet their end outcome
performance measures, demonstrate increased sophistication in
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use of technology to perform their project management func-
tions, completed work plan goals, compliance monitoring visits,
and corrective action following monitoring visits. Part of this
effort will include a focus on grantees who meet target levels for
their 2004 end outcome performance measures.

In 2004, 98 percent of volunteer station supervisors reported that
Senior Companions helped them increase the quality of services

they offer.2

Strategy 1.3: Diversify the National and Community Service
infrastructure

We seek to increase the diversity of the overall SCP grantee pro-
file by attracting 20 percent of new sponsors who are more
diverse. The Corporation intends to collect information in the
future to monitor progress of infrastructure diversification.
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Goal 2: Improve the lives of national service participants
Strategy 2.2: Expand education, economic and other opportuni-
ties for service participants

As with other Senior Corps programs, SCP helps senior volun-
teers remain independent, enhances their quality of life, and
emphasizes lifelong learning. By surveying SCP volunteers, we
help ensure that Corporation programs are providing these
opportunities.

In 2004. a majority of Senior Senior Companions and Decreased Isolation

Companions said they strongly agreed
that involvement with the program led Percen_t of Senior Cor_npanions who "agreed" or “strongly ag_ree.d"
that involvement with the program led to decreased isolation:
to decreased isolation, including feel-
ing closer to their community (53 per-
cent) and helping them to make more
friends or close acquaintances (72 per-
cent). Eighty-five percent also agreed
that their assignments were satisfying Percent
because they provided opportunities to
make direct positive changes in the

sdJ0) 92IAJISS JOIUSS [eUOIlEN

lives of the clients they served. made me feel helped me make
closer to my more friends
community or close
Goal 3: Strengthen the infrastruc- acquaintances

ture, capacity, and social capital of
communities across America
Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-
based and other community-based organizations

The Corporation strives to increase SCP’s role with faith-based
and other community-based organizations. In addition, we expect
to increase the number of communities where SCP volunteers are
available through faith-based and other community-based organi-
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Senior Corps Engages
Nursing Home Residents
as Volunteers

Residents of nursing homes
and assisted living facilities in
Monroe County, New York,
have limited options for going
out to volunteer within the
community. So the volunteer-
ing comes to them. At six
facilities in and around
Rochester, about 75 volun-
teers gather once a week or
SO participate in activities that
benefit local nonprofit organi-
zations, but that can be done
in the setting where the vol-
unteers live. Social workers
and activity directors at the
facilities contact nonprofits to
see what is needed, then help
residents provide the request-
ed services. The volunteers
bake cookies that will be
served at cancer survivors
support group meetings and
create greeting cards that will
be donated to nonprofit to be
used in fundraising. They also
have held bake sales to bene-
fit a local hospice. At one site,
the volunteers have made
more than 1,000 teddy bears
that are given to children who
are being treated in emer-
gency rooms and chemo dolls
for young cancer patients. The
hair on the chemo dolls is
held on with Velcro so that
the owner can remove it as
the patient's hair falls out dur-
ing treatment. People who
live in nursing homes and
assisted living facilities want to
stay involved in their commu-
nities, but often find that dif-
ficult to achieve. Senior Reach
allows them to maintain con-
tact with their communities
while providing opportunities
for socializing among the par-
ticipants. Source: National
Service News 205

zations. Sixteen percent of the volunteer stations were identified
as faith-based in 2004.3

Evaluation Findings and Plan

The 2004 Senior Companions Evaluation examined the impact of
the Senior Companion Program on clients, families and care-
givers served by the program. The study compared quality of life
and quality of care outcomes for clients receiving services from
50 randomly selected Senior Companions projects to outcomes
for a comparison group of seniors on the waiting list for Senior
Companions.

The evaluation findings suggest Senior Companions provide sig-
nificant benefits to the organizations they work with. SCP
showed a decrease in depression and increased life satisfaction for
clients and families served. Clients’ self-reported life satisfaction,
with respect to depression, showed an 18 percent improvement
compared to the comparison group. Effects on family members
and other caretakers of the elderly were limited. The ability to
cope with the responsibility of caring for a frail senior family
member appear to be greater for Senior Companion client family
members than for comparison group family members, however,
the difference becomes negligible in the long-term. In addition,
organizations reported high levels of satisfaction with their
Senior Companions, although technical competence among some
of the Senior Companions was lacking in certain areas.

1 The total exceeds 100 percent because volunteers often worked in more than one
service category area.

2 The question asked: “Please describe the extent to which Senior Companions provide
the following benefits to your organization. (Check one choice for each statement)
Senior Companions help improve the quality of services provided: (True to a great
extent, True to a moderate extent, Not true, Not applicable, Don't know).” Responses:
Great extent: 68 %; Moderate extent: 30 %

3 In order to analyze the role of faith-based organizations in senior volunteer programs,
station supervisors were asked to identify whether or not their organization was faith-
based.
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SCP Key Program Performance Measures
Actuals Goal

BN FY2001 FY2002 FY2003  FY2004  FY2004

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education, public safety, environmental, home-
land security, and other human needs

Percent of volunteer station supervisors who N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
reported that Senior Companions helped

them increase the quality of services they

offer. Source: 2004 Survey of Volunteer

Station Supervisors

Number of volunteers enrolled. Source: 1) N/A N/A 16,500 16,355 17,300
Grants Tracking Database; 2) Project Profile

and Volunteer Activity Survey; 3) eGrants “22

Number of clients assisted categorized by N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
special need of client. *

Percent of family members/ caregivers/ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
clients who report that the service provided

by Senior Companions is helpful. *

Number of federally funded Senior 178 188 191 191 N/A
Companion projects. Source: Grants Tracking

Database **

Number of federally funded Senior 9,400 9,666 9,885 9,885 N/A
Companion service years budgeted. Source:
Financial Status Reports from Grantee *
Number of frail, homebound, usually elderly 61,300 61,000 61,000 57,700 N/A
clients served annually by Senior Companions.
Source: Project Profile and Volunteer Activity
Survey ™"
Percent of Senior Companion clients demon- N/A N/A N/A Info will be N/A
strating decreases in social isolation. Source: aVFi("az%'SS'”
2004 Service Recipients Survey report
Percent of caregivers of Senior Companion N/A N/A N/A a) 0% N/A
clients reporting that Senior Companions b) 5.8%
deliver a service not affordable if purchased C) 9.6%
at the market rate: a) from non-SCP volun- d) 1.9%
teers; b) local SCP sponsoring organization e) 0%
staff; c) family members; d) organization or f) 50%
family would pay; e) would do without servic- g) 36.5
es: fidon't know; g) other23 (mostly
blank

spaces)
Percent of volunteer station supervisors who N/A N/A N/A Great N/A
reported that Senior Companions helped Extent:
them increase the quality of services they 68%
offer to a "great" or "'moderate" extent. Moderate
Source: 2004 Survey of Volunteer Station extent:
Supervisors “24 30%

(continued on next page)
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(cont’d) Actuals Goal

Performance Measure FY2001 FY2002 FY2003  FY2004  FY 2004
Strategy 1.2: Improve program quality, reach, and sustainability
Percentage of grantees who met target levels N/A N/A N/A Info will be N/A
for their 2004 end outcome performance a;’g'('fsb'rip')griy

measures, as listed in the grant application
work plan. Source: eGrants Grants

Management Database “2°

Number of SCP Projects receiving grants from 218 N/A 227 224 223
all sources. Source: 1) Grants Tracking

Database; 2) eGrants

Strategy 1.3: Diversify the National and Community Service infrastructure

No data available

Strategy 2.2: Expand educational, economic, and other opportunities for service participants

Percent of Senior Companions who "agreed" N/A N/A N/A a) Strongly N/A
or "strongly agreed" that involvement with the Agree: 53%,

program led to decreased isolation: a) made Agree: 39%

me feel closer to my community; b) helped b) Strongly

me make more friends or close acquaintanc- Agree: 72%,

es. Source: 2004 Survey of Senior Corps Agree: 26%

Volunteers ™

Percent of Senior Companions who "agreed" N/A N/A N/A Strongly N/A
or "strongly agreed" that their volunteer Agree: 83%,
assignments were satisfying because they Agree: 17%

provided opportunities to make direct posi-
tive changes in the lives of the clients they
served. Source: 2004 Survey of Senior Corps

Volunteers

Strategy 3.4: Increase service programs and participants in faith-based and other community-based
organizations

Number of grantees that are faith-based N/A N/A N/A 36
organizations”
Number of grantees that are community- N/A N/A N/A 142

based (secular, non-profit) organizations*

* The Corporation has not previously presented this measure for reporting purposes. It is
included here to supplement the FY 2004 performance information.

** The Corporation presented this measure in the PAR FY 2003.

1 The 2003 number is from the national overview from PPVA 2003 self-reported by
grantees in “eGrants.”

2 The question asked, “If you did not receive these visits and services from IName of
Senior Companionl, do you think you could find someone else to do these services with-
out paying for them (Yes/ No/ Don't know)” Responses: No: 63 percent [for clients; 69
% for caregivers in similar question]

3 The question asked: "Please describe the extent to which Senior Companions provide
the following benefits to your organization. (Check one choice for each statement)
Senior Companions help improve the quality of services provided: (True to a great
extent, True to a moderate extent, Not true, Not applicable, Don't know)." Responses:
Great extent: 68 %; Moderate extent: 30%

4 Data to be available quarterly, about one quarter after receipt of PPR, starting in
November 2005. Performance measures were first implemented for Senior Corps in July
2003; there was a perception of not enough time for grantees to reach end-outcomes.
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Special Volunteer Programs

About the Program

Special Volunteer Programs encourage and enable persons from
all walks of life and all age groups to perform meaningful and
constructive volunteer service in a variety of agencies, institu-
tions, and situations. Special Volunteer Programs also provide
technical and financial assistance to encourage voluntary organi-
zations and volunteer efforts at the national, state, and local lev-
els.

Homeland Security Grants

Special Volunteers in homeland security engage in a variety of
activities to help ensure communities and citizens are better pre-
pared to prevent, respond to, or provide relief during emergen-
cies, both natural and manmade.

Some of these activities include:

» Helping cities and states use volunteers to develop and carry
out emergency response plans;

= Expanding Citizen Emergency Response Teams and Volunteers
in Police Service;

= Training community members of all ages to understand and
cope with acts of terrorism;

» Providing information to low-income communities about how
to respond to bioterrorism;

» Developing public health strategies for responding to munici-
pality-wide emergencies; and

» Creating Volunteer Organizations Active in Disasters (VOAD:s)
in areas that lack them.

Program Performance

Goal One — Meet human needs through diverse, high qual-
ity service programs

Strategy 1.1 — Leverage service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other
human needs

Homeland Security Grants ($4,471,000 in FY 2004)
Between FY 2002 and 2004, 29 Special Volunteer Program home-
land security grants were awarded (in 2004 12 new grants were

Corporation for National and Community Service

B-159

)
(2
<
]
€
S
)
G
S
)
o
€
©
S
=)
2)
S
o

Special Volunteer Programs



added to the 17 continuation grants) to national and local nonprofit
agencies such as theMercy Medical Airlift and the Salvation Army of
Eastern Michigan [American Red Cross and the American Radio Relay
League — new examples?, ask Peter, Angela], as well as cities, counties,
and state commissions on national and community service. By the end
of their second year of operation, the original 17 grantees had mobi-
lized more than 25,000 community volunteers who received Red Cross
disaster training, supported community preparedness meetings, and
expanded the pool of trained volunteers available to serve in an emer-

gency.

During FY 2004, the original grantees continued to emphasize recruit-
ment of seniors, and approximately 50% of the volunteers serving dur-
ing the second year of the grants were age 55 or older. Continuing this
emphasis, a goal of 75% of seniors was established for the third and
final year of these grants, while the grantees were expected to contin-
ue to recruit and place Special Volunteers to serve in an ongoing
capacity and leverage other community volunteers.

Examples of Homeland Security volunteer accomplishments in FY
2004:

» 600 trained Southeast Pennsylvania volunteers participated in com-
munity walk-throughs, presentations, a mock disaster drill, and com-
munity homeland security fairs.

» 2,600 volunteers mobilized by the American Red Cross of Greater
New York provided 18,585 hours of service to support events spon-
sored by local Citizen Corps Councils, volunteer agencies, and emer-
gency management agencies, including emergency preparedness
training, a smallpox exercise, an anthrax simulation, and ensuring
that the needs of special needs populations are represented in disaster
response planning.

m The American Radio Relay League recruited and trained 380 volun-
teer mentors nationwide to provide e-mail, on-air, and telephone
support to over 2500 students enrolled in its on-line Emergency
Communication Course. A total of 3,828 amateur radio volunteers
have been certified in emergency communications and have provided
68,000 hours of emergency communication service, including a major
role in the Florida hurricanes (see sidebar).

Homeland Security grantees:

» Worked with more than 590 faith-based and community-based
partners;

» Worked with more than 200 chapters of the American Red Cross;

» Worked with more than 255 FEMA or emergency management
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Florida Hurricanes:
Volunteer Support

In Florida, as four hurri-
canes--Charley, Frances,
Ivan, and Jeanne--all
made landfall in the
state within six weeks
last August and
September, the disaster
volunteer management
systems put in place by
SVP grantee, Volunteer
Florida, and 11 partner
Volunteer Centers and
collaborating county
emergency management
agencies, responded to a
hard test. The result was
reported as the state's
largest mobilization of
volunteers for a natural
disaster.

Some examples of this
volunteer support
include:

+ Amateur radio clubs
worked with
Volunteer Centers
in Citrus,

+ Martin, Sarasota,
and Seminole
Counties provided a
vital link among the
local disaster net-
work of emergency
managers and vol-
unteers, and

+ CERT volunteers that
were working close-
ly with Volunteer
Centers in Sarasota
and Seminole
Counties were
recruited to work
on hurricane relief
in emergency man-
agement offices.



agencies; and

» Helped to establish or support 518 Citizen Corps Councils.

Goal Three - Strengthen the infrastructure, capacity, and
social capital of communities across America

Strategy 3.2 — Strengthen the spirit of community, as demonstrat-
ed by greater interaction and collaboration among individuals
and communities

Parent Drug Corps ($4,167,000 in FY 2003)

At the end of FY 2003, $4.167 million was awarded to National
Families in Action for development of a national training system
and network of volunteer parents engaged in a nationwide sub-
stance abuse prevention effort over a period of three years.
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Evaluations

$800,000 of FY 2003 Special Volunteer Program funding was
used to develop and implement an evaluation of the Parent Drug
Corps Program. The specific aims of this study are to describe the
implementation of the Parent Drug Corps Program, and to use a
random assignment evaluation design to evaluate its impact on
prevention of and reduction in substance use among children
aged 18 or younger.

The results of this evaluation will be available in the winter of
2007, and will assess:

= Changes in parent-child communication about substance
abuse;

» Knowledge about substance abuse;

m Perceptions of the harm of substance abuse;

Special Volunteer Programs

m Risk behaviors related to substance abuse; and

m Actual levels of substance abuse among children.
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SVP Key Performance Measures
Actual Goal
Performance Measure -y o001 Fy2002  FY 2003 FY 2004  FY 2004

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education, public safety, environmental,
homeland security and other human needs

Total number of volun- N/A N/A 36,800 28,873
teers enrolled through

Special Volunteer

Programs. Source:

Grantee Quarterly

Progress Reports

Number of federally N/A 17 17 29
funded SVP homeland

security grantees.

Source: eCrants *

Percent of grantees who N/A N/A N/A 77% (@)
met target levels for

their end outcome per-

formance measures, as

listed in their grant

application workplan.

Source: eGrants **

°
*
o

Q
1
o
3
o
®
1
=
)
1
3
(V)
S
(o]
®

Strategy 3.3: Increase volunteering in America and grow community capacity to engage volun-
teers effectively

Number of volunteers 5,523 11,783
leveraged by Special

Volunteers. Source:

Grantee Quarterly

Progress Reports **

* The Corporation presented this measure in the Performance and Accountability Report FY
2003.

** The Corporation has not previously presented this measure for reporting purposes. It is
included here to supplement the FY 2004 performance information.

(@13 of 17 grantees reported in time for the report. 10 of 13 met their self selected end out-
come targets.
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Partnership Grants

About the Program

The Points of Light Foundation (POLF) and America’s Promise,
in collaboration with the Corporation, have helped to promote
volunteering (POLF, more than a decade, and America’s Promise,
5-6 years). The Corporation provides annual grants to these two
national organizations to assist their support of local organiza-
tions in administering community service projects and programs.
The Corporation budget for FY 2004 included a $9.94 million
grant to the POLF and a $4.97 million grant for America’s
Promise. Support for the POLF was written into the
Corporation’s authorizing legislation, and funds have been
requested by the Administration and approved by Congress since
the Corporation began operations 10 years ago. Corporation sup-
port for America’s Promise began in 2001; however, we support-
ed AmeriCorps Promise Fellows several years before 2001.

Points of Light Foundation

The Points of Light Foundation encourages every American and
every American institution to help solve the Nation’s most criti-
cal social problems through volunteering. Its objectives include:

m Identifying and disseminating information about successful and
promising community service projects and initiatives with non-
profit organizations, corporations, families, and youth;

= Building the capacity of organizations to support volunteer
service;

» Developing individuals as leaders to serve as strong examples of
a commitment to serving others and to convince all Americans
that a successful life includes serving others;

= Raising public awareness around the societal benefits of com-
munity volunteering; and

» Providing leadership through local delivery systems to mobilize
volunteers.

The Corporation supports two-thirds of the administrative costs
for POLF’s national office, as well as the training and technical
assistance services it provides to volunteer centers, business vol-
unteer programs, and other organizations. This grant also consti-
tutes 47 percent of POLF’s total revenues. In addition to mone-
tary resources, the Corporation provides service participants and
community volunteers to America’s Promise communities
through AmeriCorps, Learn and Serve America, the National

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Senior Service Corps, and other Corporation initiatives.

America’s Promise

America’s Promise is a national organization that mobilizes peo-
ple, communities, and organizations from every sector of
American life to build the character and competence of youth by
meeting the following “Five Promises™:

» Caring adults in their lives, as parents, mentors, tutors, and
coaches;
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m Safe places with structured activities during non-school hours;
» A healthy start and future;
» Marketable skills through effective education; and

= Opportunities to give back through community service.

America’s Promise brokers partnerships and provides support,
such as training, technical assistance and program development,
but does not administer the “Communities of Promise” or other
America’s Promise programs. America’s Promise advocates for
children and youth and provides support to a network of
“Communities of Promise,” made up of community-based groups
that are committed to delivering all Five Promises and that
implement projects in support of young people at the community
level.

Program Performance

sjuetn diystaulied

America’s Promise supports the Corporation’s goal of meeting
human needs, while POLF helps the Corporation strengthen
communities across America. The programs’ objectives under
these goals, along with a description of FY 2004 performance, are
presented below.

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security and other
human needs

Funding provided through the America’s Promise grant supports
the goals of the “Five Promises” movement to meet the needs of
more children by:

= Strengthening collaboration among the Alliance partners at the
national and state level to mirror that of the local
“Communities of Promise;”

» Coordinating a national visibility campaign to mobilize individ-
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uals to help fulfill the “Five Promises” for children and youth
by their own service and leadership in their communities;

» Developing and providing centralized access to information,
research, tools, training and other resources available to support
the widespread development of effective collaborations for chil-
dren and youth; and

» Encouraging outcomes measurement and reporting to the
nation on our collective progress.

Through America’s Promise, the “Five Promises” are met in more
children’s lives. The more of these “Five Promises” a child has
present in his or her life, America’s Promise believes, the more
positive the outcomes, such as performance in school and rela-
tionships with peers and family. Conversely, the fewer a child
has, the more risky his or her life becomes.
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One of the five-year goals for America’s Promise is to help 100
“Communities of Promise” move to “fully-effective” status
through an 18-month intensive support and assistance effort.
America’s Promise has provided three or more of the Five
Promises to 33,000 children and youth through its demonstration

communities.! These demonstration communities also help to
identify “best practices”, thus helping to increase overall service
effectiveness. This process continues as America’s Promise works
toward the goal of 100 “fully-effective” “Communities of
Promise” by FY 2007. America’s Promise has also established
States of Promise to create statewide infrastructures for develop-
ing and sustaining “Communities of Promise”.

Strategy 3.3: Increase volunteering in America and grow commu-
nity capacity to engage volunteers effectively

POLF’s 2001 Volunteer Center Survey suggests that across the
volunteer center national network, the independent volunteer
centers are increasing the number of volunteer opportunities and
volunteer connections annually.

Partnership Grants

POLF is improving the performance of organizations and pro-
grams to engage volunteers aged 50 and up to help solve serious
social problems. The goals of the initiative are to: 1) improve
access for older adults to high impact volunteer opportunities; 2)
create, disseminate, and replicate programs and effective practices
for engaging older adults; and 3) systematically build a body of
knowledge related to older adult volunteering. POLF and the
Volunteer Center National Network have successfully worked
with hundreds of thousands of adults aged 50 and up as volun-
teers.
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The Points of Light Foundation (POLF) worked in partnership
with over 360 community-based volunteer centers to connect
volunteers with opportunities to serve their communities. POLF
also has worked in collaboration with the Interfaith Community
Ministry Network, comprising scores of faith-based community
ministries and the Connect America National Partnership, com-
prising 123 partners representing all sectors. The Faith Initiative
provided technical assistance and other resources to more than
300 congregations, faith organizations and other groups around

the country.?
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Evaluation Findings and Plan

The Office of Planning, Research and Evaluation of POLF has
developed and administered a range of research and evaluation
initiatives designed to monitor and better manage performance of
the Foundation and its constituents. Among the most notable are
a concept mapping project supported by the MOTT Foundation
that will allow the Volunteer Center National Network to devel-
op a set of indicators so that they can report on the impact their
work is having. Soon, POLF will begin reporting on its perform-
ance outcomes against a set of well-designed indicators.

For FY 2005, the Corporation requested $100,000 for an
Evaluation of Corporation National Partnerships that will focus
on the Points of Light Foundation and America’s Promise and
their earmarked grants.

1 Mobilizing Communities to Deliver Promises, Final Report, March 2004,
Brandeis University

sjuetn diystaulied

2 POLF administrative systems
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Innovation Demonstration and
Assistance Activities

About the Program

Subtitle H of the National and Community Service Act authorizes
a wide range of activities that help to build the ethic of service
among Americans of all ages and backgrounds. The majority of
funds supported innovative and demonstration programs that
serve this goal as well as training and technical assistance activi-
ties.

The goals of the Innovation, Demonstration, and Assistance activ-
ities are to:

» Support innovative and demonstration service programs that
may not be eligible under other subtitles of the legislation;

m Support leadership development, training, and technical assis-
tance activities to support grantees receiving assistance under
the Act;

m Assist programs enrolling participants with disabilities and
accommodating their participation;

» Support activities that help to build the ethic of service among
Americans of all ages and backgrounds.

Program Performance

GOAL 1: Meet human needs through diverse, high quality
service programs

Strategy 1.1: Leverage Service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other
human needs

Challenge Grants ($2,379,000)

In FY 2003, the Corporation supported a new initiative by award-
ing grants totaling approximately $5.9 million to eight local and
national nonprofit organizations. The Challenge Grant program
requires that each Federal dollar awarded be “matched” by $2 in
private funding. The purpose of these challenge grants is to
assist nonprofit organizations in securing previously untapped
sources of private funds to build sustainable service and volunteer
programs. To date, seven of the eight grantees met and most
exceeded the match requirement. The match commitments to
the Corporation totals $17,113,727.00 exceeding our expectations

Corporation for National and Community Service
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for receiving nonfederal support for this new initiative by
approximately $5 million.

In FY 2004, the Corporation approved another $2.6 million for
six state, regional, and national nonprofit organizations to expand
programs that engage volunteers in meeting community needs.
The Corporation received a large response to our Notice of
Funding Availability (NOFA) —with requests totaling almost $18
million. The review process was rigorous, and the Corporation
was able to fund six proposals totaling the available $2.6 million.
The six organizations are: City Cares of America, a national
organization based in Atlanta, Ga., that recently changed its
name to the Hands On Network; Jumpstart, a national organiza-
tion based in Boston, Ma.; United Way of America (for a project
in Michigan); Plus Time New Hampshire; The Potter’s House of
Dallas, Tx.; and Youth Friends of Kansas City, Mo. (for projects in
Kansas, Missouri, and Michigan). The grants will support such
activities as organizing and managing community volunteers;
providing children with preschool training and after-school
tutoring; working with ex-prisoners to facilitate their re-entry
into society; and involving more minority women and girls in
philanthropic and volunteer efforts.
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Strategy 1.2 Improve Program Quality, Impact, Reach, and
Sustainability

Leadership Development and Training ($2,000,000; plus
$17,000,000 in Program T&TA funds)

Training and Technical Support to Grantees

Following a needs assessment of Corporation-funded grantees,
programs and partners, begun in FY 02, the Office of Leadership
Development and Training developed a new strategic Training
and Technical Assistance (T&TA) plan for the Corporation,
emphasizing program accountability and sustainability. The needs
assessment was updated in 2003-2004 and the following were
identified as the most critical training needs in the field for FY
04. The figures accompanying the training needs show the
Corporation’s response for FY 04:

m Performance measurement (171 training workshops/3,781 par-
ticipants);

90UBISISSY PUE ‘UoI3eJIsuowaqg ‘uoIleAouU|

» Education success/tutoring (36 training workshops/578 partici-
pants);

» Working with faith/community based organizations (19 train-
ing workshops/1,088 participants);

= Sustainability and volunteer recruitment (22 training work-
shops/1,618 participants);
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= Financial management (42 training workshops/2,571 partici-
pants).

» Training and Technical Assistance for State Commissions (59
training workshops/1,215 participants)

A total of 751 training workshops were held, attended by 18,146
national service participants. These trainings were supplemented
by more than 21,126 follow-up emails and telephone calls provid-
ing additional technical support

In addition, as a further critical component of this strategic plan,
the Corporation focused on making training and technical assis-
tance more cost-effective and available to programs by improving
the quality and accessibility of its online resources. This initia-
tive will continue into FY 05 and has thus far included the fol-
lowing steps in FY 04:

m A research project to identify and define the characteristics of
successful volunteer and community service programs. The new
“characteristics” system provides a vehicle for organizing T&TA
resources in a manner most useful for meeting programs’ needs;

m The design and launch of a new web portal, creating a single
point of access to T&TA resources offered by the Corporation to
its grantees and other volunteer agencies responding to the
President’s call to service;

m The acquisition of a new web-based learning management sys-
tem to support increased e-learning capabilities, online courses,
and the organization of online resources to make them more
easily accessible and usable; and

m The design of a web-based program assessment tool, to help
programs assess their capabilities and obtain, through the new
web portal, the T&TA resources needed.

National Events

In partnership with the Points of Light Foundation, the
Corporation planned and conducted its annual National
Conference on Community Volunteering and National Service in
Kansas City, with an attendance of over 2,000 participants, which
was preceded by a national training for state commission and
national parent organization program staff.

In addition, the Corporation continued the national symposium
series focused on four areas: the President’s mentoring initiative
(helping children of inmates); financial asset generation;
strengthening families; and empowering faith-based and small
grassroots organization and held five national institutes on finan-
cial management, sustainability, disability and inclusion, educa-
tion, and faith and community based initiatives.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Service-Learning Clearinghouse and Exchange ($725,000)

The National Service-Learning Clearinghouse provides training
and technical assistance to Learn and Serve America grantees, the
public, and other Corporation programs through its website
(www.servicelearning.org), lending library, listservs, toll-free
telephone line, attendance at conferences across the country, and
creation of new resources for service-learning. The Clearinghouse
disseminated 13 new publications and 2 new Service-Learning
Starter Kits this year. In addition, the Clearinghouse provides 8
different listservs to a variety of constituents that reach over
1,200 people regularly. These lists generated over 1,000 messages
in the last 6 months and have developed steadily over time. The
website generated nearly 900,000 page views in the last 6
months, up from over 500,000 during the same period in the pre-
vious year. Nearly 360 reference calls received support. The
Clearinghouse shipped over 20,100 training resource items and
publicity materials to users. These users have recently attested to
the usefulness of this resource: 86.8% percent of organizations in
2004 reported they were “very satisfied” or “somewhat satisfied”
with the content of the National Service Learning Clearinghouse
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Strategy 1.3 Diversify the National and Community Service
Infrastructure

Next Generation Grants ($1,000,000)

In FY 2004, the Corporation awarded $4.9 million in grant
awards to 16 organizations that are implementing new service
strategies with the potential to become national in scope. The
agency’s “Next Generation” grants foster the expansion of nation-
al services by providing seed money to help organizations plan
and implement new service programs. More than 1,150 organi-
zations applied for the two-year program, a record number of
applications for any Corporation grant competition. The appli-
cants requested a total of approximately $280 million in funds.
This large pool represented significant geographic and organiza-
tional diversity.

The selected proposals reflect a variety of innovative ideas that
have the potential to be replicated across the country and will
allow the Corporation’s investment to dramatically increase com-
munity involvement in service among previously underrepresent-
ed areas and groups. The projects address a variety of community
problems, including disadvantaged youth, prisoner re-entry,
homelessness, capacity building, youth service to inner city and
rural areas, education reform, civic engagement, and literacy.
Each project focuses on at least one of three services areas: pro-
grams that engage individuals in an intensive commitment to
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service in communities (approximately 40 hours per week); vol-
unteer programs for those 55 years of age and older; and pro-
grams that connect service with education. The grantees repre-
sent a strong mix between urban and rural programs, and many
are faith-based and community organizations.

GOAL 2: Improve the lives of national service participants
Strategy 2.1 Increase the Diversity of Participants within and
among Service Programs

Disability Grants ($4,555,000)

In FY 2004, the Corporation awarded disability grants to state
service commissions totaling approximately $2.5 million. State
Service Commissions developed disability placement plans with
two goals: (1) to increase the number of people with disabilities
who serve in AmeriCorps programs; and (2) to provide reasonable
accommodations when necessary to assist members in performing
community service. These plans delineate the outreach activities
and recruitment strategies designed to interest people with dis-
abilities in serving.

GOAL 3: Strengthen the infrastructure, capacity, and
social capital of communities across America

Strategy 3.3: Increase volunteering in America and grow commu-
nity capacity to engage volunteers effectively

MLK Grants ($500,000)

On January 19, 2004, thousands of Americans observed the holi-
day honoring the birth of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. by serving
their communities. To encourage Americans to memorialize the
life and teachings of Dr. King through service to others, the
Corporation for National and Community Service awards grants
to local organizations to involve individuals and groups in results
oriented community service. To promote service on January 19,
2004, the Corporation awarded approximately $497,000 in grants
to 96 local nonprofit organizations and public agencies. Grants
awarded in 38 states and the District of Columbia helped mobi-
lize volunteers to build homes with Habitat for Humanity, paint
schools, plant trees and clean parks, visit seniors in nursing
homes and take their oral histories, collect items for homeless
shelters, and install smoke detectors.

1 Source: Learn & Serve LASSIE survey, Corporation
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The National Service Trust

About the Program

The National Service Trust (the Trust) was established by the
National and Community Service Trust Act of 1993 (42 USC
12601, et seq.) to provide funds for education awards for eligible
participants who complete AmeriCorps service. Congressionally-
mandated reporting for the Trust, including the Trust’s unaudited
financial statements and a discussion of factors affecting the
Trust, is included in Appendix D.

Funding for the Trust comes from appropriations, interest earned,
and proceeds from the sale or redemption of Trust investments.
The Trust is also authorized to receive gifts or bequests; however,
to date, no donations have been received by the Trust. Under the
Act, funds are available to:

» Repay qualified student loans;

» Pay educational expenses at a qualified institution of higher
education;

m Pay expenses incurred participating in an approved school-to-
work program; and

m Repay eligible interest expense on student loans.

The value of an education award depends on the term of service
performed by an AmeriCorps member. Completion of a full-time
term of service, currently requiring a minimum of 1,700 hours of
service, entitles an AmeriCorps member to an education award of
$4,725. Completion of a part-time term, requiring a minimum of
900 hours of service, entitles an AmeriCorps member to an
education award of $2,362.50. Reduced part-time terms, which
provide awards of $1,000 to $1,800, are also offered. Education
awards earned by AmeriCorps members are available to be used
for seven years from the completion of the service. Payments
from the Trust are made directly to the educational institutions
and the loan holders as directed by the members and certified by
the institutions. Trust funds are not used to pay member stipends
or other grant costs.

Recent appropriations also have made specified amounts from the
Trust available for scholarships for high school students. The
$1,000 college scholarships, known as Presidential Freedom
Scholarships, are awarded to students who provide outstanding
service. To fund each scholarship, a local community or corpo-
rate source must match the $500 portion of the scholarship pro-
vided by the Corporation.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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The Trust enables the Corporation to improve the educational
opportunities of AmeriCorps members by providing financial
assistance to attend school or pay student loans. To continue to
pay these awards, the Corporation must maintain fiscally sound
management of the Trust.

Program Performance

Goal 2: Improve the lives of national service participants.
Strategy 2.2: Expand educational and economic opportunities for
members
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Education Awards

During FY 2004, the Corporation awarded nearly 70,000 member
slots. We expect to reach our 75,000 goal for program year 2004
with the upcoming Professional Corps Competition. As of the
end of the year, about 20,000 members had been enrolled. The
remaining member slots are expected to be filled by grantees dur-
ing FY 2005. Since 1994—the inception of the Corporation,
AmeriCorps members have earned education awards worth over
$970 million and have used about $581 million thus far to sup-
port their educations. Additional information on the earning and
use of education awards is contained in Appendix D.

Trust Management—Strengthen AmeriCorps Act

On July 3, 2003, the President signed into law the Strengthen
AmeriCorps Program Act. This legislation established a clear set
of budgeting guidelines for the National Service Trust.
Specifically, the Act:

m Directs the Corporation to record in the National Service Trust
at the time of approval an amount for education awards that
considers the value of the award, as well as the enrollment rate,
earnings rate, usage rate, and net present value (the time value
of funds) in calculating the obligation amount;

IsnJl 92INJBS |euoileN

m Establishes a reserve fund that will protect the Corporation in
the event that the estimates used to calculate the obligation are
incorrect; and

= Reinforces sound practices in obligating education awards in
the Trust and protects AmeriCorps members by providing addi-
tional oversight, including annual CEO certifications of compli-
ance with these new requirements and annual audits of record-
ed estimates and Trust accounts.

» Based on the Act, the Corporation has established a reserve and
is using more conservative enrollment, earning, and usage rate
assumptions to calculate Trust liability and budgetary needs.
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Trust Management—Trust Controls

The Corporation has implemented a set of controls to ensure the
availability of Trust resources for AmeriCorps grant approvals.
They include:

» Estimating total FTE and member slots available for the grant
cycle and allocating them to programs;

m Requiring the CFO to certify the program and Trust costs of
each proposed grant approval;

m Recording Trust obligations concurrent with the grant award
process;

» Automating safeguards in the Web-Based Reporting System to
prevent grantees from enrolling more members than they were
allotted; and

= Continuously tracking Trust enrollments to allow for timely
mid-course corrections if necessary.

Trust Management—External Reviews

The Corporation’s current Trust management policies and proce-
dures have been reviewed favorably by both the Office of
Inspector General (OIG) and the General Accountability Office
(GAO). Furthermore, an independent auditor, Cotton &
Company LLP, issued a clean opinion on the FY 2003 schedule of
Trust budgetary resources and obligations. In a letter dated
January 16, 2004 (OIG Report Number 04-10), the Corporation’s
Inspector General, J. Russell George, certified to the CEO, David
Eisner that the Corporation had complied with and fully imple-
mented four of the five recommendations in the OIG’s July 24,
2003 report on the management of the National Service Trust
(OIG Report Number 03-007). These recommendations included
allowing only qualified personnel to make Trust liability projec-
tions, using position descriptions to establish responsibility and
accountability for all key Trust positions, establishing automated
safeguards in WBRS and eSPAN to prevent over-enrollment, and
publishing formal guidance regarding use of the Service Award
Liability model. On the fifth recommendation, to integrate
WBRS and eSPAN, Mr. George wrote that “the Corporation’s
efforts to implement a multiyear plan to upgrade eGrants have
demonstrated its intention to comply with this recommendation.”

In its January 2004 report on Trust management, the GAO found
that “[t]he Corporation has made changes that minimize the like-
lihood of a need to suspend enrollments in the future.” In fact,
GAO expresses concern about the potential for large Trust sur-
pluses and recommends that the Corporation review restrictions
on the refilling of vacated slots and the conversion of slots form
full-time to part-time, which can reduce enrollments. GAO also

Corporation for National and Community Service
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recommends actions to address discrepancies between informa-

3 tion in the Trust database and participant documentation and

8 improve over time estimates of Trust liability and budgetary

= needs. The Corporation is implementing these recommendations.

(V]

o National Service Trust Performance Indicators

g Performance Indicator FY 2001 FY 2002 FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2004

3‘ Goal Performance

1 Education award earning rate’ 75% 78.8% 82.5% N/A 88.3%

Q Education award cumulative usage 54.2% 43.9% 15.7% N/A 8.5%

g rate2

] Difference between Trust assets N/A N/A N/A N/A $103.5 million
and liabilities

Evaluation Findings and Plan

The Trust account and the procedures used to record Trust obli-
gations are audited annually by the Corporation’s Office of
Inspector General.

The Corporation also has initiated a study of how external eco-
nomic, demographic, and other factors affect enrollment, earning
and usage rates. This study will help the Corporation to both
identify opportunities to increase earning and usage rates and to
ensure fiscally sound Trust management.

1 These rates omit members who are enrolled and still earning their awards, as
well and slots that have yet to be filled as well as slots that have yet to be
filled. This results in the earning rate in the early part of the program year
being based primarily on those members enrolled or a reduced, part-time busy
who tend to earn at a higher rate. As the program year is completed, the earn-
ing rate will stabilize at a somewhate lower level, reflecting members who do
not complete longer service terms.

IsnJl 92INJBS |euoileN

2 The usage rate represents the percent of awards earned (in dollars) in each
year that have been used as of September 30, 2004. Or, in other words, the
dollar amount of education awards used divided by the total amount earned
for the Program Year as of September 30, 2004. Until the seven-year eligibility
period has expired, the usage rate for each program year will continue to
increase over time. For example, the usage rate for 1997—a year for which eli-
gibility has now expired—76 percent.
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Donations, Contributions, and
In-Kind Support

About the Program

The Corporation is authorized to accept donations to support the
expansion and improvement of national service (42 U.S.C. 12651g
(@) (2) (A)). By statute, the Corporation may “solicit, accept,
hold, administer, use, and dispose of, in furtherance of the pur-
pose of the national service laws, donations of any money or
property, real, personal, or mixed, tangible or intangible, received
by gift, devise, bequest or otherwise.” The Corporation’s author-
izing legislation requires that the Corporation report to the
Congress on the nature and amount of donations, as well as on
how they were used and disposed of (in the case of donated prop-
erty) in support of its programs and activities. This detailed
report is included as Appendix C.

Over the past four years, the Corporation has received over $2.2
million, primarily from large corporations for specific, restricted
purposes such as the USA Freedom Corps website, expenses asso-
ciated with the Martin Luther King, Jr. Day of Service, and the
White House Forum on History, Civics, and Service. During FY
2004, the Corporation received $540,000 in cash donations.

The Corporation’s NCCC projects and similar Corporation objec-
tives also receive significant in-kind support, such as public serv-
ice announcement airtime, NCCC teams’ “spike” lodging, and
meals. Such in-kind support is not yet consistently reported
across the Corporation. In-kind support from NCCC project
sponsors in FY 2004 is estimated to be valued at approximately

$1.3 million.! In FY 2004, voluntary public service announce-
ment airtime support is estimated to be valued at $4.2 million

In FY 2004, the Corporation developed a new strategic fundrais-
ing approach that will solicit funding to support a broader range
of activities, including training and technical assistance, research,
and recruitment. This program will be implemented in FY 2005
and evaluated in FY 2006. Additionally, the new strategy will
attempt to link potential donors with local programs to help with
their cost-sharing requirements, likely producing more donations
directly to these programs.

Donations, contributions and in-kind support can help accom-
plish any of the Corporation’s goals and strategies, depending on
the nature of the contribution. However, historically, support
has tended to enable NCCC teams to help meet human needs and
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to increase volunteerism throughout the country.

Program Performance

Goal 1: Meet human needs through diverse, high-quality
service programs

Strategy 1.1: Leverage service to address the nation’s education,
public safety, environmental, homeland security, and other
human needs.

After the recent hurricanes, the Home Depot Foundation donated
a major gift to the Corporation, in the amount of $500,000, to be
used to support long-term rebuilding activities in eight states and
Puerto Rico (all which were declared disaster areas by the
Federal Emergency Management Agency). The funds are being
distributed by the Corporation either directly to state commis-
sions, or to eligible recipients that have been selected by the
commissions to receive the funds.
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The Polo Ralph Lauren Foundation made a series of gifts totaling
$31,310 to support anniversary events and NCCC in general.
Using this funding, more than 700 AmeriCorps"NCCC alumni
from across the country reunited this summer to commemorate
AmeriCorps*"NCCC’s ten-year anniversary by doing what brought
them together in the first place— community service. Each of
NCCC'’s five campuses hosted a full weekend of events to recog-
nize 10,000 alumni and the 15.3 million service hours they have
contributed through 4,500 projects nationwide during the past
ten years.

The NCCC’s efforts to encourage project sponsors to assist the
NCCC team by providing in-kind support, such as lodging and
meals, have been quite successful. Such support can often be pro-
vided at minimal additional cost to the sponsor, since existing
facilities, such as church basements, may be available. The
Corporation will begin to systematically track these in-kind con-
tributions during FY 2005; therefore, current performance is esti-
mated based on highly conservative assumptions.

Goal 1 Key Performance Measures for Donations, Contributions, and In-Kind

310ddns punj-uj pue ‘suoinqliuo) ‘suoieuoq

Support
Performance Indicator FY 2001 FY 2002 FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2004
Goal Performance
Estimated value of in-kind contribu- N/A N/A N/A N/A $1.3 million
tions to support NCCC spike and
other efforts
Cash donations $301,000 $747,000 $658,000 N/A $540,000
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Goal 3: Strengthen the infrastructure, capacity, and social

capital of communities across America §
Strategy 3.3: Increase volunteering in America and grow com- ©
munity capacity to engage volunteers effectively E
The Corporation’s Office of Public Affairs, as well as its other g
programs, have received support for publicizing volunteering. In dh)
addition, the Corporation has received significant support to fund o
USA Freedom Corps’ website and various studies and summits =
regarding volunteerism. c
=)
Goal 3 Key Performance Measures for Donations, Contributions, and In-Kind o
Support o
Performance Indicator FY 2001 FY 2002 FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2004
Goal Performance
Estimated value of in-kind contribu- N/A N/A N/A N/A $4.2 million

tions to support publicity and other
efforts to promote volunteerism

Evaluation Findings and Plan

In FY 2005, the Corporation will begin to more systematically
track in-kind contributions of all sorts and for all programs. In
FY 2006, the Corporation will evaluate its new donations pro-
gram.

1 This NCCC estimate is based on conservative estimates of the cost for camp-
ing or housing in low-cost facilities such as state parks ($8 per night), and
meals prepared in low-cost cafeterias ($2 per meal) or low-cost restaurants ($5
per meal), resulting in an average sponsor contribution per “spike” (i.e. travel)
project of about $3,300, based on data collected by the Southeast Region cam-
pus. This average is multiplied by the 410 such projects completed in FY 2004
to derive the $1.3 million estimated in-kind contribution value for NCCC.
This estimate may be revised to reflect the final number of projects.

Donations, Contributions, and In-Kind Support
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Message from the Chief Financial Officer
November 15, 2004

When CEO David Eisner arrived at the Corporation in December
2003, he outlined three goals:

m Restore trust and credibility,
= Manage to accountability, and

m Focus on the customer.

I am pleased to report that in our financial management, we have
made breakthrough progress on all fronts. We have reformed our
management of the National Service Trust, maintained clean
financial statements, integrated budget and performance, estab-
lished operational metrics, improved grants oversight, and
reviewed our business processes in search of greater effectiveness
and efficiency.

Restore trust and credibility

National Service Trust reforms

In FY 2003, the Corporation was forced to temporarily pause
AmeriCorps member enrollments after we determined that the
number of positions already enrolled could cause a shortfall in
the National Service Trust. To prevent a future deficiency, we
have overhauled the way we manage the Trust. Strict new pro-
cedures govern the awarding of grants and enrollment of mem-
bers, and we have fully implemented the letter and spirit of the
Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act of 2003: we use conserva-
tive assumptions to calculate education award obligations and to
obligate funds for education awards before making grant awards
and have established a reserve fund to protect the Trust’s solven-
cy in the event its liability estimates are incorrect. The
Government Accountability Office (GAO), our Office of
Inspector General (OIG) and our independent auditor, Cotton &
Company LLP, have reviewed our progress in addressing this
issue and reported favorably on our reforms.

Manage to accountability

Clean audit

For the fifth year in a row, the Corporation has received an
unqualified audit opinion on its financial statements. The
Corporation also has maintained an outstanding record of compli-
ance with all applicable laws and regulations and can confidently
provide assurance that our financial reporting, systems and man-
agement controls comply with the requirements of the Federal
Financial Management Improvement Act and the Federal
Managers’ Financial Integrity Act, with one exception. The

Corporation for National and Community Service
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OIG’s audit of the Corporation’s compliance with the Federal
Information Security Management Act found that our major sys-
tems had not undergone a complete test and evaluation within
the last 12 months and reported this as a significant deficiency.
The Corporation disagrees with this finding for reasons that are
fully explained in the Management Assurance on Internal
Controls section of this report. In any case, we expect to com-
plete an OMB-compliant test and evaluation by December 31,
2004, resolving the OIG’s finding.

Improving Grants Oversight and Monitoring

The Corporation has made significant progress in improving its
oversight and monitoring of grant awards, but we still have work
to do. In response to recommendations in the FY 2003 audit
report, the Corporation revised State Administrative Standards to
incorporate a risk-based approach, completed all planned Senior
Corps site visits, improved the use of eGrants in tracking and
monitoring site visit results, provided more timely feedback to
grantees, and more closely monitored grantee progress reports.
While our auditors acknowledge our gains, they have again cited
shortcomings in this area as a reportable condition.
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To finally resolve this reportable condition, in FY 2005 we plan
to hire our first Director of Grants Oversight and Monitoring,
who will lead the development of a Corporation-wide oversight
and monitoring accountability plan, standardize policies and pro-
cedures across programs, and implement best practices. We will
also complete on ongoing project to reform the planning and
management of our cooperative agreements.

Integrating Budget and Performance

The Corporation made a great leap in FY 2004 toward fully inte-
grating budget and performance management. At the outset of
the FY 2006 budget process, Corporation executives agreed on a
framework of shared goals, strategies, and performance indica-
tors. Each program then used a “logic model” approach to align
its operating plan and resource requests with the Corporation
framework.

04D 9yl wol4 abessan

The Corporation also continued to develop a comprehensive hier-
archy of performance metrics—from national outcome measures,
such as the percent of Americans who volunteer, down to opera-
tional measures, such as grant application cycle times. To effec-
tively monitor these metrics, we are

= building a data warehouse to consolidate and organize informa-
tion from a variety of sources;
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m creating a “management dashboard” that puts the most critical
performance metrics at the fingertips of executives and man-
agers;

= collecting a wealth of new data, including new surveys of
members, grantees, and end beneficiaries; and

= looking to standardize the performance measures reported by
our grantees.

Focus on the customer

Continuous improvement

Providing world-class customer service requires an unflagging
focus on improving how we do business.

In FY 2004, the Corporation completed business process reviews
of our National Service Trust operations, the VISTA and NCCC
payroll systems and procurement operations, which identified
ways to become more effective and efficient in each area. One of
the resulting initiatives is to automate a labor- and paper-inten-
sive education award payment process, making the process quick-
er and easier for our customers and producing significant operat-
ing cost savings.

We are also implementing new software to improve payroll
budget projections and make several budget execution functions
more efficient and accurate.

The Corporation aspires to become a leader among Federal agen-
cies in integrating financial and performance information and
using that information to support decision-making. Thanks to
the hard work of a skilled and dedicated financial management
staff and a strong commitment from Corporation leadership, we
are on the right track.

Andbse. Elin

Andrew Kleine
Acting Chief Financial Officer

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Financial Statements

The Corporation has prepared its FY 2004 financial statements in
accordance with the Government Corporation Control Act, as
amended by § 306 of the Chief Financial Officers Act. The
Government Corporation Control Act requires that government
corporations submit an annual report to the Congress within 180
days of the fiscal year end. The Office of Management and
Budget has accelerated this reporting deadline so that for FY 2004
the report is due 45 days after the end of the fiscal year.
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In addition to the statements required by the Corporation
Control Act, the Corporation has added a Statement of Budgetary
Resources, which reports on the status of appropriated funds, as
one of its principal financial statements as required under the
President’s February 27, 2004, Executive Order on National and
Community Service Programs. The Corporation’s FY 2004
financial statements include the following:

» Statement of Financial Position, which reports the status of
Corporation assets, liabilities, and net position;

= Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Position, which
reports on revenues and expenses of the Corporation for the
year;

= Statement of Budgetary Resources, which reports the status of
the Corporation’s obligations and outlays; and

» Statement of Cash Flows, which reports on the components
that make up the change in fund balance of the Corporation for
the year.

Financial Statements

The statements present comparative information for FY 2004 and
2003. The Corporation has made significant improvements in
financial management reporting in the past several years. For
the fifth year in a row, the Corporation’s audited financial state-
ments received an unqualified opinion. This opinion recognizes
the financial statements as fairly presented, in all material
respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples.

Limitations of the Financial Statements

These statements have been prepared to report on the financial
position and results of operations of the Corporation for National
and Community Service, a Federal government corporation, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Corporation for National and Community Service C-187



While the statements have been prepared from the books and
records of the Corporation, the statements are in addition to the
financial reports used to monitor and control budgetary resources
that are prepared from the same books and records. These state-
ments should also be read with the realization that they are for a
component of the U.S. Government, a sovereign entity. One
implication of this is that liabilities cannot be liquidated without
legislation that provides the resources to do so.

These financial statements have been prepared to report the
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the
Corporation for National and Community Service (Corporation),
as required by the Government Corporation Control Act (31 USC
9106) and by the National and Community Service Act of 1990,
as amended (42 USC 12651) In addition, the Corporation prepares
a Statement of Budgetary Resources, which reports on the status
of appropriated funds, as one of its principal financial statements
as required by the President’s February 27, 2004 Executive Order
on National and Community Service Programs. These financial
statements have been prepared from the books and records of the
Corporation. The Statements of Financial Position, Operations
and Changes in Net Position, Statement of Budgetary Resources,
and Cash Flows have been prepared in accordance with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applicable to Federal government entities and include
the Corporation’s activities related to providing grants and educa-
tion awards to eligible participants. Additionally, the Statement
of Budgetary Resources has been prepared in accordance with
guidance prescribed in Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Memorandum 01-09, Form and Content of Agency Financial
Statements, which constitutes generally accepted accounting
principles for Federal governmental entities as specified by the
AICPA’s Statement on Auditing Standards 69 (as amended), The
Meaning of Presents Fairly in Conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. The Corporation is not subject
to income tax.
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Transactions are recorded in the accounting system on an accrual
basis and a budgetary basis. Under the accrual method of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when a liability is incurred, without regard to
receipt or payment of cash. Appropriations are considered earned
for the Corporation’s National Service Trust Fund and are recog-
nized as revenue when received in the Trust Fund.

The recognition of budgetary accounting transactions is essential
for compliance with legal constraints and controls over the use of
Federal funds. Budgetary accounting principles are designed to
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recognize the obligation of funds according to legal requirements,
which in many cases is prior to the occurrence of an accrual-
based transaction. Thus, the Statements of Financial Position,
Operations and Changes in Net Position, and Cash Flows differ
from the Statement of Budgetary Resources and other financial
reports submitted pursuant to OMB directives for the purpose of
providing information on how budgetary resources were made
available and monitoring and controlling the use of the
Corporation’s budgetary resources.

Corporation for National and Community Service
Statements of Financial Position
As of September 30
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{dollars in theusands)
2004 2003
ASSETS
Fund Balance with Treasury {Note 2) $ 854,370 $ 743,363
Trust Investments and Related Receivables (Note 3) 337913 231,880
Advances to Others 66,154 49,279
Accounts Receivable, Net (Note 4) 2,636 2,756
Property and Equipment, Net (Note 3) 962 786
Total Assets $ 1,262,035 $ 1,028,064
LIABILITIES
Trust Service Award Liability (Note 6) $ 237,497 $ 230,622 hd!
Grants Payable 117,250 116,798 GC.)
Accounts Payable 7,133 7,145 =
Actuarial FECA Liability (Note §) 12,401 12,506 )
Other Liabilities 10,391 9,258 *('“’
Accrued Annual Leave 3,050 3,086 g
Advances from Others 187 223 —
Capital Lease Liability (Note 7) 66 39 g
Total Liabilities 387,975 379,677 %
=
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 7 and 14} LL
NET POSITION
Unexpended Appropriations
Obligated 740,769 554,179
Unobligated 48,286 111,174
Cumulative Results of Operations 85,005 (16,966)
Total Net Position (Note 9) 874,060 648,387
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 1,262,035 $ 1,028,064
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Corporation for National and Community Service C-189



- Corporation for National and Community Service

=3 Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Position

g For the Years Fnded September 30

O {dollars in theuscnds)

2 2004 2003

r~ REVENUES

Q Appropriated Capital Used, excluding Trust Fund $ 644171 $ 768,005

E‘, Appropriations Received by the Trust Fund (Note 1) 205,389 99,350

(] Interest 8,873 9,693

o Revenue from Services Provided 7.329 7,288

(% Other 539 605

3 Total Revenues 866,301 884,941

EXPENSES
AmeriCorps 454,971 541,939
National Senior Service Corps 240,775 241,555
Learn and Serve America 45,155 71,334
Subtotal 740,901 854,828
Congressionally Earmarked Grants 17,210 26,688
DVSA State Grants 1,202 1,211
Office of Inspector General 5,017 4,228
Total Expenses (Note 11) 764,330 886,955

T NET OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $ 101,971 $ (2,014

5

S NET POSITION

0, Net of Revenues over Expenses $ 101,971 $ (2,014)

= Change in Unexpended Appropriations, Net (Note 13) 123,702 (142,026)

ﬁ Change in Net Position, Net 225673 (144,040)

(9_{ Net Position, Beginning Balance 648,387 792 427

o Net Position, Ending Balance $ 874,060 $ 648,387

(3[) The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

a
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Corporation for National and Community Service =

Statement of Budgetary Resources %

For the Years Ended September 30 &

{dollars inn thousands) Q

BUDGETARY RESOURCES 2004 2003 =)

Budget Authority g

Appropriations Received, including Trust Fund $ 1,151,820 $ 900,874 S

Net Transfers — - =

Total Budgetary Resources 1,151,820 900,874 E

Unobligated Balance g

Beginning of Period 347 495 336,583 g

Net Transfers — — iL
Subtotal 347,495 336,583

Spending Authority From Offsetting Collections

Collected 31,117 160,012
Receivable from Federal Sources 1,061 (794)
Advances Received (35) 222
Without Advance from Federal Source (896) 896
Anticipated for Rest of Year Without Advance 1,807 -
Subtotal 33,054 160,336

Recoveries of Prior Year Obligations

Actual 3872 403

Anticipated — — g

Subtotal 3,872 403 c

(D)

Temporarily Not Available Pursuant to Public Law - - QE)

=

©

Permanently Not Available &

Cancellations of Expired and No-Year Accounts (25,158) (12,733) —_

Enacted Rescissions (5,553) (53,143%) g

Subtotal (30,711) (65,876) %

(e

Total Budgetary Resources $ 1,505,530 $ 1,332,320 [

STATUS OF BUDGETARY RESOURCES
Obligations Incurred $ 1,350,861 $ 991,607
Unobligated Balance:

Balance, Currently Available 49,346 59,063
Exempt from Apportionment 25,073 226,999
Subtotal 74,419 286,062
Unobligated Balance Not Available 80,250 54,651
Total Status of Budgetary Resources $ 1,505,530 $ 1.332320
(continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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n Corporation for National and Community Service

= Statement of Budgetary Resources

g For the Years Ended September 30

o ) {doliars inn thauscds)

sl

— 2004 2003

= RELATIONSHIP OF OBLIGATIONS TO OUTLAYS

g Obligated Balance, Net, Beginning of Period $ 629,155 $ 733,045

[V

Lg Obligated Balance Transferred — —

(% Obligated Balance, Net, End of Period

= Accounts Receivable (2,708) (1,648)

-+ Unfilled Customer Orders from Federal Sources 0 (896)
Undelivered Orders 674,840 505,021
Accounts Payable 365,534 126,678

Obligated Balance, Net, End of Period Total 1,037,666 629,155
Obligations Total $ 1,666,821 $ 1,362,200
Outlays:
Disbursements 3 938.313 $ 1,094992
Collections (31,081) (160,234)
Subtotal 907,232 934,758

Less: Offsetting Receipts (17,206) (17,913)
Net Outlays $ 890,026 $ 916,845

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Corporation for National and Community Service =
Statement of Cash Flows 5
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004 &
{dollars in thousands) )
=)
©
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES é
Net of Revenues over Expenses $ 101,971 E
Adjustments Affecting Cash Flow: g
Appropriated Capital Used, excluding Trust Fund $ (644,171) g
Appropriations Received by the Trust (205,389) i
Decrease in Accounts Receivable 120
Increase in Interest Receivable (1,720)
Increase in Advances (16,875)
$  (868,035)
Increase in Accounts Payable, Other Liabilities and
Advances from Others 1,085
Decrease in FECA and Annual Leave Liabilities (141)
Increase in Capital Lease Liability 27
Increase in Trust Liability 6,875
Increase in Grants Payable 452
8,298
%)
Amortization of Premium/Discount on Investments (1,208) E
Depreciation, Amortization, and Loss on G-)
Disposition of Assets 717 CIE)
Prior Year Expenses as authorized by P.1..108-11 $ 63,055 +
$ 62,564 S
wn
Total Adjustments (797,173) 8
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $ (695,202) §
LL

{continued)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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- Corporation for National and Community Service

= Statement of Cash Flows

g For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

O {dollars in thousands)

§l

=S CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(V)

3 Purchase of Property and Equipment b (893)
‘g Sales of Securities 557,035
5 Purchase of Securities (660,140)
o) Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities $ (103,998)
-

(g ]

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Appropriations Received 940,918
Canceled/Rescinded Appropriations $__(30,711)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 910,207
Net Cash Provided by Operating, Investing, and Financing Activities 111,007
Fund Balance with Treasury, Beginning 743,363
Fund Balance with Treasury, Ending $ 854,370

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest Paid $ 10
Supplemental Schedule of Financing and Investing Activities

Property and Equipment Acquired Under Capital Lease Obligations $ 44

Sjuswialels |eloueuid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Corporation for National and Community Service
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003
{dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Net of Revenues over Expenses $ (2,014)
Adjustments Affecting Cash Flow:
Appropriated Capital Used, excluding Trust Fund $ (768,005)
Appropriations Received by the Trust (99,350)
Decrease in Accounts Receivable 265
Increase in Interest Receivable (92)
Decrease in Advances 9.916
$  (857,266)
Increase in Accounts Payable, Other Liabilities and
Advances from Others 2.873
Increase in FECA and Annual Leave Liabilities 962
Decrease in Commission Liability (184)
Decrease in Capital L ease Liability (36)
Decrease in Trust Liability (807)
Increase in Grants Payable 28,406
31,214 (7))
)
(e
Amortization of Premium/Discount on Investments 543 Q
Depreciation, Amortization, and Loss on CIE)
Disposition of Assets $ 1,138 S
$ 1681 S
-_— w
Total Adjustments (824,371) 8
C
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $  (826,385) 8
LL

{continued)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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T Corporation for National and Community Service

S Statement of Cash Flows

g For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

o) (dollars in thousands)

§

§ CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

g Purchase of Property and Equipment $ 0
‘g Sales of Securities 445,933
3 Purchase of Securities (444 983)
g Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 3 950
(g ]

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Appropriations Received 791,205
Canceled/Rescinded Appropriations $__ (65876)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 725,329
Net Cash Provided by Operating, Investing, and Financing Activities (100,106)
Fund Balance with Treasury, Beginning 843,469
Fund Balance with Treasury, Ending $ 743,363

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest Paid $ 8
Supplemental Schedule of Financing and Investing Activities

Property and Equipment Acquired Under Capital Lease Obligations h -
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A Basis of Presentation

These financial statements have been prepared to report the financial position,
results of operations, and cash flows of the Corporation for National and
Community Service (Corporation), as required by the Government
Corporation Control Act (31 USC 9106) and by the National and Community
Service Act of 1990, as amended (42 USC 12651) In addition, the Corporation
prepares a Statement of Budgetary Resources, which reports on the status of
appropriated funds, as one of its principal financial statements as required by
the President’s February 27, 2004 Executive Order on National and
Community Service Programs. These financial statements have been prepared
from the books and records of the Corporation. The Statements of Financial
Position, Operations and Changes in Net Position, Statement of Budgetary
Resources, and Cash Flows have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as appli-
cable to Federal government entities and include the Corporation’s activities
related to providing grants and education awards to eligible participants.
Additionally, the Statement of Budgetary Resources has been prepared in
accordance with guidance prescribed in Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Memorandum 01-09, Form and Content of Agency Financial
Statements, which constitutes generally accepted accounting principles for
Federal governmental entities as specified by the AICPA’s Statement on
Auditing Standards 69 (as amended), The Meaning of Presents Fairly in
Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The
Corporation is not subject to income tax.

The principal financial statements of the Corporation are the:

m Statement of Financial Position;
m Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Position;
m Statement of Budgetary Resources; and

m Statement of Cash Flows.

The notes to the financial statements are considered an integral part of the
financial statements.

B Reporting Entity

The Corporation was created by the National and Community Service Trust
Act of 1993 (Public Law 103-82, 42 USC 12651). The Corporation provides
grants and other incentives to States, local municipalities, and not-for-profit
organizations to help communities meet critical challenges in the areas of edu-
cation, public safety, human needs, and the environment through volunteer
service. The Corporation oversees three national service initiatives:

AmeriCorps is the national service program that annually engages Americans
of all ages and backgrounds in full-time and sustained part-time community
service and provides education awards in return for such service. AmeriCorps
includes State, National, Tribes & Territories (State/National); National
Civilian Community Corps (NCCC); and Volunteers In Service To America
(VISTA) programs.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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The National Senior Service Corps (Senior Corps) is a network of people age 55
and older who participate in the Foster Grandparent Program, the Senior
Companion Program, and the Retired and Senior Volunteer Program. These
programs tap the experience, skills, talents, and creativity of America’s seniors.

Learn and Serve America supports and promotes service learning in schools,
universities, and communities. Through structured service activities that help
meet community needs, nearly one million students improve their academic
learning, develop personal skills, and practice responsible citizenship.

Together, these initiatives promote the ethic of service and help solve critical
community problems in every State, many Indian tribes, and most U.S. territo-
ries.
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C. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The activities of the Corporation are primarily funded through two separate
appropriation bills. One is the Labor/Health and Human Services bill, which
funds Domestic Volunteer Service Act (DVSA) programs. The DVSA appro-
priation is available for obligation by the Corporation for one fiscal year only.

The second is the Veterans Affairs, Housing and Urban Development, and
Independent Agencies bill, which funds National and Community Service Act
(NCSA) programs. The NCSA appropriation is available for obligation by the
Corporation over two fiscal years except for the Salary and Expense (S&E)
account, which is available for one year.

Both the DVSA and the NCSA appropriations fund a part of the Corporation’s
costs for administrative operations. In addition, part of the NCSA appropria-
tions are provided on a no-year basis for the National Service Trust (the Trust),
a fund within the Corporation primarily used to provide education awards to
eligible participants. The Trust provides awards for AmeriCorps members
under AmeriCorps*State and National, Tribes and Territories,
AmeriCorps*NCCC, and AmeriCorps*VISTA.

D. Basis of Accounting

Transactions are recorded in the accounting system on an accrual basis and a
budgetary basis. Under the accrual method of accounting, revenues are recog-
nized when earned and expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred,
without regard to receipt or payment of cash. Appropriations are considered
earned for the Corporation’s National Service Trust Fund and are recognized as
revenue when received in the Trust Fund.

Sjuswialels |eloueuid

The recognition of budgetary accounting transactions is essential for compli-
ance with legal constraints and controls over the use of Federal funds.
Budgetary accounting principles are designed to recognize the obligation of
funds according to legal requirements, which in many cases is prior to the
occurrence of an accrual-based transaction. Thus, the Statements of Financial
Position, Operations and Changes in Net Position, and Cash Flows differ from
the Statement of Budgetary Resources and other financial reports submitted
pursuant to OMB directives for the purpose of providing information on how
budgetary resources were made available and monitoring and controlling the
use of the Corporation’s budgetary resources.

E Fund Balance with Treasury
The Corporation does not maintain cash in commercial bank accounts. Cash
receipts and disbursements are processed by the U.S. Treasury. The Fund
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Balance with Treasury represents annual, multi-year, and no-year funds,
which are maintained in appropriated and trust funds that are available to pay
current and future commitments.

Funds maintained in the National Service Trust are restricted for use in paying
service awards earned by eligible participants as well as interest forbearance,
and are not available for use in the current operations of the Corporation.

The majority of the funds received from individuals and organizations in the
form of gifts and donations for the support of service projects are restricted for
a particular use.

F. Trust Investments and Related Receivables

By law, the Corporation invests funds, which have been transferred to the
Trust, only in interest-bearing Treasury obligations of the United States.
These Treasury obligations are referred to as market-based specials, which are
similar to government securities sold on the open market, and consist of
Treasury notes, bonds, bills and one-day certificates.
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The Corporation classifies these investments as held-to-maturity at the time of
purchase and periodically reevaluates such classification. Securities are classi-
fied as held-to-maturity when the Corporation has the positive intent and abil-
ity to hold securities to maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at cost
with corresponding premiums or discounts amortized over the life of the
investment to interest income. Premiums and discounts are amortized using
the effective interest method.

Interest receivable represents amounts earned but not received on investments
held at year-end. Prepaid interest is the amount of interest earned on a securi-
ty since the date of its last interest payment up to the date the security is pur-
chased by the Corporation. Such interest, if any, at year-end is included in the
interest receivable balance.

G Advances to Others

The Corporation advances funds, primarily in response to grantee drawdown
requests, to facilitate their authorized national and community service and
domestic volunteer service activities. The cash payments to grantees, in excess
of amounts earned under the terms of the grant agreements, are accounted for
as advances. At the end of the fiscal year, the total amount advanced to
grantees is compared with the Corporation-funded amount earned by the
grantees. Grantee expenses are determined from reports submitted by the
grantees. For those grantees with advances exceeding expenses, the aggregate
difference is reported as the advance account balance.

Financial Statements

H Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable represents amounts due to the Corporation primarily
under Federal and non-Federal reimbursable agreements, grantee audit resolu-
tion determinations, and outstanding travel advances due from employees.
These amounts are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts based
on the age of each past due account.

L Property and Equipment

The Corporation capitalizes property and equipment at historical cost for
acquisitions of $10 thousand or more, with an estimated useful life that
extends beyond the year of acquisition. The assets reported include telephone
equipment, computer systems equipment, copiers, computer software, furni-
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ture, and assets under capital leases. These assets are depreciated (or amor-
tized) on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives ranging from two to
10 years, using the half-year convention. Normal maintenance and repair
costs on capitalized property and equipment are expensed when incurred.

J Trust Service Award Liability

The Trust service award liability represents unpaid earned, and expected to be
earned, education awards and eligible interest forbearance costs, which are
expected to be used. These amounts relate to participants who have completed
service or are currently enrolled in the program and are expected to earn an
award, based on the Corporation’s historical experience.

K Grants Payable

Grants are made to nonprofit organizations, educational institutions, states,
municipalities, and other external organizations. Grants become budgetary
obligations, but not liabilities, when they are awarded. At the end of each fis-
cal year, the Corporation reports the total amount of unreimbursed authorized
grantee expenses, earned under the terms of grant agreements, as grants
payable.
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L. Accounts Payable

The Corporation records as liabilities all amounts that are likely to be paid as a
direct result of a transaction or event that has already occurred. Accounts
payable represents amounts due to both Federal and non-Federal entities for
goods and services received by the Corporation, but not paid for at the end of
the fiscal year.

Actuarial FECA Liability

The Federal Employees’ Compensation Act (FECA) provides income and med-
ical cost protection to covered Federal civilian employees injured on the job,
employees who have incurred a work-related occupational disease, and benefi-
ciaries of employees whose death is attributable to a job-related injury or occu-
pational disease. Claims incurred for benefits for Corporation employees
under FECA are administered by the Department of Labor (DOL) and later
billed to the Corporation. The Corporation’s actuarial liability for workers’
compensation includes costs incurred but unbilled as of year-end, as calculated
by DOL, and is not funded by current appropriations.

Sjuswialels |eloueuid

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities include amounts owed but not paid at the end of the fiscal
year for payroll and benefits; VISTA stipends; and the portion of the liability
for Federal Employees’ Compensation Act charges incurred and billed but
unpaid.

Accrued Annual Leave

Annual leave is accrued as a liability based on amounts earned but not used as
of the fiscal year-end. Each year, the balance in the accrued annual leave
account is adjusted to reflect current year pay rates and leave balances.
Annual leave is funded from current appropriations when used. As unused
annual leave is used in the future, financing will be obtained from appropria-
tions current at that time. Sick leave and other types of non-vested leave are
expensed when used.

Advances from Others
Advances from others consist of advances from other government agencies
related to interagency agreements the Corporation entered into to provide

C-200 FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report



services to those agencies.

Net Position

Net position is composed of unexpended appropriations and cumulative results
of operations. Unexpended appropriations are funds appropriated and war-
ranted to the Corporation that are still available for expenditure as of the end
of the fiscal year. Cumulative results of operations represent the net differ-
ences between revenues and expenses from the inception of the Corporation.

Revenues

Appropriated Capital Used

The Corporation obtains funding for its program and operating expenses
through annual and multi-year appropriations. Appropriations are recognized
on an accrual basis at the time they are used to pay program or administrative
expenses, except for expenses to be funded by future appropriations such as
earned but unused annual leave. Appropriations expended for property and
equipment are recognized as used when the property is purchased. Funds not
used for eligible expenses within the allowed time must be returned to
Treasury. Appropriations received for the Corporation’s Trust are recognized
as revenue when received in the Trust Fund. Trust appropriations do not
expire with the passage of time and are retained by the Corporation in the
Trust until used for eligible education service award purposes.

Interest

Interest income is recognized when earned. Treasury notes and bonds pay
interest semiannually, based on the stated rate of interest. Interest earned on
Treasury bills is recognized at maturity. Interest income is adjusted by amorti-
zation of premiums and discounts using the effective interest method.

Revenue from Services Provided

The Corporation also receives income from reimbursable service agreements
that is recorded as revenue from services provided. Revenue from services
provided is recognized when earned, i.e., goods have been delivered or servic-
es rendered.

Other Revenue
Other revenue consists of gifts and donations for the support of service proj-
ects from individuals and organizations.

Retirement Benefits

The Corporation’s employees participate in either the Civil Service Retirement
System (CSRS) or the Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS). FERS
was established by the enactment of Public Law 99-335. Pursuant to this law,
FERS and Social Security automatically cover most employees hired after
December 31, 1983. Employees hired prior to January 1, 1984, elected to join
FERS and Social Security or remained in the CSRS.

For employees covered by CSRS, the Corporation contributes 8.51 percent of
their gross pay towards retirement. For those employees covered by FERS, the
Corporation contributes 11.50 percent of their gross pay towards retirement.
Employees are allowed to participate in the Federal Thrift Savings Plan (TSP).
For employees under FERS, the Corporation contributes an automatic one per-
cent of basic pay to TSP and matches employee contributions up to an addi-
tional 4 percent of pay, for a maximum Corporation contribution amounting to
5 percent of pay. Employees under CSRS may participate in the TSP, but will
not receive either the Corporation’s automatic or matching contributions.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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The Corporation made retirement contributions of $791 thousand and $668
thousand to the CSRS Plan, and $5.72 million and $6.09 million to the FERS
and TSP Plans in FY 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili-
ties, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the finan-
cial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Note 2: Fund Balance with Treasury

U.S. Government cash is accounted for on an overall consolidated basis by the
U.S. Department of Treasury. The Fund Balance with Treasury line on the
Statement of Financial Position consists of the following:

Appropriated Funds — Appropriated funds are received through congressional
appropriations to provide financing sources for the Corporation’s programs on
an annual, multi-year, and no-year basis. The funds are warranted by the
United States Treasury and apportioned by the Office of Management and
Budget.

Trust Funds — Trust Funds are accounts designated by law for receipts ear-
marked for specific purposes and for the expenditure of these receipts. Funds
from the Corporation’s Trust Fund may be expended for the purpose of pro-
viding an education award or interest forbearance payment and must always
be paid directly to a qualified institution (college, university, or other
approved educational institution, or a lending institution holding an existing
student loan) as designated by the participant, as well as awards under the
President’s Freedom Scholarship Program.

Gift Funds — Gift Funds are funds received from individuals and organizations
as donations in furtherance of the purposes of the national service laws.

Fund Buhneewith'l‘rmaryasofﬁeptmber?'ﬁ frisn
: : (Mmh&m&) E—— _
2004 2003
Type Unrestricted _ Restricted  Total __ Unrestricted _ Restricted __ Totsl
Appropriated Funds $850,437 $ - $850,437 $742,565 $ - $742,565
Trust Funds - 3,120 3,120 - 146 146
Gift Fund_s 6 807 813 15 63? 652.
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Note 3: Trust Investments and Related Receivables

The composition of Trust Investments and Related Receivables at September
30 is as follows:

Trust Investments and Related Receivables as of September 30
_(dollars in tbomauds) : : :
: 2004 2003
Investments, Carrying Value $334,575 $230,262
Investment and Interest Receivable 3,338 1,618
Total L e $231,380
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Amrﬂmd Cost and Fair Value of Investment Securities as of September.‘w

: ; (dollars in thousands)
2004 : 2003

- Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Unrealized  Fair
Securities = Cost - Gains ~ (Losses) Value Cost Gains  (Losses) Value
Notes $292,655 $ 27 $ - $292,682 $175,244 $5,648 5 - $180,892
Bills 34,274 68 34,342 47,019 4 - 47,023
Bonds 7,646 198 7,844 7,999 570 - 8,569
Total $34575 20O R0 - SOMAG S3020 0 822 S 823648

At September 30, 2004, the notes held at year-end had an interest rate range of
1.63% to 7.88% and an outstanding maturity period of approximately one day
to five years. The interest rate on the bond was 10.75% and had a maturity
period of approximately one year. The bills held at year-end had an interest
rate range of 1.35% to 1.77% and were all due to mature within 149 days. The
par values of these bills range from $2 million to $5 million.

As required by the Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act, beginning in FY
2003 the Corporation has set aside in reserve a portion of the funds appropriat-
ed to the Trust in the event that its estimates used to calculate obligational
amounts for education awards prove to be too low. As of September 30, 2004,
$19.9 million of the Corporation’s investment account has been set aside for
this reserve.

Financial Statements

Investments held at September 30 mature according to the following schedule:

Maturation of Securities Held as of September 30
_____ ~ (dollars in thousands) : _
Amortized  Fair Amortized Fair
Held-to—Maturity Securities _ Cost : Value Cost Value
Due in 1 year or less $161,584 $161,931 $156,108 $157,360
Due after 1 year up to 5 years 172,991 172,937 74,154 79,124
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Note 4: Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts Receivable as of September 30
(dollars in thousands) S
Accounts receivable $3,284 $3,248
Less: allowance for loss on receivables 648 492
Accounts Receivable,Net  $2636 = $275

Note 5: Property and Equipment, Net
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- General Property and Eqnipmentasntﬁepmberm
 (dollars in t&W) L A

Service = st Net Leesr o Net

Life Accumulated Mook .- - ~ Accumulated  Book

Major Class  (Years) Cost Depreciation  Value  Cost  Depreciation  Value
Equipment 3-10 $2,916 $2,017 $899 $1,998 $1,676 $322
Capital leases 3-5 92 29 63 164 123 41
ADP software 2 5,042 5,042 0 5,042 4,619 423
Total : 38050 §7.088 5962 $7.204 $6.418 3786

Note 6: Service Award Liability- National Service Trust

Individuals who successfully complete terms of service in AmeriCorps pro-
grams earn education awards, which can be used to make payments on quali-
fied student loans or for educational expenses at qualified educational institu-
tions. The awards, which are available for use for a period of up to seven years
after the benefit has been earned, are paid from the National Service Trust.
The Trust also pays forbearance interest on qualified student loans during the
period members perform community service as well as awards under the
President’s Freedom Scholarship Program. The award liability components
related to education awards and interest forbearance have been adjusted, based
on historical experience, to reflect the fact that some eligible participants may
not use these benefits. The service award liability was composed of the fol-
lowing as of September 30:

Sjuswialels |elueuid

Service Award Llahllity as of Sepu'mlm' 30 _
(hﬂm in thousands) : : e
Education awards $814,176 $707,919
Interest forbearance 26,957 24,371
Presidential Freedom Scholarship Program 17,499 14.200
Total estimated service award liability 858,632 746,490
Less: cumulative awards paid 621,135 515,868
Total : ; S o i o 3237497 $230.622
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The net service award liability as of September 30, 2004, increased by approxi-
mately $6.87 million from the net service award liability as of September 30,
2003. This change was largely due to new member enrollments and an
increase in the number of members still serving during the year.

Note 7: Capital and Operating Leases

A Capital Leases

The Corporation has entered into lease agreements for copy machines. These
leases vary from 3 to 5 year terms and are deemed to be capital leases. The
costs of the copiers have been recorded as property and equipment (also see
Note 5). The following is a schedule by year of the future minimum payments
under these leases:
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Capital Leases Future Minimum Due as of September 30

 (dollars in thousands) - :
Fiscal Year 2004 $- $13
Fiscal Year 2005 26 12
Fiscal Year 2006 25 11
Fiscal Year 2007 15 9
Fiscal Year 2008 7 -
Fiscal Year 2009 5 =
Total future minimum lease payments 78 45
Less: amounts representing interest 12 6

B. Operating Leases

The Corporation leases office space through the General Services
Administration (GSA). GSA charges the Corporation a Standard Level Users
Charge that approximates commercial rental rates for similar properties.
NCCC also leases housing facilities for its campuses. Additionally, the
Corporation leases motor vehicles on an annual basis through GSA under an
Interagency Fleet Management Service agreement for the National Civilian
Community Corps. Commitments of the Corporation for future rental pay-
ments under operating leases at September 30 are as follows:

Financial Statements

~ Estimated Operating Lease Commitments as of September 30
e " (dollars in thousands) ; :
Fiscal Facilities = e Facilities
Year - Space  Vehicles  Other Total  Space  Vehicles Other Total
2004 $ - $ - $ - $ - 7,070 1,131 172 8,373
2005 6,408 1,111 196 7,715 7,363 1,162 174 8,699
2006 6,614 1,151 203 7,968 7,668 1,193 176 9,037
2007 6,827 1,190 211 8,228 7,985 1,226 178 9,389
2008 7,047 1,231 219 8,497 8,315 1,261 181 . 9,757
2009 7,274 1,274 227 8,775 = - - -
Total 34,170 85957 = S$L056 $41,183 38401 2 §5973 $881  $45255
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Note 8: Workers” Compensation

The Corporation’s actuarial liability for future workers’ compensation benefits
(FECA) was $12.4 million and $12.5 million as of September 30, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The amount includes the expected liability for death, dis-
ability, medical, and miscellaneous costs for approved compensation cases.
The actuarial liability is determined using a method that utilizes historical
benefit payment patterns related to a specific incurred period to predict the
ultimate payments related to that period. Consistent with past practice, these
projected annual benefit payments have been discounted to present value
using the Office of Management and Budget’s economic assumptions for 10-
year Treasury notes and bonds.

Note 9: Net Position

Net Position by Fund Balance Components
i ls Nivail) -
AshfSepteﬁberS&,m : : ol
ni e : ~ Appropriated i
; _Gift Fund  Trust Fund Fund _Total
Unexpended appropriations $ - $ - $665,353 $665,353
Cumulative results of operations 650 1,421 (19,037) (16,966)
Total Net Position - §650  SL421 0 $646316  S648387
The reported net position consists of unexpended appropriations and cumula-
tive results of operations (cumulative results of operations represents the dif-
ferences between revenues and expenses since the Corporation’s inception).
Component balances are separately maintained for the Gift Fund, Trust Fund
and Appropriated Fund.
- Net Position by Fund Balance Components
(dollars in thousands)
~ As of September 30, 2004 .
e _ ~ Appropriated ST
o e GiftFund TrustFund ~  Fund Total
Unexpended appropriations $ - $ - $789,055 $789,055
Cumulative results of operations 867 103,551 (19.,413) 85,005
Total Net Position | SB67  SIOBSSL  §769642  SA74060

Note 10: Appropriations Received by the Trust Fund

FY 2004 appropriations received by the Trust Fund were $205.4 million, com-
posed of a $130 million Trust appropriation (less $767 thousand Trust portion
of the rescission to NCSA pursuant to the Miscellaneous Appropriations and
Offsets Act of 2004); a $63.1 million deficiency appropriation included in the
2003 Emergency Wartime Supplemental Appropriation Act (P.L. 108-11)
which was received in FY 2004; and $13.1 million transferred from program
funds pursuant to the 2004 Consolidated Appropriations Act (P.L. 108-199).
FY 2003 appropriations received by the Trust Fund were $99.35 million ($100
million less $650 thousand Trust portion of the rescission to NCSA per Public
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Law 108-7). The Trust portion of the NCSA rescissions were transferred back
to NCSA, reducing the net amount of appropriations received by the Trust
Fund during each fiscal year.

Note 11: Expenses

Using an appropriate cost accounting methodology, the Corporation’s expenses
have been allocated among its major programs:

AmeriCorps is the national service program that annually engages Americans
of all ages and backgrounds in full-time and sustained part-time community
service and provides education awards in return for such service. AmeriCorps
includes State, National, Tribes & Territories (State/National); National
Civilian Community Corps (NCCC); and Volunteers In Service To America
(VISTA) programs. The State/National sub-program includes grant expenses,
as well as direct and allocated personnel and administrative costs including
AmeriCorps recruitment and Trust operations. The NCCC sub-program
includes direct and allocated personnel and administrative costs including
AmeriCorps recruitment and Trust operations. The VISTA sub-program
includes grant expenses, as well as direct and allocated personnel and adminis-
trative costs including AmeriCorps recruitment and Trust operations.

The National Senior Service Corps (Senior Corps) is a network of people age 55
and older who participate in the Foster Grandparent Program (FGP), the
Senior Companion Program (SCP), and the Retired and Senior Volunteer
Program (RSVP). These programs tap the experience, skills, talents, and cre-
ativity of America’s seniors. The Senior Corps responsibility segment includes
grant expenses, as well as direct and allocated personnel and administrative
costs for RSVP, FGP, and SCP. Costs for each sub-program are reported sepa-
rately in the table.

Learn and Serve America supports and promotes service learning in schools,
universities, and communities. Through structured service activities that help
meet community needs, about 1.1 million students improve their academic
learning, develop personal skills, and practice responsible citizenship. The
Learn & Serve responsibility segment includes grant expenses, as well as direct
and allocated personnel and administrative costs, for the Learn and Serve
America Program, the President’s Student Service Challenge, and National
Service Leader Schools. The President’s Freedom Scholarships are a compo-
nent of the National Service Award expense line item.

Other Program Costs

The National Service Award line item consists of the Corporation’s estimated
expense for education awards based on the increase in its service award liabili-
ty during the year, interest forbearance costs on qualified student loans during
the period members perform community service, as well as disbursements for
the Presidential Freedom Scholarship Program. No indirect costs have been
allocated to this line item.

The Corporation’s annual appropriation includes various Congressionally
Earmarked Grants. In addition, the Corporation has reimbursable agreements
with state agencies whereby the Corporation awards and administers grants to
a list of grantees selected and funded by the State. No indirect costs have
been allocated to these grants.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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The Office of Inspector General (OIG) receives a separate appropriation. No
indirect costs have been allocated to the OIG.

The largest component of total expense is grant funds expended.

Note 12: National Service Award Expense

Members participating in the Trust programs are eligible to earn a service
award to pay for qualified education expenses. The Trust also pays interest

Compunents of Gl'lllt Funds Expended for the yelrs ended Sepmber 30
: (dolkninﬁtomdl) : e S L
Domestic Volunteer Service Act Programs $250,490 $231,442
National and Community Service Act Programs 213,386 352,446
Earmarked Grants
Congressionally Earmarked Grants $17,210 $26,688
DVSA State Grants 1,202 1.211
Total Earmarked Grants 18,412 27,899
Total Grants Expense e $482288  $611.787
Elpensel by Ml;ar pronslb&ty Segment for the years ended Septenber 30
(Jo&rs in thousands)
- 2004 : 2003
AmeriCorps
State, National, Tribes & Territories (State/National) $294,255 $390,991
National Civilian Community Corps (NCCC) 33,056 36,640
Volunteers In Service To America (VISTA) 127.660 114,308
Subtotal $454,971 $541,939
National Senior Service Corps
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) 66,312 65,090
Foster Grandparent Program (FGP) 122,797 126,378
Senior Companion Program (SCP) $ 51.666 $ 50,087
Subtotal 240,775 241,555
Learn and Serve America 45,155 71,334
Total Earmarked Grants 18,412 27,899
Office of Inspector General {OIG) 5,017 4,228
Total Expenses - ' 5764330 $886,955
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Grant and Related Expense

Grant funds expended $270,576 $ - § 25742 $60,482 $117,698  $46,624 $62,766 $27,899 $ - $611,787
VISTA & NCCC stipends & benefits - 8,280 58,254 - - - - - - 66,534
Service award expense 87.674 5.617 13.392 2.895 - 109,578
Total Grant and Related Expense 358,250 13,897 97,388 60,482 117,698 46,624 65,661 27,899 - 787,899
Administrative Expense

Federal employee salaries & benefits 20,208 9,523 5,876 2,778 5,392 2,147 3,568 - 1,808 51,300
Travel & transportation 769 3,128 5,292 113 218 95 218 - 56 9,890
Rent, communications, & utilities 2,482 2,210 591 354 688 273 410 - 283 7,291
Program analysis & evaluation 1,518 - - 151 294 117 367 - — 2,447
Printing & reproduction 103 113 221 79 66 32 14 - 628
Other services 6,328 6,104 4,407 897 1,575 621 827 - 2,046 22,808
Supplies & materials 230 1,548 280 62 118 48 70 - 32 2,388
Depreciation & amortization 568 12 123 92 178 71 95 - - 1,139
Bad debt 193 4 41 31 61 24 32 - - 386
Other 342 101 89 51 89 35 72 - 3 779
.—.oﬁ_ E_E_szﬁ.eo mnuoumo 32,741 22,743 16,920 4,608 8,680 3,463 5,673 - 4,228 _ _.w._.o_cu,m

Financial Management

Financial Statements
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forbearance costs on qualified student loans during the period members per-
form community service. The Corporation estimates the expense for national
service awards based on the increase in its cumulative service award liability
during the year (see Note 6). The total service award liability as of September
30, 2004 and 2003, respectively, has been adjusted to reflect the fact that
earned awards are not always used.
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National Senriee Award Expense for tbe yenrs ended Scptember 30
(dollars in ﬁmu»ﬁ) ; : -
: i 2004 2003
Estimated education awards $106,245 $104,581
Estimated interest forbearance 2,586 2,102
President’s Freedom Scholarship Program 3,299 2,895
National Service Award Expense e - SlI2130 $109.578

Note 13: Increase/(Decrease) in Unexpended Appropriations

wn

lncrusd(neerme) in Unexpended Appmprhﬁom, Net as of September 30 E

T (Mm in ﬁmﬁ) _ = ; Q

Increases: 8

Appropriations received, net of trust $940,918 $791,205 ©

Prior year deficiency appropriation 63,055 = &

Total Increases 1,003,973 791,205 re

Decreases: 8

Appropriated capital used, net of trust (644,171) (768,005) ©

Appropriations received by trust (205,389) (99,350) b=

Rescinded appropriations, net of trust (5,553) (53,143) L
Canceled appropriations (25,158) (12,733)
Total Decreases (880 271) (933,231)
Increase/(Decrease) in Unexpended Appropriations, Net ;_mm . s042.16

Note 14: Contingencies

Contingencies

The Corporation is a party to various routine administrative proceedings, legal
actions, and claims brought by or against it, including threatened or pending
litigation involving labor relations claims, some of which may ultimately result
in settlements or decisions against the Corporation. In the opinion of the
Corporation’s management and legal counsel, there are no proceedings,
actions, or claims outstanding or threatened that would materially impact the
financial statements of the Corporation.

Corporation for National and Community Service C-211



Judgment Fund

Certain legal matters to which the Corporation is named a party may be
administered and, in some instances, litigated and paid by other Federal agen-
cies. Generally, amounts paid in excess of $2.5 thousand for Federal Tort
Claims Act settlements or awards pertaining to these litigations are funded
from a special appropriation called the Judgment Fund. Although the ultimate
disposition of any potential Judgment Fund proceedings cannot be determined,
management does not expect that any liability or expense that might ensue
would be material to the Corporation’s financial statements.

Note 15: Reclassification of Expenses

During FY 2004 the Corporation began sub-allocating costs within each of its
responsibility segments (AmeriCorps, National Senior Service Corps, and Learn
and Serve America) to their major sub-programs. These immaterial reclassifi-
cations were for presentation purposes only and did not change total expenses.
However, administrative costs allocated to each responsibility segment in the
FY 2003 financial statements were adjusted as a result of the revised methodol-

ogy.
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AUDIT OF THE
CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND
COMMUNITY SERVICE’S
FISCAL YEAR 2004 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Audit Report Number 05-01
October 29, 2004

NATIONAL&Y
COMMUNITY
SERVICEEEEE

Prepared by:

COTTON & COMPANY LLP
333 North Fairfax Street, Suite 401
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

This report was issued to Corporation management on November 12, 2004.
Under the laws and regulations governing audit follow up, the Corporation is to
make final management decisions on the report’s findings and
recommendations no later than May 12, 2005, and complete its corrective
actions by November 12, 2005. Consequently, the reported findings do not
necessarily represent the final resolution of the issues presented.

and Compliance with Laws and Regulations
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Office of Inspector General Summary
Audit of the Corporation for National and Community Service’s
Fiscal Year 2004 Financial Statements
Audit Report 05-01
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In accordance with the Government Corporation Control Act (31 U.S.C. §§ 9101-10), the Office
of Inspector General (OIG) engaged Cotton and Company LLP to audit the Corporation for
National and Community Service’s fiscal year 2004 financial statements. This report presents the
results of the audit. In summary:

e Cotton and Company’s opinion on the financial statements is unqualified.
An unqualified opinion means that the financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position and results of operations of the
Corporation.

e Cotton and Company considered certain matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operations to be a reportable
condition. For the fourth consecutive year, the Corporation’s monitoring of
grantee activities is considered to be a reportable condition. However,
Cotton and Company does not consider this reportable condition, more
specifically described in Exhibit 1, to be a material weakness.

e Cotton and Company found no instances of material noncompliance with
laws and regulations that would have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements.

We provided a draft of this report to Corporation management for review and comment. The
Corporation’s response indicates that the clean opinion received reflects the continued hard work
over the past two years to improve the Corporation’s operations and regain the trust of Congress.
The Corporation recognizes that grant monitoring must be improved, and has created a new
posttion, Director of Grants Oversight and Monitoring, to manage grant monitoring across
programs. The Corporation’s response is presented in its entirety as Appendix A.
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auditors ¢ advisors
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Inspector General
Board of Directors
Corporation for National and Community Service

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited the accompanying Statements of Financial Position of the Corporation for National and
Community Service (Corporation) as of September 30, 2004, and September 30, 2003, and the related
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Position, Budgetary Resources, and Cash Flows for the
years ended September 30, 2004, and September 30, 2003. These financial statements are the
responsibility of Corporation management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and standards applicable to financial statement audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation at September 30, 2004, and September 30, 2003, and the results of
its operations and changes in its net position. budgetary resources, and cash flows for the years ended
September 30, 2004, and September 30, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports dated October 29,
2004, on our consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with provisions of laws and regulations. Our reports on internal control and compliance
are an integral part of an audit conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and, in
considering the results of our audit, those reports should be read together with this report.

Information listed in sections A, B and C (except for pages C-187 through C-229) in the accompanying
table of contents for the Corporation’s Performance and Accountability Report is not a required part of
the financial statements. We have applied certain limited procedures that consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of this information.
However, we did not audit this information and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

COTTON & COMPANY LLP

Alan Rosenthal, CPA

Partner

October 29, 2004
Alexandria, Virginia
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333 NORTH FAIRFAX STREET ¢ SUITE 401 * ALEXANDRIA, VIRCINIA 22314 ¢ 703/836/6701 * FAX 703/836/0941 ¢ WWW.COTTONCPA.COM

Inspector General
Board of Directors
Corporation for National and Community Service

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

We have audited the financial statements of the Corporation for National and Community Service
(Corporation) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 29, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

In planning and performing the September 30, 2004, audit, we considered the Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting by obtaining an understanding of the Corporation’s internal control,
determining if internal controls had been placed in operation, assessing control risk, and performing tests
of controls to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial
statements. We limited internal control testing to those controls necessary to achieve the objectives
described in Government Auditing Standards. The objective of our audit was not to provide assurance on
the Corporation’s internal control. Consequently, we do not provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be reportable conditions. Under standards issued by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, reportable conditions are matters coming to our
attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal controls over financial
reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Corporation’s ability to record, process,
summarize, and report financial data consistent with assertions by management in the financial statements.
Material weaknesses are conditions in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce, to a relatively low level, the risk that misstatements, in amounts that would
be material in relation to the financial statements being audited, may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Because of
inherent limitations in any internal control, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected.

We noted one matter, described in Exhibit 1, involving internal control over financial reporting and its
operation that we consider to be a reportable condition. We do not consider this reportable condition to be
a material weakness. The status of prior-year reportable conditions is reported in Exhibit 2.

We also noted other matters involving internal control and its operation that we will report to Corporation
management in our management letter, which will be issued as OIG Audit Report 05-02.

We have provided a draft of this report to the Corporation. The Corporation’s response to our report is
included as Appendix A.
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As required by the Government Corporation Control Act, this report is intended solely for the information
and use of the United States Congress, the President, the Director of the Office of Management and
Budget, the Comptroller General of the United States, the Corporation, and the Inspector General. It is not
intended for, and should not be used by, anyone other than these specified parties.

COTTON & COMPANY LLP

WM

Alan Rosenthal, CPA
Partner

October 29, 2004
Alexandria, Virginia
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Exhibit 1
Corporation for National and Community Service
Reportable Condition
September 30, 2004

Grants Management

The Corporation for National and Community Service (Corporation) awards National and Community
Service Act (NCSA) and Domestic Volunteer Service Act (DVSA) grants to State and local governments,
institutions of higher education, and other nonprofit organizations. The Corporation expends the majority
of its appropriated funds on grants, and grant activities result in the most significant components of the
Corporation’s financial statements. It is critical that the Corporation monitor grantee activity closely to
ensure that grantees are complying with applicable laws and regulations related to the administration of
grant awards. Grantees are required to expend funds for allowable costs and to provide periodic reports to
the Corporation to demonstrate programmatic financial compliance with the terms of their respective grant
agreements. As part of its grant monitoring program, the Corporation conducts site visits to ensure that
grantees are complying with their grant agreements, and that State commissions are performing their
prescribed duties.

The following weaknesses were noted in the Corporation’s internal control over grants management.
Improvement Needed In Monitoring Grantee Activities

The Corporation has established formal grantee monitoring procedures that include periodic site visits to
grantees; a process for obtaining, reviewing, and issuing management decisions on audit findings reported
by the OIG, as well as by non-federal auditors in OMB Circular A-133 single audit reports; training
conferences for grantee personnel; open lines of communication between program managers and grantees;
and a grant closeout process. For DVSA grants, the Corporation utilizes the Senior Corps Compliance
Monitoring Handbook. For NCSA grants, the State Commission Administrative Standards review is the
primary tool for monitoring State commission grantees. The Corporation also has a separate monitoring
tool for National Direct grantees.

While it was noted that the various program offices have each taken steps to implement the
recommendations discussed in the prior year’s internal control report, the Corporation’s monitoring
activities require further improvement in order to provide adequate controls over grantee activities. The
prior year’s reportable condition noted a number of instances where the Corporation was not adhering to
its own policies. It was not performing site visits and other monitoring efforts on a timely basis, and the
Corporation did not ensure that grantees submitted all required programmatic and fiscal reports on a timely
basis. The recommendations to address these findings included the reevaluation of policies and procedures
for conducting monitoring visits and the implementation of a risk assessment approach to selecting
grantees for monitoring visits.

During the past fiscal year, the program offices have developed and implemented a risk assessment of
grantees. However, of those State commissions and National Direct grantees identified by the risk
assessment process as high risk, the Corporation conducted very few monitoring visits. Further, we
believe that improvements need to be made to the risk assessment process to adequately document both the
criteria used in assessing risk, as well as the steps performed to reach conclusions on the level of risk. This
lack of criteria for performing risk assessments contributed to a number of instances where different
program officers conducted assessments inconsistently. The Senior Corps program officers increased their
site visits substantially by conducting site visits of nearly all grantees during Fiscal Year 2004. However,
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there was a lack of adequate documentation as to the scope of testing and specific procedures performed
by Senior Corps program officers in reaching their conclusions.

Recommendations
We recommend that:

° The Corporation’s risk assessment should be based on consistently implemented criteria.
The assessment should include the reasons justifying a risk rating and how the conclusion
was reached. Documentation to support each risk assessment should be maintained to
prevent the loss of institutional knowledge.

) After completion of the assessment tool, any further discussion by Corporation
management, regarding the selection and prioritization of AmeriCorps*State grantees for
monitoring visits should be adequately documented.

o The Corporation should prioritize monitoring visits based on a risk-based selection
process, maintain a site visit travel schedule based on risk, and monitor progress made in
completing these visits.

o The Corporation should develop monitoring policies to document what constitutes an
acceptable, substantive review of grantees, in lieu of performing site visits. These
activities include, but are not limited to, desk reviews, technical assistance, training, OIG
reviews and audits, grantee audits, and other relevant monitoring activities performed by
grant managers, program offices, the OIG, and external contractors.

. The Corporation should improve coordination between grant managers, program offices,
and the OIG. The Corporation has created a new position of Director of Grants Oversight
and Monitoring, which should be filled as soon as possible. The Director of Grants
Oversight and Monitoring should establish consistent policies and procedures across
Corporation programs and coordinate all monitoring efforts.

Auditor’s Report on FY 2004 Audit, Internal Controls,
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Exhibit 2

September 30, 2004

Status of Prior-Year Reportable Conditions

FY 2003 Finding

Type

FY 2004 Status

Monitoring of Grantee Activities

2001: Reportable Condition
2002: Reportable Condition
2003: Reportable Condition

Monitoring of grantee activities
continues to be a reportable
condition.
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auditors « advisors

333 NORTH FAIRFAX, STREFT © SUITT 401 ¢ ALEXANDRIA, VIRCINIA 212314 + 703/836/6701 * taX 703/836/0941 + WWW COTTONCPA.COM

Inspector General
Board of Directors
Corporation for National and Community Service

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

We have audited the financial statements of the Corporation for National and Community Service
(Corporation) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 29, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance that the Corporation's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. Providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not, however, an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This audit was performed pursuant to the Government Corporation Control Act, and is intended solely for
the information and use of the United States Congress, the President, the Director of the Office of
Management and Budget, the Comptroller General of the United States, the Corporation, and the
Inspector General. It is not intended for, and should not be used by, anyone other than these specific
parties.

COTTON & COMPANY LLP

Alan Rosenthal, CPA
Partner

October 29, 2004
Alexandria, Virginia
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APPENDIX A

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE RESPONSE
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NATIONAL &
COMMUNITY
SERVICERESE

November 5, 2004

The Honorable J. Russell George
Inspector General
Corporation for National
and Community Service
Suite 830
Washington, DC 20525

Dear Mr. George:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the draft report on the audit of the
Corporation’s fiscal 2004 financial statements. I am pleased that the Corporation continues to
receive a clean opinion on its financial statements. These results demonstrate the Corporation’s
commitment to sound financial management and reflect the result of the hard work by staff to
improve the Corporation’s operations.

I'am also pleased that the audit noted that the Cortporation’s program offices have taken
positive steps to address prior audit recommendations including developing and implementing a risk
based approach to grantee monitoring. The fiscal 2004 audit makes several recommendations to
further improve the monitoring of grantees. The Corporation agrees with these recommendations
and will implement them over the course of the next year.

The Corporation is committed to improving and strengthening its oversight of grantees. To
oversee this effort the Corporation has established a new position, Director of Oversight and
Monitoring. The Ditector will be responsible for coordinating grantee monitoring and oversight
across all program streams. In addition, the Corpotation established an Award Oversight and
Monitoring Council comprised of senior staff to ensure that the Corporation exercises uniformly
excellent financial, administrative and programmatic award oversight and supports grantee success
through effective compliance monitoring and training and technical assistance. The initial tasks of
the Council are to assist in the hiring of the new Director and develop the fiscal 2005 oversight and
monitoring plan. These tasks will be informed by the recommendations in the audit report.

I'would also like to express my appreciation for the efforts that your staff and the staff of

Cotton & Company made on the fiscal 2004 audit. Without this collaborative effort we would not
have been able to achieve the expedited deadline for completing the audit.

Sin?\\

j |

N
éﬁ?’;ﬁ‘ N
a

vid Eisner
Chief Executive Officer
1201 New York Avenue, NW * Washington, DC 20525 USIA\E
202-606-5000 * www.nationalservice.org Freedom Corps
Senior Corps * AmeriCorps * Learn and Serve America The President's Call to Sfrgce
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AUDIT OF THE
CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY
SERVICE’S NATIONAL SERVICE TRUST
SCHEDULE OF FISCAL 2004 BUDGETARY
RESOURCES AND OBLIGATIONS

Audit Report Number 05-03
October 29, 2004

NATIONAL &
COMMUNITY
SERVICERET

Prepared by:

COTTON & COMPANY LLP
333 North Fairfax Street, Suite 401
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Auditor’s Report of the National Service Trust
FY 2004 Bugetary Resources and Obligations

This report was issued to Corporation management on November 12, 2004.
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Office of Inspector General Summary
Audit of the Corporation for National and Community Service’s
National Service Trust
Schedule of Fiscal 2004 Budgetary Resources and Obligations
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In accordance with the Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act, the Office of Inspector General
(OIG) engaged Cotton and Company LLP to audit the Corporation for National and Community
Service’s National Service Trust Schedule of Fiscal 2004 Budgetary Resources and Obligations.
The Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act requires an independent annual audit of the accounts of
the Corporation relating to the appropriated funds for approved national service positions, and the
records demonstrating the manner in which the Corporation has recorded Trust obligations.

The Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act directs that, beginning in fiscal year 2003, Trust
obligations be recorded at the time the Corporation enters into an enforceable agreement with a
National Civilian Community Corps (NCCC) member, or a member of Volunteers in Service to
America (VISTA). In addition, the Act requires the Corporation to record Trust obligations when
it awards a grant to an AmeriCorps State and National program. The Act also directs that the
obligational amount be based on the estimated value of the education benefit, factoring in
enrollment estimates, earning and usage rates, and the time value of money. The Act further
requires the Corporation to establish a reserve account in the event that estimates used to
calculate obligational amounts are insufficient to pay for education awards.

In summary, Cotton and Company concluded that the Corporation’s Schedule of National Service
Trust Schedule of Fiscal 2004 Budgetary Resources and Obligations presents fairly, in all
material respects, the budgetary resources and obligations for the year ended September 30, 2004.

SuoI3ebI|go pue $824n0say Aleiabng 7002 Ad
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auditors « advisors

333 NOKTH FAIRFAX STREFT @ SUIT 401 ¢ AITXANDRIA, VIRGINIA 22314 ¢ 703/836/6701 © FAX 703/836/0941 ¢ WWW.COTTONCPA.COM

Inspector General
Board of Directors
Corporation for National and Community Service

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited the accompanying National Service Trust Schedule of Fiscal Year 2004 Budgetary
Resources and Obligations of the Corporation for National and Community Service (Corporation) for the
year ended September 30, 2004. This schedule is the responsibility of Corporation management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on this schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and standards applicable to financial statement audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the schedule of budgetary resources and
obligations is free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting amounts and disclosures in the schedule of budgetary resources and obligations. An audit also
includes assessing accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating overall schedule presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

The accompanying schedule of budgetary resources and obligations was prepared for the purpose of
complying with the provisions of the Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act (Pub. L. No. 108-45), as
discussed in Note A, and is not intended to be a presentation in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the National Service Trust Schedule of Fiscal Year 2004 Budgetary Resources and
Obligations referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, its budgetary resources and
obligations for the year ended September 30, 2004, on the accounting basis described in Note A.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports, dated October 29,
2004, on our consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with provisions of laws and regulations. Our reports on internal control and compliance
are an integral part of an audit conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and should
be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the United States Congress, the President, the
Director of the Office of Management and Budget, the Comptroller General of the United States, the
Corporation, and the Inspector General. It is not intended for, and should not be used by, anyone other
than these specified parties.

COTTON & COMPANY LLP
Alan Rosenthal, CPA
Partner

October 29, 2004
Alexandria, Virginia

Auditor’s Report of the National Service Trust
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NATIONAL SERVICE TRUST FISCAL 2004 BUDGETARY RESOURCES

Corporation for National and Community Service
National Service Trust
Schedule of Fiscal 2004 Budgetary Resources and Obligations
As of September 30, 2004

(dollars in thousands)

Resources

Funds Available for Award, Beginning of Year $ 9,979

Fiscal 2004 Appropriation 130,000

Transfer from Fiscal 2004 Program Appropriation 13,101

Trust Reserve (9,941)

Rescissions (767)

Total Resources Available for Obligation $ 142,372

2004 Obligations

Education Awards (127,090)
Interest Forbearance (6,851)
President’s Freedom Scholarships $ (3,299)
Total Obligations (137,240)
Funds Available for Award, End of Year $ 5,132

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE

A. Basis of Accounting

The Schedule of Fiscal 2004 Budgetary Resources and Obligations for the National Service Trust (Trust) has been
prepared from the books and records of the Corporation in accordance with the Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act
(Public Law 108-45, 42 USC § 12605) for the period commencing October 1, 2003 and ending September 30, 2004,

The activities of the Trust are funded through the Veterans Affairs, Housing and Urban Development, and
Independent Agencies bill, which funds National and Community Service Act programs. Appropriations are
provided on a no-year basis for the Trust, a fund within the Corporation used to provide education awards to eligible
participants. Trust appropriations do not expire with the passage of time and are retained by the Corporation in the
Trust until used for eligible education award purposes.

The Trust provides awards for AmeriCorps members serving in approved national service positions under
AmeriCorps*State and National, AmeriCorps*NCCC, and AmeriCorps*VISTA, as well as for the AmeriCorps
Education Award Program, where sponsoring organizations are responsible for providing member subsistence and
other costs, and the Corporation provides an education award and a small amount for administrative costs.

Funds from the Trust may be expended for the purpose of providing an education award or interest forbearance
payment and must always be paid directly to a qualified institution (college, university, or other approved
educational institution, or a lending institution holding an existing student loan) as designated by the participant, as
well as for payments under the President’s Freedom Scholarship Program.
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The recognition of budgetary accounting transactions is essential for compliance with legal constraints and controls
over the use of Federal funds. Budgetary accounting principles are designed to recognize the obligation of funds
according to legal requirements, which in many cases is prior to the occurrence of an accrual-based transaction. The
Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act directs that, beginning with fiscal 2003, Trust obligations be recorded at the
time the Corporation enters into an enforceable agreement with an individual participant to serve in a program
carried out under subtitle E of title I of the National and Community Service Act of 1990 (42 USC § 12611 er seq.),
or title [ of the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of 1973 (42 USC § 4951 ef seq.), or awards a grant to (or enters into
a contract or cooperative agreement with) an entity to carry out a program for which such a position may be
approved under section 123 of the Act (42 USC § 12573). The Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act also directs
that the obligational amount be based on the estimated value of the education benefit, discounted for the estimated
enrollment, earning and usage rates, and the time value of money.

For fiscal 2004, the Corporation used the following assumptions to calculate Trust obligations and budgetary needs:
full value of the education award, 100 percent enrollment rate, 80 percent earing rate, and 80 percent usage rate.
These enrollment, earning, and usage rates are more conservative than historical rates used previously in
determining the Corporation’s budgetary needs.

B. Trust Appropriation for Program Year 2004

The program year 2004 Trust appropriation was composed of a $130 million appropriated in the 2004 Consolidated
Appropriations Act (P.L. 108-199) less the $767 thousand Trust portion of the rescission to NCSA pursuant to the
Miscellaneous Appropriations and Offsets Act of 2004. In addition, $13.1 million was transferred from program
appropriations to the Trust pursuant to the 2004 Consolidated Appropriations Act (P.L. 108-199).

C. Trust Reserve

As required by the Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act, in fiscal 2004 the Corporation set aside in reserve a portion
of the funds appropriated to the Trust in the event that its estimates used to calculate obligational amounts for
education awards prove to be too low. As of September 30, 2004, $9.9 million of the amount originally
appropriated to the Trust in 2004 had been set aside for this reserve. The total amount held in reserve under this
provision for 2003 and 2004 was $19.9 million as of September 30, 2004.

Auditor’s Report of the National Service Trust
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Inspector General’'s Statement
of Management Challenges

Challenge 1: Grant Monitoring and Management

The Corporation awards nearly $700 million annually in grants to
State commissions, nonprofits, community-based organizations,
schools, and other civic organizations. The grants support the
Corporation’s mission of providing opportunities to Americans of
all ages to engage in service that addresses the nation’s education-
al, public safety, environmental, and other human needs.
Monitoring such an extensive, nationwide grant-making opera-
tion efficiently and effectively presents a major challenge to the
Corporation.

Since the Corporation spends the majority of its appropriated
funds on grants, it is critical that the Corporation monitor grant
activity closely to ensure that grantees are complying with appli-
cable Federal laws and regulations related to the administration
of grant awards. The Corporation’s flagship program,
AmeriCorps, is the largest recipient of the Corporation’s appro-
priated funds. Three-quarters of AmeriCorps monies are awarded
to State commissions, which, in turn, select and fund subgrantees
that execute the programs. The Corporation is required to moni-
tor these State commissions to ensure compliance with grant
agreements, and ensure that State commissions are performing
their prescribed duties.

As the main recipient of Corporation awards, the State commis-
sions have been the focus of the vast majority of OIG audits.
These State commission audits, as well as audits of other grantees,
have identified several recurring problems that the Corporation
needs to address, including:

» Grantees and subgrantees continue to fail to submit Financial
Status Reports, progress reports, and member enrollment and
exit forms in a timely manner.

» Grantees and subgrantees are unable to meet matching require-
ments or to provide documentary support for the reported
matching contribution of non-Federal funds.

m State commission monitoring of subgrantees needs to be
improved.

m The Corporation needs to emphasize to grantees the impor-
tance of conducting criminal background checks on potential
members, and needs to clarify the grant provisions requiring
background checks.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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= Grantees and subgrantees are not maintaining sufficient time-
keeping records for employees.

To improve grant management, the Corporation needs to empha-
size to all State commissions and other grantees the importance of
complying with the requirements that accompany the receipt of
Federal funds. The Corporation should work with the State com-
missions and grantees to ensure that each understands these
requirements and can effectively implement them.

The conclusion drawn from the audits of State commissions and
other grantees that grantee monitoring needs improvement has
been reinforced by the OIG’s annual audit of the Corporation’s
financial statements. During the audit of the FY 2003 financial

statements, the OIG found for the third consecutive year1 that
the Corporation’s monitoring of grantee activities was a
reportable condition.? Specifically:

m The Corporation did not conduct site visits of 15 of 52 State
commissions within the prescribed three-year period. Of these
15, six State commissions were also identified as needing a site
visit in the fiscal year 2002 financial statements audit;

m The Corporation did not conduct site visits of 53 of 1,400
Senior Corps grantees within the prescribed three-year period;

= Reports on site visit findings were not provided to 189 of 606
grantees within the prescribed 20-day period following the vis-
its; and

m Progress reports, which describe program status and milestone
achievements of grantees, were not always submitted to
Corporation State offices as required.

The OIG’s financial statements audit report contains four recom-
mendations to improve the Corporation’s grantee monitoring:

m The Corporation should consider reevaluating its polices and
procedures to implement a risk-based approach for conducting
site visits to State commissions, and the Corporation should
comply with those procedures.

m Corporation State offices should better track the results of site
visits and maintain visit schedules for Senior Corps grantees.

m The Corporation should provide grantees with timely feedback
from site visits. Corporation management should consider the
timeliness of site visit report submissions when evaluating its
staff.

» Corporation State offices should more closely monitor whether
progress reports have been filed and follow up on delinquent
reports.

FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report



During the annual audit of the Corporation’s financial statements,
the auditors also became aware of two issues related to grant
monitoring that presented opportunities for the Corporation to
strengthen internal controls and operational efficiency. First, the
auditors found that the Corporation should ensure that reviews of
the Federal audit clearinghouse database are conducted regularly
to identify grantees with weaknesses and compliance problems
prior to the award of a grant. Second, grant closeout procedures
are not always followed, preventing grants from being closed out
in a timely manner. We recommended that the Corporation
develop a consistent method for identifying expired grants and
performing a timely closeout of these grants.

By implementing the recommendations on grant monitoring con-
tained in the OIG reports noted above, the Corporation can
enhance program efficiency and decrease the potential for fraud,
waste, and abuse of Federal tax dollars.

Challenge 2: Financial Management

For the fifth consecutive year, the Corporation received unquali-
fied (i.e., clean) opinions on its financial statements: the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Operations and
Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. In
addition, this year the Corporation added a comparative
Statement of Budgetary Resources as one of its principle state-
ments. The Corporation also received a clean opinion on this
statement. However, monitoring of grantee activities, as dis-
cussed in Challenge 1, remained a reportable condition.

While the Corporation has made progress over the last year, sev-
eral financial management areas continue to present challenges,
including:

The National Service Trust

The primary purpose of the National Service Trust is to fund edu-
cation awards earned by AmeriCorps members who complete a
designated term of service. The fiscal integrity of the Trust has
improved substantially since 2002, when the Corporation violated
the Anti-Deficiency Act by approving more AmeriCorps mem-
bers than the Trust could support. To help prevent a recurrence,
the OIG audited the Trust’s budgetary resources and obligations
in FY 2003, and our audit concluded that the Trust accounts are
fairly stated. However, the management of the Trust still
requires improvement.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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As identified in the OIG’s 2003 financial statements audit and in
the Government Accountability Office’s report on the National

Service Trust,3 discrepancies exist in the member data the
Corporation uses for the Trust. Inaccuracies in member informa-
tion could cause errors in the disbursement of education awards
and inaccurate computation of the Trust liability. In addition,
member exit information and education award payments are not
always processed in a timely manner. These delays can result in
a misstatement of the Trust liability.

Government Travel Charge Cards

The Corporation has issued travel charge cards to employees who
are frequent travelers to pay for transportation, lodging, meals,
and other reimbursable expenses while on official travel. The
cards should only be used for authorized expenses related to offi-
cial travel. In FY 2001, the OIG initiated a review of Corporation
employee use of the travel charge card. We identified more than
50 employees suspected of misusing the cards for personal bene-
fit. Since that review, the OIG has revisited this issue annually
and has identified fewer employees who have misused the card.
We credit the Corporation’s improved training of employees on
the appropriate uses of the government travel charge card, but
the potential for abuse remains a challenge requiring continued
Corporation vigilance.

Other Financial Management Areas

» The Gift Fund — The Corporation’s Gift Fund was created to
receive donations from individuals and organizations to further
national service. The OIG audited the Gift Fund and deter-
mined that it was fairly presented on the Corporation’s finan-
cial statements. Yet, the audit identified several instances of
noncompliance with Corporation policies, and recommended
that internal controls on Gift Fund expenditures be improved.

= Accounts Receivable and Debt Collection — Certain policies
relating to accounts receivable and debt collection were either
not documented or not followed. We recommended that the
Corporation document policies related to accounts receivable
and consistently apply policies related to debt collection.

= Vendor Payments — Payments to vendors were not always dis-
bursed in a timely manner. Delays in payments to vendors
were traced to the Corporation’s procedure, which requires sev-
eral offices to verify contracts to ensure that goods and/or serv-
ices have been provided before payments are made. We recom-
mended that the Corporation place stricter controls on respon-
sible offices, reemphasize the importance of timely payments,
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examine offices with delinquent payments, and resolve bottle-
necks in the disbursement process.

Challenge 3: Human Capital

The strategic management of human capital is one of the most
important challenges facing the Corporation. To fulfill its mis-
sion, the Corporation must hire, train, and retain competent per-
sonnel. The Corporation operates under an Alternative
Personnel System (APS) that is exempt from most of the provi-
sions of Title 5 of the United States Code and other statutes that
govern Federal employees. In 2003, the OIG issued a review that
assessed the strengths and weaknesses of the APS, employee per-
ceptions of the APS, the equal employment opportunity climate
at the Corporation, and options for APS improvement.

In general, the report found that the APS has benefited the
Corporation but has not been administered in a manner that opti-
mizes its value. The report also found that many APS policies
and procedures lacked clarity and were not understood by man-
agers and employees. The APS also lacked credibility because
some employees believed it was rife with favoritism.
Furthermore, the roles of offices responsible for human resource
decisions were not clear, and there appeared to be no “honest
broker” whom employees trusted to resolve their concerns in a
fair and honest manner. There was also a strong feeling among
African-American employees that they were not treated equi-
tably with regard to grade levels, promotions, salary increases,
and disciplinary actions.

To address these issues, the report recommended that the
Corporation take a number of actions, including:

» Improve communications to ensure that accurate information is
conveyed to employees.

» Examine the APS to ensure that it is aligned with the
Corporation’s strategic objectives.

m Create a Chief Human Capital Officer to oversee the APS and
act as an “honest broker” in the organization.

m Clarify APS policies and the roles of offices involved in human
resources decision-making.

» Conduct a detailed analysis of hiring, compensation, salary
increases, promotions, awards, and disciplinary actions to iden-
tify areas where disparate treatment of employees may exist.

m Create an active diversity program to demonstrate the
Corporation’s commitment to an inclusive culture.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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» Provide APS training to executives, managers, and employees
to dispel misconceptions about the system.

The Office of Personnel Management also conducted a human
capital assessment of the Corporation and identified many of
these same challenges. Since these reports were issued, the
Corporation has made a visible, concerted effort to make human
capital management a top priority. The Corporation has hired a
Chief Human Capital Officer who has improved employee com-
munications by holding periodic meetings to discuss personnel
issues and by issuing a biweekly human capital update to employ-
ees. A Diversity Advisory Council has been established to help
the Corporation address areas related to diversity. In addition,
the Corporation has developed a preliminary strategic human
capital plan that attempts to align human capital policies and
practices with the Corporation’s mission. While improvements
have been made, the OIG recognizes the importance of this issue
and plans to revisit the recommendations made in these reports
to provide a complete assessment of the Corporation’s progress.

Challenge 4: Information Security

The confidentiality and integrity of information systems are vital
to the successful operation of the Corporation. Advancements in
information technology have resulted in a number of benefits to
the Corporation, such as information being processed more
quickly and communicated almost instantaneously. However,
these advancements have also increased the risk of fraud, inap-
propriate disclosure of sensitive data, and disruption of critical
operations and services.

To address these concerns, Congress enacted the Federal
Information Security Management Act of 2002 (FISMA). The
FISMA provides a comprehensive framework to ensure that
information resources supporting Federal operations and assets
employ effective security controls. The FISMA requires the OIG
to perform an independent security evaluation of the Corporation
annually.

The OIG has performed the FISMA audit for FY 2004. The audi-
tors commended the Corporation for taking the following steps to
enhance its security program and address issues identified in the
2003 FISMA report:

» Provided staff access to a comprehensive library of current poli-
cies and procedures via the Corporation’s Intranet.

= Initiated a proactive security awareness program.
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» Conducted periodic network scans to identify vulnerabilities
and take appropriate steps to mitigate risk.

= Installed an effective security incident reporting process that
follows Federal policies.

» Completed effective configuration management of Corporation
systems and assets.

The Corporation’s noteworthy progress in 2004 is moderated,
however, by one area that has shown little progress toward reme-
diation. Our recent independent evaluation of the Corporation’s
information security identified a significant deficiency in the
Corporation’s annual testing and evaluation. The Corporation’s
major applications and general support system have not under-
gone complete testing and evaluation in the past 12 months.
Failure to conduct annual testing and evaluation permits new
threats and vulnerabilities to go undetected for an extended peri-
od of time. Furthermore, the absence of annual testing and eval-
uation poses a high risk to the Corporation’s information security
environment.

We commend the Corporation on the steps it has taken to
enhance information security, but until this issue is addressed,
the Corporation’s information technology systems remain at risk.

Challenge 5: Performance Measurement

Over the past decade, the Federal government has intensified its
focus on measuring the performance of government agencies. In
1993, Congress passed the Government Performance and Results
Act of 1993 (GPRA) to increase agency accountability and
improve the quality and delivery of government services. The
GPRA requires agencies to set program goals, measure program
performance against those goals, and report on agency progress.
To further these purposes, the Administration announced The
President’s Management Agenda in 2001, which increased the
focus on performance by formally integrating it with budget
planning and reporting.

The Corporation funds a wide variety of community service
activities through an extensive network of grantees and sub-
grantees. Measuring the Corporation’s performance depends on
accurately assessing the performance of this network of grantees
and aligning this information with the Corporation’s goals and
measures. Accurate and complete measurements of grantee per-
formance are critical for evaluating the economy and efficiency
of the Corporation, and its impact in communities across the
nation.

Inspector General’'s Statement
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Over the past few years, the Corporation has made advancements
in three performance measurement areas. First, the Corporation
has developed an Internet-based reporting system for AmeriCorps
that allows grantees and subgrantees to collect performance
information. Second, the Corporation has improved the quality
of the performance data reported by grantees and subgrantees by
providing training and technical assistance on using its Internet-
based system. Finally, the Corporation’s FY 2006 budget shows
increased efforts in developing a performance-based budget that
is more closely aligned with its goals and strategic objectives.

Despite these advancements, the Corporation continues to face
some significant challenges that have been identified during the
OIG’s ongoing evaluation of AmeriCorps. For example,
Corporation guidelines permit grantees and subgrantees to select
their own performance measures and report on their progress
through a variety of procedures and systems. The lack of specific,
standardized performance criteria impairs the ability of the
Corporation to use grantee performance information in reports to
the President and Congress. Corporation guidance also requires
grantees and subgrantees to only report on the top three activities
they perform, potentially causing some important accomplish-
ments to be underreported. In addition, the Corporation reviews
performance information, but its computer systems are not struc-
tured to adequately track monitoring efforts to validate the accu-
racy of performance information. Correcting these deficiencies
will enable Corporation management to more accurately measure
the significant results and impact achieved by its grantees and
subgrantees.

! The audit of the FY 2004 financial statements is currently underway. It
appears, however, that the Corporation’s grant monitoring, although improved
from 2003, will again be identified as a reportable condition, making grant
monitoring a reportable condition for four consecutive years.

27 reportable condition is an issue coming to the auditor’s attention that, in
the auditor’s judgment, should be communicated because it represents a signif-
icant deficiency in the design or operation of internal controls that could
adversely affect the Corporation’s ability to meet its objectives.

3 Government Accountability Office, Better Internal Control and Revised
Practices Would Improve the Management of AmeriCorps and the National
Service Trust 12-15 (2004).
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Corporation Response to the
Management Challenges Identified
by the Inspector General

In FY 2004, the Corporation has continued to make progress
addressing a variety of management challenges at the same time
that we are resource constrained. Senior management and the
Board of Directors remain committed to ensuring that our pro-
grams are more accountable and effective. At all levels of the
Corporation, we are reviewing our processes, benchmarking with
other agencies, pulsing our customers and demanding excellence
from our staff.

This year’s OIG management challenges report does not ade-
quately reflect the significant progress made by the Corporation
over the past 18 months.

We understand that significant work remains to optimize pro-
gram performance and ensure that the agency’s internal manage-
ment functions operate according to the highest standards of fis-
cal and operational accountability. Resource constraints make it
increasingly difficult to meet increased demands for higher stan-
dards of accountability, especially in the highly decentralized
grant programs administered by our agency. Nonetheless, in
every area cited by the IG and in many more, the Corporation
has begun to implement significant reforms — reforms that senior
management and the Board of Directors are committed to seeing
through.

Many of those reforms and strategic initiatives are discussed
throughout this FY 2004 Performance and Accountability Report.
In addition, we would like to respond to the specific points made
by the OIG.

Grant Monitoring and Management

To build stronger oversight and management across all its pro-
grams, the Corporation recently established an Award Oversight
and Monitoring Council comprised of senior staff. The Council’s
mission is to ensure that the Corporation exercises uniformly
excellent financial, administrative and programmatic award over-
sight across its programs and supports awardees success through
effective compliance monitoring, training and technical assis-
tance. The initial tasks of the Council are to fill the new Director
of Oversight and Monitoring position and develop the FY 2005

Corporation for National and Community Service

Corporation Response to Management

Challenges Identified by the Inspector General

C-239

b
s
)
£
)
o
c
c
(o]
=
[
(2
e
]
=
L.




n
-
V)
-
o)
S
=
)
-
[V
Q
®
3
(]
-
(o

|eJauan J032adsu| ayl Ag paiiauap| sebuajjey)

Juswabeuel\ 0] asuodsay uoilelodion

oversight and monitoring plan.

Risk-Based Monitoring.

In FY 2004, the Corporation piloted a risk-assessment process to
target site visits and established new administrative standards for
the state commissions to assess their performance in overseeing
service programs in their states. The Corporation also established
new protocols for reviewing the commissions’ performance.
Under these protocols, the Corporation now will conduct a more
in-depth review of a one-third sample of the commissions each
year. Following the commission would have six months to bring
the commission into compliance with any of the new administra-
tive standards. The Corporation also will continue to review its
grants monitoring process, including its risk-assessment approach,
to identify further improvements.

Senior Corps Monitoring

The Corporation established a pilot tracking system for Senior
Corps grantees in FY 2004. In FY 2005, this system will be
revised, based on this first year of operation. The agency will
improve the system’s site visit tracking and documentation capa-
bility. This improved documentation capability will better
enable the grants specialists to document the scope of their test-
ing and the specific procedures they performed in reaching their
conclusions regarding the grantees visited. The Corporation
completed all scheduled Senior Crops site visits in FY 2004—
nearly 1,000 of them—and will maintain rigorous adherence to
its schedule of visits to Senior Corps grantees going forward.

Timely Feedback from Site Visits

In FY 2004, about 86 percent of the Corporation’s Office of
Grants Management site visit reports were submitted on time.
The Corporation will continue to improve the timeliness of its
reports by, for example, implementing planned improvements to
the agency’s computer technology (e.g., the replacement of desk-
top computers with laptops) to the extent that sufficient funding
is available. The Corporation includes timeliness as a perform-
ance standard for its staff.

Grantee Reporting

During the transition to electronic submission of reports, several
difficulties surfaced related to electronic tracking in eGrants. The
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Corporation has developed solutions to these challenges and that
will address these problems in FY 2005. We will incorporate the
tracking of AmeriCorps member enrollment and exit forms into
eGrants during its next phase of improvements. In addition, we
will modify the eGrants system to support a comprehensive sys-
tem of reminders and follow-up messages on financial and pro-
grammatic reports.

Grantee Matching Documentation

When grantees demonstrate that they cannot meet match
requirements because of a lack of available funds at the local
community level, the Corporation works with the grantee to
establish a grant level suitable to the grantee’s match capability.
To ensure that grantees maintain appropriate supporting docu-
mentation for the match, we provide technical assistance to them
and conduct financial management training seminars that cover
requirements for documentation.

In FY 2004, the Corporation conducted workshops and confer-
ences for state commissions, national direct grantees, Learn and
Serve America grantees and sub-grantees, including about 1,900
attendees. We also conducted 47 on-site technical assistance
interventions and provided remote technical assistance to another
1,620 program managers. In FY 2005, the agency will conduct at
least two more voluntary seminars and will plan a comprehensive
mandatory seminar for all grantees for FY 2006. In addition, the
Corporation trains all new grantees on match documentation
requirements within the first three months of the grant project
period.

The Corporation’s recently updated its monitoring protocols to
include clear guidance for reviewing the documentation for
grantee/sub-grantee match funding. These protocols help to
ensure that all grantees/sub-grantees maintain adequate match
documentation.

Screening of Grantees

Grants Management Specialists at both the Service Centers and
headquarters must review the clearinghouse and check for A-133
issues before executing every award. The Corporation identifies
those grantees that have weaknesses, records that information in
eGrants, and works with the applicant organization to undertake
appropriate corrective action before executing the award.

Corporation for National and Community Service
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Timely Grant Close-out

The Corporation established a method for identifying and track-
ing expired grants in FY 2001 and began a process to catch up on
the backlog of expired grants at that time. Since then, the agency
has closed over 90 percent of expired grants and decreased the
backlog significantly. Close-out is often delayed because grantees
must complete reconciliations before the Corporation can close
the grants. Further improvements to timely grant close-out will
require the Corporation to further simplify and automate the
close-out process, and devote more staff time to follow-up with
grantees on necessary reconciliations.

Grantee Documentation

During FY 2004, the agency transmitted clear guidance to all
grantees and sub-grantees regarding the requirement to conduct
criminal background checks on potential members. In addition,
the language included in each grant was amended to further clar-
ify this requirement.

The Corporation’s grant guidelines and agreements, as well as
OMB circulars, incorporate requirements for the maintenance of
timekeeping records for employees. However, some grantees and
sub-grantees have not maintained adequate timekeeping records.
Therefore, the Corporation will conduct a mandatory, compre-
hensive financial management training conference in late FY
2005 or early FY 2006 that will include timekeeping require-
ments training.

The Corporation plans to address the outstanding OIG recom-
mendations as fully as possible within existing resource con-
straints in FY 2005. The agency’s implementation of risk-based
monitoring and its expanded use of technology (e.g., laptops for
site visits, as planned over the next few years) are expected to
result in operational cost savings over time that can be used to
address some of these issues. In some cases, improvements will
require additional funding to enable the Corporation to fully
address the OIG’s concerns.

Further information on the Corporation’s grants management and
monitoring is provided in the following sections: “Status of
Grants Management Reportable Condition” and “Improved
Financial Management.”
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Financial Management

National Service Trust

The Corporation has already implemented improvements to the
agency’s procedures and systems to improve the agency’s man-
agement of the National Service Trust. The agency implemented
a set of controls to ensure the availability of Trust resources for
AmeriCorps grant approvals, including:

» Estimating total FTE and member slots available for the grant
cycle and allocating them to programs;

m Requiring the CFO to certify the program and Trust costs of
each proposed grant approval;

m Recording Trust obligations concurrent with the grant award
process;

» Automating safeguards in the Web-Based Reporting System
(the agency’s grantee reporting system) to help prevent grantees
from enrolling more members than they were allotted; and

» Continuously tracking Trust enrollments to allow for timely
mid-course corrections, if necessary.

The Corporation also has taken steps to validate the member data
in the Trust, particularly for incoming members. However,
ongoing reconciliation efforts continue to be necessary to resolve
outstanding discrepancies. With regard to the timely processing
of member exit information, the agency has improved the WBRS
functionality and grantee/sub-grantee training to support more
accurate and timely tracking of member exits. The agency’s edu-
cation award payments are processed promptly following mem-
ber requests and validation of expenses. The agency will review
its education award payment process to ensure it is as efficient as
possible, while maintaining adequate control over Federal expen-
ditures.

Controls on Use of Government Charge Cards

As noted by the OIG, the Corporation has reduced the number of
employees identified as having mis-used Government charge
cards for personal use substantially over the last few years to a
very low level. The Corporation continues, however, to ensure
that all employees with such cards are fully aware of the provi-
sions limiting use to Corporation business by issuing reminder
notifications periodically. Moreover, the agency continues to
monitor charge card use for potential abuses, including reviewing
a sample of charges each month.
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Internal Controls on Gift Fund Expenditures

The Corporation is revising its policies and procedures to
strengthen internal controls on Gift Fund transactions.

Timely Vendor Payments

Currently, the Corporation pays less than $10,000 per year in
interest and penalties due to late payments, representing about
0.001 percent of the agency’s appropriation. Nonetheless, the
Corporation will reexamine its procedure for verifying receipt of
goods and services prior to payment to ensure adequate compli-
ance with timeliness requirements.

Human Capital

In FY 2003, our Inspector General and the Office of Personnel
Management issued highly critical reports of the Corporation’s
human capital program. These reports, augmented by suggestions
from Corporation employees, led us to reassess nearly all of our
human capital programs and develop a blueprint for
reform-reform that fully embraces the goals of the President’s
Management Agenda.

Although the Corporation only began its reform initiative early
in FY 2004, dramatic progress has already occurred. Key to this
progress has been the development of a preliminary Strategic
Human Capital Plan, modeled on the Office of Personnel
Management’s (OPM’s) Human Capital Standards for Success.
Working against our preliminary Strategic Human Capital Plan,
the agency implemented major human capital reforms in FY
2004.

FY 2004 reforms that specifically address the OIG’s concerns
include:

» Improved communication with employees by initiating a
biweekly newsletter and holding regular “all-staff” meetings on
important human capital issues;

» Modified the agency’s Alternative Personnel System to ensure
alignment with the Corporation’s strategic objectives by:

o Reforming the long-time practice of using term
appointments for on-going positions to instead use per-
manent appointments, thus increasing the number of
high-quality job applicants and significantly improving
employee morale;

o Tightening the criteria used to determine bonuses and
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pay adjustments and implementing a rigorous new man-
agerial appraisal system, thus more closely tying pay to
performance;
m Created a new position, Chief Human Capital Officer, to focus
the agency’s human capital reform efforts;

m Clarified personnel policies and office roles in human resource
decision-making by conducting training and informational ses-
sions for executives, managers and employees;

= Initiated the development of an active diversity program by
establishing a Diversity Advisory Council; and

» Implemented the Federal Human Capital Survey to help identi-
fy employee concerns, particularly with regard to equitable
treatment of employees.

In addition, in FY 2004 the Corporation implemented a number
of additional human capital improvements, including:

» Doubling the agency’s investment in employee training;

» Promoting leadership development by encouraging all supervi-
sors, managers and executives to participate in “360-degree”
assessments and to use the results of these assessments to pre-
pare Individual Development Plans;

» Reinforcing the centrality of our programs and strengthened
program management by more strongly exercising the functions
of the Chief Operating Officer to enhance and integrate all pro-
gram operations;

» Developing initial operational, output, and outcome metrics to
better assess the agency’s progress and to support more
informed decision-making; and

m Receiving the Excellence in Government Ethics award for our
comprehensive and highly effective ethics program.

Although enormous progress was made in FY 2004, the
Corporation recognizes that building a diverse, energized, high-
performing workforce requires a long-term investment of time
and resources. To ensure the Corporation’s ongoing progress,
the agency will update and refine its Strategic Human Capital
Plan in FY 2005, reassessing our progress, strengthening the
measures used to determine our success and identifying further
steps to achieve a high-performing workforce. Among other ini-
tiatives, our new Strategic Plan will call for:

» Implementing a rigorous new appraisal system for non-supervi-
sory employees in FY 2005;

» Developing and testing a Workforce Planning Model that even-
tually will be applied to all Corporation units and occupations;
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= Implementing a strategic approach to the use of training
resources to ensure that such resources help to address skills
gaps and leadership succession; and

= Streamlining staffing processes to identify the right people for
the right jobs more quickly and efficiently.

Based on the tremendous progress made in FY 2004 and the
agency’s commitment to meeting its human capital challenges,
the Corporation hopes to become a “model” of human capital
management over the coming years.

Information Security

The Corporation has maintained an outstanding record of compli-
ance with all applicable laws and regulations governing its sys-
tems, including the requirements of the Federal Financial
Management Improvement Act (FFMIA) and the Federal
Managers’ Financial Integrity Act (FMFIA). As required by the
Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA), the
Corporation performed a self-assessment of its major systems
using the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST)
ASSET tool in September 2003.

Additionally, the Corporation completed its 2004 testing and
evaluation of its major systems using the NIST ASSET tool again
in September and expects to complete new Certification and
Accreditation reports for all of its major systems by January 31,
2005.

Although the OIG identified a deficiency in the Corporation’s
documentation and follow-up of its systems evaluation and test
under the Federal Information Security Management Act
(FISMA), two separate, recently completed audits identified no
significant security vulnerability. In addition, the FY 2004 finan-
cial audit included significant security review that did not find
any significant security weakness. The Corporations has a com-
prehensive security program that has been reviewed as part of
this process with no significant changes recommended.

Grantee Performance Measurement

The Corporation has made enormous progress toward more per-
formance-based grants management. Following on the agency’s
requirements for grantees to report at least one outcome measure,
one output measure and one efficiency measure, the Corporation
plans to codify and strengthen these requirements through the
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AmeriCorps rulemaking process, with a final rule expected to be
published in FY 2005.

However, the Corporation recognizes the need to incorporate
performance measurement into the management of its grants
more fully. To create a more performance-based grant-making
process, the Corporation will work cooperatively with our
grantees, sub-grantees, constituents, the Administration and the
Congress to develop creative and effective solutions to both
include grantee performance in the grants application and review
process, and support promising new service organizations and
approaches.

As a first step, in FY 2005 the Corporation will analyze grantee
performance reporting and begin to identify common themes and
approaches to effective performance measurement and manage-
ment that might be used by other grantees. Based on these com-
mon approaches, the Corporation, working in consultation with
the grantees and other constituents, will evaluate alternatives to
enable more standardized reporting, while also enabling report-
ing of the unique results of many grantees.

In FY 2005 the Corporation will begin to analyze its grantee per-
formance reporting in order to develop improved grantee and
program performance measures that can be compared and com-
bined in assessing grantee and program performance. A signifi-
cant challenge in this development process will be to identify
comparable measures to assess the exceptionally wide range of
programs supported through the Corporation’s programs. In
addition, the Corporation will focus on the adequacy of current
reporting requirements to accurately and fairly present the full
range of grantee accomplishments. The Corporation also will
assess the feasibility and usefulness of the data that would be gen-
erated from an expanded accomplishments reporting approach
prior to imposing additional reporting requirements for grantees
and sub-grantees.

Ongoing improvement to the eGrants system will help to address
the need for improved grantee performance tracking under cur-
rent reporting requirements. However, in FY 2005 the agency
also will examine the eGrants system and the reporting require-
ments to ensure that comparable data is collected from grantees
in all the Corporation’s programs. This effort will require a
review of data element and metric definition differences across
programs and grantees and the development of more standardized
definitions. Additional systems changes in FY 2006 will be
dependent upon the improved performance reporting require-
ments to be developed by the Corporation over the next few
years.
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Appendix A:
FY 2004 Evaluation Highlights

The following projects are highlights from the Department of
Research and Policy Development during FY 2004.

National Performance Measurement

Appendices

AmeriCorps Performance Measurement Benchmarking: [Annual]
An initiative to collect annual outcome-oriented performance
data from AmeriCorps members, AmeriCorps grantees, VISTA
projects, and NCCC project sponsors.

Learn and Serve America Performance Measurement
Benchmarking: [Annual] An initiative to collect annual outcome-
oriented performance data from Learn and Serve America
grantees and subgrantees.

Senior Corps Performance Measurement Benchmarking: [Annual]
An initiative to collect annual outcome-oriented performance
data from Senior Corps projects, stations, and volunteers.

Field Network Evaluation: [Initiated] The pilot phase of a study
to evaluate localized implementation and community effects of
Corporation programs.

State Profiles and Performance Report: [On-going] A project to
improve the transparency of national reporting by disaggregating
performance data for state and national grantees.

Program Evaluation

AmeriCorps Longitudinal Study of Member Outcomes: [On-
going] An evaluation of the short-term and long-term impacts of
AmeriCorps participation on members civic engagement, educa-
tion, employment and life skills.

Parent Drug Corps Evaluation: [Initiated] A random-assignment
evaluation to describe the implementation and assess the impact
of the Parent Drug Corps grant program.

Appendix A: FY 2004 Evaluation Activities

Evaluation of AmeriCorps Tutoring Programs: [Initiated] The
pilot phase of a random-assignment evaluation to assess the
impact of AmeriCorps tutoring programs on youth and identify
programmatic factors related to achievement.

Study of AmeriCorps*VISTA’s Impact on 40 years of Volunteers:
[Initiated] An evaluation to identify the long-term civic engage-
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ment, education, and employment outcomes of
AmeriCorps*VISTA volunteers serving between 1964 and 1990.

Senior Companion Program Quality of Care Study: [Completed]
A evaluation of the outcomes for participants and family care-
givers in the Senior Companion program.

Research

Current Population Survey Supplement on Volunteerism:
[Annual] A survey conducted by the Bureau of Labor Statistics
(BLS) to measure volunteerism in the United States as part of the
Current Population Survey (CPS).

Volunteer Management Capacity Survey: [Biennial] A study of
the volunteer capacity and volunteer management practices of
the nation’s charitable and nonprofit organizations.

Youth Volunteering and Civic Engagement Survey: [Biennial] A
study of volunteering and charitable behaviors of youth ages 13-
18, the next generation of America’s volunteers.

Special Program Initiatives

Next Generation Grants: [Completed] A grant program to foster
the next generation of national service organizations by providing
seed money for new service programs that have the potential of
becoming national in scope.
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Appendix B: Derivation of
Estimated Funding by Goal

The Corporation has attributed funding for the various programs
to the four goals established in the FY 2006 Budget Estimate and
Performance Plan. All programs serve multiple goals. However,
each program was assigned to the goal that best captures the
underlying purpose of the program based on its impact and moti-
vating reason to participate among grantees. Accordingly,
AmeriCorps and Senior Corps programs are shown under Goal 1
where the emphasis is on the end beneficiary of service.
However, funds put aside specifically to benefit the members
after their service (AmeriCorps education awards and post-serv-
ice stipends) and funds to support low and moderate income serv-
ice providers (stipends for Senior Companions and Foster
Grandparents) are shown under Goal 2, which speaks to the ben-

efits to the volunteer.

Learn and Serve America is shown under Goal 3, since its impact
is considered to be especially broad and lasting by reinforcing the
service learning movement and demonstrating patterns for life-
long civic engagement among a school-age population. Certain

demonstration grants are also shown here.

Funding for Goal 1: Meet Human Needs Through Diverse,

High-quality Service Programs

Service through Amer

iCorps

State and Nationa $298,000,000
NCCC $25,000,000
VISTA $91,000,000

ubtotal, AmeriCorps $474,000,000
Senior Corps

RSVP 558,000,000
Foster Grandparent 545,000,000
Senior Companion 519,000,000

ubtotal, Senior Corps $722,000,000
America’s Promise 55,000,000
Grants
Special Volunteer 510,000,000
Programs

" Challenge Grants | $2,000,000

Training and Technica $2,000,000
Assistance

otal, Coal 1 $555,000,000

Appendix B: Derivation of Estimated
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Funding for Goal 2: Improve the Lives of National Service

> Participants

S

8 Support to AmeriCorps Members

3 National Service Trust $140,000,000

o VISTA Post-Service Stipend $3,000,000

g Freedom Scholarships $4,000,000
Subtotal, Support to $147,000,000

AmeriCorps Members
Stipends to Senior Corps Volunteers

Foster Grandparent Program $65,000,000
Senior Companion Program $27,000,000
Subtotal, Stipends to Senior $97,000,000
Corps

Disability Grants $5,000,000
Total, Goal 2 $249,000,000

Funding for Goal 3: Strengthen the Infrastructure,
Capacity, and Social Capital of Communities Across

America
g > Learn and Serve Program $43,000,000
= g National Service Trust $140,000,000
Qo
S 3 Innovation and Demonstration Programs
‘g = Points of Light Foundation $10,000,000
< @ Martin Luther King, Jr. Grants $1,000,000
8 O Next Generation Grants $1,000,000
o @
_
5 Service Learning $1,000,000
H Clearinghouse/Exchange
g Total, Goal 3 $56,000,000
(@]
*
m
a3 . o
= Funding for Goal 4: Improve the Corporation’s Trust,
g Credibility, Accountability, and Customer Focus
o,
(@] NCSA Salaries/Expenses $25,000,000
DVSA Program Administration $36,000,000
Office of Inspector General $6,000,000
Evaluation $3,000,000
State Commissions $12,000,000
Administration Grants
Total, Goal 4 $82,000,000
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Appendix C: Sources and Uses of
Donations

The following schedule lists the receipts and expenses paid from the
Gift Fund in FY 2004 and FY 2003.

Supplemental Information on the Sources and Uses? of Donations

Source of Funds

Home Depot

Ralph Lauren Polo
Foundation

UPS Foundation

A&E Television
Networks

Bradley Foundation

Walt Disney
Company

Best Buy

Kellogg Foundation

Other Donors

Other Donors

Total

2004
Expense

2003

Use of Funds Receipt Receipt Expense

Disaster rebuilding $500,000 - - -

activities

Support for NCCC pro- $31,310

gram activities

$19,694 - -

Support for USA -
FreedomCorps web

site and national non-

profit volunteerism

study

$351,518 $550,000 $121,902

Support for summit - $837 $30,000 $23,081
on History, Civics and

Service

Support for summit - -
on History, Civics and
Service

$75,000 $60,224

Corporation projects - $1,521 - -
in support of USA

Freedom Corps

Grants for the MLK —
Day of Service

(61,463)2 $5,065

Training and Technical - - - (2,334)2
Assistance

Miscellaneous speci- $8,300 - $50 $134

fied purposes
Miscellaneous unspeci- $100 $3,433 -
fied purposes

$10,443

$539,710  §322,550 $658,483  $208,072

1 Funds expended during a fiscal year may include amounts donated in a previous year. In addition,
expenses include only the amount accrued during the fiscal year and do not reflect amounts that have

been obligated but not yet expended. 2 Reduction of expenses previously accrued to account.
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Appendix D: National Service
Trust— Financial Statements and
Key Financial Factors

The National Service Trust (the Trust) was established by the
National and Community Service Trust Act of 1993 (42 USC
12601, et seq.) to provide funds for education awards for eligible
participants who complete AmeriCorps service. Funding for the
Trust comes from appropriations, interest earned, and proceeds
from the sale or redemption of Trust investments. The Trust is
also authorized to receive gifts or bequests; however, to date, no
donations have been received by the Trust. Under the Act, funds
are available to:

m Repay qualified student loans.

» Pay educational expenses at a qualified institution of higher
education.

» Pay expenses incurred participating in an approved school-to-
work program.

m Repay eligible interest expense on student loans.

The value of an education award depends on the term of service
performed by an AmeriCorps member. Completion of a full-time
term of service, currently requiring a minimum of 1,700 hours of
service, entitles an AmeriCorps member to an education award of
$4,725. Completion of a part-time term, requiring a minimum of
900 hours of service, entitles an AmeriCorps member to an
education award of $2,362.50. Reduced part-time terms, which
provide awards of $1,000 to $1,800, are also offered. Education
awards earned by AmeriCorps members are available to be used
for seven years from the completion of the service. Payments
from the Trust are made directly to the educational institutions
and the loan holders as directed by the members and certified by
the institutions. Trust funds are not used to pay member stipends
or other grant costs.

Recent appropriations also have made specified amounts from the
Trust available for scholarships for high school students. The
$1,000 college scholarships, known as Presidential Freedom
Scholarships, are awarded to students who provide outstanding
service. To fund each scholarship, a local community or corpo-
rate source must match the $500 portion of the scholarship pro-
vided by the Corporation.

Table 1 reports the planned activity for Program Year 2004 and
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actual enrollments to date. The table also includes similar data
on program year 2003 for comparative purposes. Slots classified
as “Certified Not Awarded” have been approved for award to

grantees but for which the final grant award has not been execut-
ed.
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Table 1: Member Slot Status

Member Slot Status
Program Year 2004

Awarded
AmeriCorps Enrolled Not Certified  Planned Total
Program Enrolled Not Not
Awarded  Certified
State & National 15,745 45,806 5,155 2,320 69,026
VISTA 4,012 656 - 107 4,775
NCCC 517 682 - - 1,199
Total 20,274 47,144 5,155 2,427 75,000
L o
§ g Program Year 2003
3 2 Awarded
Q
N f—: AmeriCorps Enrolled Not Certified  Planned Total
N Program Enrolled Not Not
= Awarded  Certifled
?) 5 State & National 35,536 7,123 1,438 - 44,097
3 ot
@ o
>
Y VISTA 3,078 1,390 - - 4,468
32
S NCCC 726 29 - - 755
< =
s R
S5 0 Total 39,340 8,542 1,438 = 49,320
Qs) (O]
o 5
=l c Table 2 shows the most significant factors used to calculate Trust
o obligations on a historical basis. The data used to compute these
gr factors can be found in Table 6.
o
(%2]
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Table 2: Factors Affecting the National Service Trust
Program Year1

Factor 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Member enroliments in the Trust 40,784 41,920 53,136 59,356 48,464 39,340 20,274
Percent of members earning an 68.1% 71.1% 71.8% 75.0% 78.8% 82.5% 88.3%

education award2

Percent of earned education awards 70.2% 67.0% 61.8% 54.2% 43.9% 15.7% 8.5%
used3

Investment Earnings4 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 4% 4%

Breakout of enrollment by term

type:5
Full-time 60% 56% 50% 50% 58% 45% 65%
Part-time 27% 27% 25% 23% 19% 22% 9%
Reduced Part-time 13% 17% 25% 27% 23% 33% 26%

1 Program Year refers to positions awarded through, although not necessarily filled in, a particular fiscal year’s grant funds. For
example, a grantee may receive a grant in fiscal year 2003 but not fill all positions until fiscal 2004. All positions related to this
grant would be considered Program Year 2003 positions irrespective of the year filled. [This definition applies to all slots except
for the approximately 20,000 Program Year 2002 slots unfilled at the time of the pause. These “post pause” slots were reclassi-
fied as Program Year 2003 slots.] Program Year data reflects all enrollments recorded through September 30, 2004. Prior year
enrollment numbers may change slightly due to corrections or late reporting by grantees.

2 cumulative number of members who earned an award divided by the total members enrolled (net of members still earning/not
exited) as of September 30, 2004.

3 The usage rate represents the percent of awards earned (in dollars) in each year that have been used as of September 30,
2004. Or, in other words, the dollar amount of education awards used divided by the total amount earned for the Program Year
as of September 30, 2004.

4 Weighted Average Maturity for the Trust investment portfolio of Treasury securities. Used to discount awards for the time value
of money.

5 Term type mix is based on Program Year enroliments to date. It is important because education award projections are based on
service type.

Trust Accounting

Tables 3, 4, and 5 presents information on the financial status of
the Trust Fund including its assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses,
reserve, and amounts obligated. The Statement of Financial
Position and Statement of Operations present information using
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), which is the
method of accounting for the liability used for financial state-
ment purposes. The Corporation’s financial statements are pre-
pared on a quarterly basis. The Schedule of Obligations presents
information on a budgetary basis which represents the account-
ing used to determine adherence to Anti-Deficiency Act require-
ments.

GAAP requires the recording of a liability which is a point in
time estimate of the unpaid earned and expected-to-be-earned
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Trust

Ice

National Servi

Appendix D

D-259

Appendices

wn
[ -
(@]
]
(@)
©
LL
[
(@)
(e
©
k=
LL
>
(]
A4
©
C
©
wn
)
C
(]
€
(O]
]
©
i)
(9]
=
(@)
C
©
<
LL



>
S
S
®
S
=
(o]
®
(7]

SJ1030e4 |eloueuld A9y pue sjuswalels |eloueuld

1ShJ] 92IAISS [euonleN :a Xipuaddy

education award and interest forbearance costs which are likely
to be claimed. GAAP estimates are for members who have
already completed at least 15 percent of the minimum service
requirement and who, therefore, have served enough hours to
qualify for at least a partial education award. The estimate of the
Service Award Liability under GAAP includes factors for mem-
bers who enroll but do not earn an award, and for members who
earn an award but do not use it within the seven-year period of
availability. The Corporation estimates that up to 79 percent of
members earning an award will eventually use it.

Enacted in fiscal 2003, the Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act
directed that the Corporation begin recording Trust obligations at
the time of grant award for the estimated value of the education
benefit, discounted for the estimated enrollment, earning and
usage rates and the time value of money. The Corporation used
the following assumptions to calculate Trust obligations for pro-
gram years 2003 and 2004: full value of the education award, 100
percent enrollment rate, 80 percent earning rate, and 80 percent
usage rate. These enrollment, earning, and usage rates are more
conservative than the rates we have experienced and used previ-
ously in determining our budgetary needs. As directed by the
Act, the Corporation also established a Trust reserve that will
protect the Corporation in the event that the estimates used to
calculate obligations differ from actual results. For program year
2002 and prior, the Corporation used the actual amounts earned,
adjusted for amounts used and projected to be used and the time
value of money when establishing the obligation amount.
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Table 3: Statement of Financial Position as of September 30

Natlonal Service Trust 8
Statement of Financial Position o
As of September 30 S
(dollars in thousands) | =
2004 2003 g_
Assets o
Fund Balance with Treasury $3,120 $146 <L
Trust Investments and Related Receivables $337,913 $231,880
Accounts Receivable, Net $15 $17
Total Assets $341,048 $232,043
Liabilities
Trust Service Award Liability $237,497 $230,622
Total Liabilities $237,497 $230,622
Net Position
Cumulative Results of Operations $103,551 $1,421
Total Net Position $103,551 $1,421
Total Liabilities and Net Position $341,048 $232,043

Table 4: Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Position for the Years
Ending September 30

National Service Trust
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Position - »
For the Years Ending September 30 ©“ s
; -}
(dollars in thousands) [ 51
2004 2003 'q—) ®
Revenues O®
Trust Appropriation $129,233 $99,350 E g
Deficiency Appropriation 963,055 - 8)) ©
Transfers from Program Funds? $13,101 - i
Interest $8,871 $9,693 (CG q>)~
Total Revenues $214,260 $109,043 O X
"D O
Expenses © <
Service Award Expense $108,831 $106,683 = %
President’s Freedom Scholarships $3,299 52,895 o GC)
Total Expenses $112,130 $5109,578 X £
) . O O
Net of Revenues Over Expenses $102,130 $(535) GCJ s
3=
- n
Net Position e =
Net of Revenues Over Expenses $102,130 S(535) << G
Net Position, Beginning of Period $1,421 $1,956 %
c
Total Liabilities and Net Position $103,551 $1.421 L
TA $63 million deficiency appropriation related to fiscal 2002 obligations was enacted
on April 16, 2003, as part of the Emergency Wartime Supplemental Appropriations Act
(PL. 108-11). The funds were apportioned to the Corporation on March 1, 2004.
2 The 2004 Consolidated Appropriations Act (PL. 108-199) authorized the Corporation to
transfer subtitle C program funds to the Trust to support the activities of national serv-
ice participants.
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Table 5: Schedule of Budgetary Activity for the Year Ending September 30,

2004
National Service Trust
Schedule of Budgetary Activity
For the Year Ending September 30
(dollars in thousands)
Outstanding
for Prior PY 2004 Total
Years
Resources
Trust Cash & Investments (net of receivables) $201,605 $138,576 $340,181
Trust Reserve (not available for obligation) (10,000) (9,941) (19,941)
Total Resources $191,605 $128,635 $320,420
Unliquidated Obligations
Education Awards $185,079 $119,990 $305,069
Interest Forbearance $3,382 $6,657 $10,039
Total Unliquidated Obligations $188,461 $126,647 $315,108
Funds Available for Award $3,144 $1,988 $5,132
Net Position
Reconciliation to 2004 Trust Appropriation
PY 2004 Trust Cash & Investments §138,576

Payments on PY 2004 Obligations:

President’s Freedom Scholarships $3,299

Education Awards $438

Interest Forbearance $21

Total PY 2004 Payments 53,758
Rescissions

Less 2004 Program Appropriation (13,101)
Transferred to Trust”
2004 Trust Appropriation $130,000

1 The 2004 Consolidated Appropriations Act (PL. 108-199) authorized the Corporation to transfer subtitle C
program appropriated funds to the Trust to support the activities of national service participants.

CEO Certification

The Strengthen AmeriCorps Program Act established specific cri-
teria for estimating and recording obligations in the National
Service Trust. The Act also requires that the Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation annually certify that the Corporation
is in compliance with the requirements of the Act and obtain an
independent audit of the accounts and records demonstrating the
manner in which the Corporation has recorded its Trust esti-
mates. The Corporation’s Office of Inspector General contracted
with the accounting firm Cotton & Company to perform the
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audit required by the Act for fiscal 2004. The results of this audit
are included in the OIG audit section of this report (see page xx).
Based on the Corporation’s analysis and the results of OIG’s audit,
the Corporation certifies that it complied with the Act for fiscal
2004.

Appendices

Trust Enroliment Activity

Table 6 presents the cumulative activity for enrollments, earn-
ings, and usage in the Trust by Program Year as of September 30,
2004.

Appendix D: National Service Trust
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Table 6: Trust Enroliment Activity: Program Years 1994 through 2004

Members
T | twe Wb cmig | w | OGNt | At | pom
(or Not Award
Exited)
1994 Full Time 15,979 0 12,089 3,890 $51,191,303 $37,671,559
Part Time 6,264 0 4,172 2,092 $8,988,028 56,690,223
Reduced Part Time 2,906 0 2,523 383 52,558,979 $1.811,739
Total 25,149 0 18,784 6,365 562,738,370 546,773,521
1995 Full Time 17,795 0 13,613 4,182 $61,321,792 $46,212,767
Part Time 6,848 0 4,359 2,489 59,543,940 $6,902,046
Reduced Part Time 486 0 402 84 $390,485 $288,959
Total 25,129 0 18,374 6,755 571,256,217 553,403,772
1996 Full Time 17,721 0 13,478 4,243 $61,501,488 546,866,148
Part Time 6,943 0 4,468 2,475 $10,087,560 57,003,960
Reduced Part Time 639 0 526 113 $520,515 5403,860
Total 25,303 0 18,472 6,831 572,709,563 $54,273,968
1997 Full Time 23,357 0 17,398 5,959 579,826,336 $59,028,144
Part Time 12,831 0 7,080 5,751 515,933,752 510,956,304
Reduced Part Time 3,649 0 2,964 685 52,892,742 52,247,907
Total 39,837 0 27,442 12,395 598,652,830 572,232,355
1998 Full Time 24,545 0 17,747 6,798 $81,545,497 $57,622,597
Part Time 11,156 0 6,205 4,951 514,023,940 $9,289,989
Reduced Part Time 5,083 0 3,819 1,264 53,790,764 $2,867,912
Total 40,784 0 27,771 13,013 599,359,601 569,780,498
1999 Full Time 23,328 0 17,022 6,306 $78,358,799 $52,960,055
Part Time 11,333 0 6,913 4,420 $15,629,800 59,669,356
Reduced Part Time 7,259 0 5,859 1,400 56,092,512 54,456,065
Total 41,920 0 29,794 12,126 5$700,081, 711 567,085,476
2000 Full Time 26,295 115 19,143 7,037 $88,252,041 $54,705,795
Part Time 13,221 149 8,443 4,629 519,354,817 $10,920,877
Reduced Part Time 13,620 134 10,264 3,222 510,636,770 57,428,493
Total 53,136 398 37,850 14,888 5718,243,628 573,055,165
2001 Full Time 29,631 172 22,734 6,725 $105,047,348 $56,766,977
Part Time 13,895 372 8,818 4,705 519,959,820 59,822,620
Reduced Part Time 15,830 118 12,451 3,261 512,945,806 $8,116,268
Total 59,356 662 44,003 14,691 5137,952,974 574,705,865
2002 Full Time 28,222 129 23,184 4,909 $107,862,918 $46,356,305
Part Time 9,406 691 6,131 2,584 514,049,994 55,970,974
Reduced Part Time 10,836 167 8,091 2,578 59,271,433 $5,304,534
Total 48,464 987 37,406 10,071 $131,184,345 $57,6371,813
2003 Full Time 17,503 3,273 11,790 2,440 $54,120,858 56,811,618
Part Time 8,826 2,612 4,798 1,476 511,017,079 51,617,029
Reduced Part Time 13,011 2,134 9,249 1,628 510,480,327 53,449,961
Total 39,340 8,019 25,837 5,484 575,618,264 571,878,608
2004 Full Time 13,126 12,556 203 367 $812,383 527,832
Part Time 1,756 1,501 193 62 $446,778 S17,159
Reduced Part Time 5,392 2,126 3,216 50 53,909,200 $392,885
Total 20,274 16,183 3,612 479 55,768,361 $437,876
Total 1994-2004 418,692 26,249 289,345 103,098 $972,365,204 $580,658,917
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